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Founded in November 2012, Alizz Islamic Bank 
provides wholesale and retail finance through its 
branch distribution and a variety of alternative 
electronic channels. Alizz Islamic Bank is here to 
deliver exceptional amd sustainable results to our 
stakeholders by providing superior Shari’a compliant 
financial solutions.

The total paid up capital is 100 million Omani Rials 
of which 40% was raised by public investors during 
the Initial Public Offering (IPO) 60% was contributed 
by the bank’s promoters who come from diverse yet 
complementary backgrounds, and share extensive 
experience in leadership roles, all of which contribute 
to establishing a solid foundation from which Alizz 
Islamic Bank can flourish.
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Our Values
Team Work
We build winning teams that are 
Results-Focused, driven by what creates 
value for our stakeholders.

Integrity
We conduct our business in an honest, fair and 
transparent way, guided by Shari’a principles. 

Excellence
We are passionate about being the 
best in everything we do.

Our Mission
Deliver exceptional and sustainable results to 
our stakeholders by providing superior Shari’a 
compliant financial solutions.

BANK PROFILE
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Dear Shareholders
It gives me great pleasure to share with you the results of 
Alizz Islamic Bank SAOG (the Bank) for the year ending 31 
December 2016. The Bank continues to perform in line with 
its strategy despite difficulties faced by the banking industry 
as a whole.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The economic environment remained challenging with 
tight liquidity conditions and restrained fiscal policy by the 
government due to low oil revenues. The actual revenue was 
less than the targeted figure as average oil price remained 
around USD 39-40 per barrel compared to the budget estimate 
of USD 45 per barrel with the deficit rising to OMR 5.3 billion, 
higher than the initial estimate of OMR 3.3 billion. Growth in 
GDP was limited to 2.5% while inflation rate remained steady 
at 1.85%.

The recent decision to cut production by OPEC countries 
has brought some optimism in oil markets as oil prices have 
witnessed good recovery in the last quarter of 2016. 

As part of the 2017 budget, the government announced a 
number of initiatives to enhance revenue and rationalise costs. 
The initiatives to boost revenue include revitalizing non-oil 
revenues and enhancing their contribution to the economy, 
amending fees for hiring foreign workers, introducing tax on 
certain commodities such as tobacco and amending income 
tax law to limit tax and custom duties exemptions granted 
for certain establishments. Cost rationalisation measures 
include reducing capital expenditure on non essential projects, 
reviewing government subsidies and the privatisation of 
government assets.

In addition, the “Tanfeedh” programme established by the 
Supreme Council for Planning in 2016 has also identified 
certain projects and initiatives for diversification of the 
economy which will be prioritised and implemented by the 
Government in the coming years.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In response to market conditions, the Bank has carefully 
reviewed its credit policies to avoid sectors that were more 
vulnerable to volatile conditions and mobilized deposits 
aggressively to remain liquid at all times. This strategy has 
ensured asset quality remains strong. 

The Bank’s financing portfolio reached OMR 312.8 million 
registering a growth of 56.8% from the same period last 
year. Deposits grew by OMR 129.6 million representing a 
growth of 80.3%. 

Net operating income grew by 49.6% from 2015 to reach 
OMR 8.97 million. Due to the increase in income, cost 
controls and strong monitoring of credit quality, the net loss 
of the Bank reduced by 11.8% to reach OMR 4.72 million.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

The Bank expanded its distribution network by opening a new 
branch in Muscat enhancing the network to 7 branches. In 
addition the Bank leveraged social media to show its ambition 
in being at the forefront in terms of technology.  Our strong 
digital footprint has ensured that Alizz Islamic Bank has 
become the most followed Islamic Bank in Oman during 
2016 on social media.

We were also the first and only bank to use the Interactive 
Teller Machine to distribute Eidiya notes. 

In addition the Bank launched, “Tharwa” segment providing 
world class priority banking services to high net worth 
customers. SME banking was also launched providing 
financing to small and medium enterprises in line with the 
Government’s vision.

INVESTING IN OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

At Alizz Islamic Bank, we firmly believe in investing in our 
people and contributing to the community. The Bank strives 
to recruit talented and ambitious Omani nationals and 
provide them appropriate training in islamic banking to

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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prepare them for future leadership roles in line with the vision of the Government. The 
Bank enjoys a high Omanisation ratio of 89.6% and we endeavor to increase it further.

The Bank recognizes its responsibilities towards the community and manages a 
comprehensive Corporate Social Responsibility program which is monitored by senior 
management and the Board of Directors. During the year, the Bank sponsored various 
public events and organisations for a variety of good causes. 

AWARDS

Alizz Islamic Bank is always striving to be a highly respected brand that customers can 
rely on through its commitment for offering service excellence and innovation.

During the year 2016, the Bank received multiple awards across various categories 
including ‘Best Islamic Financial Institution in Oman’ from Global Finance Awards 
2016, ‘Best Islamic Bank in Oman’ from World Islamic Finance Awards 2016, and 
‘Best Retail Bank in Oman 2016’ from Islamic Business & Finance Awards 2016.

Alizz Islamic Bank is honored to receive such awards, as it is recognition of our drive to 
deliver the best service and commitment to our mission of providing superior Shari’a 
compliant financial solutions.

IN CONCLUSION

2016 proved to be a challenging year economically, however, Alizz Islamic Bank still 
achieved healthy growth and the Board remains positive for the year ahead.

The Board of Directors is deeply grateful to His Majesty Sultan Qaboos bin Said for his 
vision and guidance in leading Oman along its path of growth and prosperity during 
the last 46 years of his leadership.

I would like to thank our highly committed Board of Directors and the Shari’a Supervisory 
Board for their guidance as well as the Bank’s management and employees for their 
outstanding contribution and for their enduring loyalty, integrity and commitment 
to excellence. I would also like to thank our customers and shareholders for their 
continuous trust and support.

TAIMUR A AL SAID
Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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H.H. Al Sayyid Taimur Bin Asa’d Al Said

Mohammed Shukri Ghanem Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji

Mohamed Rashed Al Suwaidi Obaid Hilal Al Kaabi Saleh Nasser Al Araimi

Shabib Mohammed Al Darmaki

Chairman

Vice Chairman Board Member

Board Member Board Member Board Member

Board Member

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors



13SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Senior Management

Sitting from left
Moosa Al Jadidi: Chief Operating Officer
Honorable Salaam Said Al Shaksy: Chief Executive Officer
Ghalib Al Busaidi: DGM - Group Head - Wholesale Banking
 
Standing from left
Sufyan Maysara Yassin: Head of Shari’a Audit & Compliance
Mohammed Al Balushi: AGM - Chief Human Resources Officer
Pete Byrne: AGM - Head of Audit
Ali Al Zadjali: AGM - Head of Compliance
Faisal Zakaria: AGM - Head of Finance
Fadelallah Sulieman: Corporate Secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2016
Corporate governance report as per the Code of Corporate Governance, the best international governance practices, deals with the way companies are managed and led, 
defines the roles of the Directors and formalises the internal control process within the institution. 

The Board of Directors of Alizz Islamic Bank SAOG (the Bank) supports the establishment of a governance culture at the Bank. Accordingly, the Board and its Committees 
continuously evaluate and improve their governance practices, policies and procedures. The Board also ensures that the Bank applies the principles of the Capital Market 
Authority’s (the CMA) Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) as well as the regulations for Corporate Governance of Banking and Financial Institutions issued by the 
Central Bank of Oman. As an islamic bank, Alizz Islamic Bank also applies the Central Bank of Oman regulation for islamic banking institutions. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the supervision and control of the Bank. The Board also directs laying down and approving the objectives of the Bank, strategies and 
policies. The Board of Directors also reviews the performance of the Bank in relation to its stated objectives.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Board is comprised of seven members who have been elected by the shareholders in March 2016 for a period of three years. The current term of all the Directors 
expires in 2019. Accordingly a new Board will be elected by the shareholders in March 2019.

PROCESS OF NOMINATION OF THE DIRECTORS 

The nomination of the Directors is done as per the Bank’s Article of Association and the CMA Code of Corporate Governance. Shareholders retain the power to elect any 
candidate to the Board irrespective of any recommendation to be made by the Board.

INFORMATION GIVEN TO THE BOARD 

The Directors are given timely information so as to maintain full and effective control over strategic, financial, operational, compliance and governance issues. 
 
On appointment, each Director receives an Induction Pack which contains information about the Bank and is advised of the legal, regulatory and other obligations of a joint 
stock company’s Director. 

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 

No Director is a member of the Board of more than four public joint stock companies or banks whose principal place of business is in the Sultanate of Oman, or a Chairman 
of more than two such companies.
The following tables show the position of each of the current Board members:

Table 1

 Name of the Directors  Representing Category of the Director*

1. HH Al Sayyid Taimur A Al Said - Chairman Huriah Company LLC NEX-NIND

2. Mr. Mohamed Shukri Ghanem Member - Vice Chairman  First Energy Oman NEX-NIND

3. Mr. Shabib Mohamed Al Darmaki - Member Civil Services Employees’ Pension Fund   NEX-IND  

4. Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji - Member   Al Khonji Development and Investment  NEX-IND

5. Mr. Mohamed Rashid Alhurr Al Suwaidi - Member Aabar Investments Company NEX-NIND
  
6. Mr. Obaid Helal Mohammed Al Kaabi - Member  Himself NEX-IND

7. Mr. Saleh Nasser Al Araimi - Member  Himself NEX-IND 

*NEX: Non-Executive Director, IND: Independent, NIND: Non Independent
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 Name of the Directors  Other Board Member of No of Attended 
  Committees  other Board Meetings last AGM
  Membership* S.A.O.G Boards Attended (Yes/No/NA)

1. HH Al Sayyid Taimur A. Al Said - Chairman  EXCOM, N&RC Nil 5 Yes 

2. Mr. Mohamed Shukri Ghanem – Vice Chairman  EXCOM, N&RC Nil 3 Yes 

3. Mr. Shabib Mohamed Al Darmaki – Member  BAC 2 6 Yes 

4. Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji – Member  BRCC, BAC  NIL 5 Yes

5. Mr.  Mohamed Rashid Alhurr Al Suwaidi – Member  BAC , BRCC Nil  4 Yes 

6. Mr. Obaid Helal Mohammed Al Kaabi – Member  BRCC, N&RC Nil 5 Yes 

7. Mr.  Saleh Nasser Al Araimi – Member    EXCOM, N&RC  2 5 Yes

*BAC: Board Audit Committee, BRCC: Board Risk and Compliance Committee, EXCOM: Executive Committee of the Board, N&RC: Board Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. 

NUMBER AND DATES OF BOARD MEETINGS 

The Board held six meetings during 2016. They were on 27 January, 29 March, 24 April, 25 July, 30 October and 13 December 2016. The maximum interval between 
two Board meetings was ninety Seven days. This is in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, which requires meetings to be held within a maximum time 
gap of four months. 

REMUNERATION TO BOARD AND TOP MANAGEMENT 

The sum of the benefits (e.g. salaries, perquisites, gratuity, pension, bonus etc.) paid to the top five senior managers of the Bank in 2016 is RO 996,683. 

Staff service contracts duration is 2 to 3 years for expatriate officers and determined by the prevailing labour laws for Omanis. 
The notice period is between one to six months.

As all members of the Board are Non-executive Directors, accordingly no fixed remuneration or performance linked incentive are applicable. 
The Non-executive Directors are paid sitting fees and reimbursement of expense for attending the Board and Committee meetings.

Table 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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 Name of the Directors  Total fees “RO”  
                            
1. HH Al Sayyid Taimur A. Al Said - Chairman  8000

2. Mr. Mohamed Shukri Ghanem – Vice Chairman  4800

3. Mr. Shabib Mohamed Al Darmaki – Member   6100

4. Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji – Member   7000

5. Mr. Mohamed Rashid Alhurr Al Suwaidi – Member   3900

6. Mr. Obaid Helal Mohammed Al Kaabi – Member   5000

7. Mr. Saleh Nasser Al Araimi  – Member   6500

8. Mr. Mohamed Ali Al Fahim (left in March 2016) 1600

9. Mr. Malcolm McKinnon (Left in March 2016)  500

Total  43,400

The total hotel and travel expense related to the Board members during 2016 is RO 20,969.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As at the end of 2016, The Board of Directors has four committees, the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Risk and Compliance Committee and the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee comprises three members. The Committee has met four times in 2016. 

The composition of the Audit Committee and particulars of meetings attended by the members of the Audit Committee are given in the table below: 

Table 4

The details of the sitting fees paid or accrued for payment to the Board members during 2016 are as follows:

Table 3

 Name  Position Meetings attended & Remarks 

1. Mr. Shabib Mohamed Al Darmaki Chairman – Independent  4
 
2. Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji Member – Independent 3
 
3. Mr. Mohamed Rashid Alhurr Al Suwaidi Member – Non – Independent  3 Joined in March 2016 

The Committee has the overall responsibility of nominating the external auditor, assessing the Internal Audit findings, providing direction for implementation of audit 
recommendations and overseeing the Internal Audit activities undertaken within the internal control environment and regulatory compliance framework of the Bank. 
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AUTHORITY
• Recommend to the Board of Directors, who shall in turn present to the General Assembly, the appointment and compensation of the external auditor to conduct  
 the Bank’s annual audit. 

• The Audit Committee shall be responsible for the evaluation of Internal Audit function and shall maintain oversight of the work of external auditor and approve all  
 auditing and permitted non-audit services performed by them.

• The Committee will have access to Board Members, external auditors and outside counsel, including access to all relevant information, as necessary to carry out its  
 activities, while considering relevant jurisdictional regulations/laws.

• The Audit Committee shall report to the Board of Directors on Internal Audit findings and escalate material issues.

BOARD RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE: 

The Board Risk and Compliance Committee comprises of three members and met four times during the year 2016. The names of the members appear in the table below: 

Table 5

 Name  Position Meetings Remarks
   Attended  

1. Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji Chairman 3
 
2. Mr. Mohamed Rashid Alhurr Al Suwaidi Member -    Joined  in March 16 

3. Mr. Obaid Helal Mohammed Al Kaabi Member  3    Joined in March 16

4. Mr. Malcolm McKinnon  EX- Chairman  1    Left in March 16

5. Mr. Shabib Al Darmaki EX- Member 1    Left in March 16 

The Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities pertaining to risk management and compliance; recognising compliance as 
a core risk management activity within the Bank. By establishing, monitoring and reviewing; internal control, compliance and risk management policies, processes and 
systems within the Bank; ensuring conformity with regulatory requirements as well as alignment with leading standards such as Basel. 

AUTHORITY

The key areas of authority of the Risk & Compliance Committee are to oversee, for the Bank:

• Aggregate risk exposure and the level of risk assumed for the Bank. 

• Risk management and compliance decisions for the Bank.

• The effectiveness of the risk management and compliance systems and controls.

• Management’s compliance with established risk-related limits and policies.

• Management’s adherence to statutory compliance requirements; AML, KYC, reporting, etc.

• The performance of the Bank’s risk and compliance functions. In relation to credit risk, the Committee shall only be involved in overseeing risk policies, validity of  
 models, delegations of authority and loan exposure and concentration. Aspects related to the continuing management of credit risk decisions shall be delegated by  
 the Board separately to the Executive Committee.

• In the Committees capacity to oversee compliance related matters, the Committee will have access to the Banks Executive/Senior Management, external auditors  
 and outside counsel, the Committee will also be privy to all relevant information, as necessary to carry out its activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD (EXCOM) 

The Executive Committee of the Board comprises of three members and met six times during the year 2016. 
The names of the members and their positions are as set out in the table below: 

Table 6

 Name  Position Meetings Remarks
   Attended  

1. HH Al Sayyid Taimur A. Al Said   Chairman  6

2. Mr. Mohamed Shukri Ghanem  Member  4

3. Mr. Saleh Nasser Al Araimi Member 4 Joined in March 16

4. Mr. Mohamed Ali Al Fahim Ex- Member 1 Left in March 16 

5. Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji Ex - Member 1 Left in March 16 

The objective of the Board Executive Committee (EXCOM) is to assist the Board in overseeing the Management of the Bank. EXCOM is responsible for the reviewing, 
monitoring and approval of key financial and non-financial businesses, investments and operations decisions for the Bank within the authority prescribed by the Board.  The 
EXCOM shall assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in relation to granting credit (as delegated by the Board), making settlements, and cancellation of debt 
decisions and on exceptions that represent unusual credit risks.

AUTHORITY
• The Committee is primarily a decision-making body and a forum where the Committee Members can take more time to deliberate on issues addressed to them,   
before either approving or providing their recommendations to the Board.

• Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board annually with respect to the composition, size and needs of the Board and its Committees. 

• Reviewing periodically the overall corporate governance principles, procedures and practices of the Bank and make recommendations to the Board as appropriate. 

• Reviewing and recommending to the General Assembly via the Board of Directors, the remuneration of the Board and various board committees.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board comprises of four members and met four times during 2016. 
The names of the members and their positions are as set out in the table below: 

Table 7

 Name  Position Meetings Remarks
   Attended  

1. Mr. Saleh Nasser Al Araimi Chairman  3 Joined in March 16

2. HH Al Sayyid Taimur A. Al Said   Member 4 

3. Mr. Mohamed  Shukri Ghanem Member 2 

4. Mr. Obaid Helal Mohammed Al Kaabi Member  1 Joined in March 16

5. Mr. Mohamed Ali Al Fahim Ex-Member 1 Left in March 16

6. Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji Ex-Member 1 Left in March 16 
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AUTHORITY
• The Committee authorizes the CEO to setup the Human Resources Management Committee (HRMC) comprising of members of Senior Management to deal with  
 such authorized matters as set out in the Management Committee Charter and as approved by the CEO.

• The Committee is authorized by the Board of Directors to commission any reports or surveys that it deems necessary to help it fulfill its obligations.

• The Committee is authorized by the Board to exercise the authorities vested in it, if any, vide the Human Resources Authority Matrix approved by the Board.

• The Committee is authorized by the Board to seek any information it requires from the CEO in order to perform its duties.

• The Committee is authorized to obtain any outside legal or other professional advice, when required.

• The Committee is accountable to the full Board and all actions of the Committee require ratification by the full Board at Board meetings.

BOARD MEMBERS PROFILE 

His Highness Sayyid Taimur Asaad Al Said – Chairman 

His Highness Sayyid Taimur was elected Chairman of alizz islamic bank in November 2012. In his capacity, His Highness aims to work closely with the Board of 
Directors and Management Team to establish a solid framework for islamic finance in the Sultanate of Oman. 

Guided by the Bank’s core values of Community, Respect, Relationships and Pride, His Highness envisions alizz islamic bank to become a progressive, open-minded, 
modern and uniquely Omani bank, a bank holding the same islamic values that bind the community we serve.

With a proven track record in the business and financial services sectors, His Highness has served on the Board of Directors of a leading financial institution and 
currently is a government official. As an active member of the community, His Highness takes great pride in his role as the Patron of several non-profit organisations. 

An advocate of innovation and entrepreneurship, His Highness continuously seeks to unlock the potential of young people by empowering them with the means to 
develop their skills and capacities. He believes that investing in youth today will reap great rewards in the future.

Mr. Mohamed Shukri Ghanem – Vice Chairman 

Mr. Mohamed Ghanem was elected as a Board Member at alizz islamic bank in November 2012. Mr. Mohamed Ghanem is the Chairman and Directors of the following 
companies:
• Board member and Chief Executive Officer of First Energy Bank - Bahrain
• Board member and Member of the  Executive Committee of the Board of Al Salam Bank - Bahrain
• Chairman of MENAdrill Company 
• Chairman of Medisal Company – Abu Dhabi
• Chairman of ADCAN Company – Abu Dhabi 

Mr. Ghanem holds a Bachelor of Arts in Business from Webster University in Vienna and holds an MBA from Glamorgan University

Mr. Shabib Mohamed Al Darmaki – Director

Mr. Shabib Al Darmaki was elected as a Board Member at alizz islamic bank in November 2012. He is currently Director General of the Civil Service Employees Pension 
Fund in Oman. He held directorship positions of key institutions that benefit from his vast knowledge and experience in finance, audit and pension fund management. 
These institutions range from Shell Oman Marketing, Oman National Investment and Development, National Investment Funds Company, Oman Housing Bank and Al 
Batinah Hotels, where Mr. Al Darmaki utilizes an intrinsic understanding of business strategies that align financial goals in an islamic setting. 

Honed from a highly impressive career in finance and audit, Mr. Al Darmaki provides insight and guidance to the Board of Directors of alizz islamic bank, thus 
strengthening the bank’s leadership and governance. 

Building on the strongest of financial and business foundations, Mr. Al Darmaki brings to the Board of alizz islamic bank an enviable reputation and financial acuity 
that strengthens the pillars of the Bank in its regional goal to provide a pure islamic Shar’ia compliant corporate and personal service. Mr. Al Darmaki’s experience will 
assist the Bank in its goals to adopt and implement a range of new products and services that meet the needs of the customers through challenging existing banking 
principles.
Mr. Al Darmaki holds a Master of Science in Accounting from Oklahoma City University, USA as well as a Bachelor of Science in Business from Hilwan University, Cairo, Egypt.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Mr. Ahmed Abdullah Al Khonji – Director 

Mr. Ahmed Al Khonji was elected as a Board Member at alizz islamic bank in November 2012. He is the Managing Director of Al Khonji Group, a company with 
investments in the retail, trading and real estate development and management. 

Mr. Al Khonji has a career spanning over twenty years holding key positions in Omani health policy strategic planning.
Aligned to the values of Islamic Banking, Mr. Al Khonji adds an exceptional socially inclusive mandate to the banks board through an extensive career honed within the 
health care, investment and commerce sectors of Oman. 

Mr. Al Khonji’s other remits within a community context include Board positions on the Road Safety Association and The Oman Association of Consumer Protection, and 
the Chairman of the Omani Sport for all Committee. 

Mr. Al Khonji holds a Bachelor of Science in Business Management from the University of Northern Colorado, USA as well as a Master in Public Management from 
Carnegie Mellon University, Pittsburgh, USA.

Mr. Mohamed Rashed Alhurr Al Suwaidi – Director 

Mr. Mohamed Rashed Alhurr Al Suwaidi was elected as a Board Member in Alizz Islamic Bank in March 2016.

Mr. Al Suwaidi has worked with Abu Dhabi Investment Authority (ADIA) UAE, in their Equities Department and later with International Petroleum Investments Company 
(IPIC) in their Investment Department, where he gained valuable experience. He is currently working as Head of Investments at Aabar and is a member of their Executive 
Team.

Mr. Al Suwaidi is also a Board Member at Virgin Galactic, Wessal Capital, Palmassets and Dead Sea Resort. 

Mr. Al Suwaidi holds a Bachelor of Science - Honours with specialization in Technology and E-Commerce. 

Mr. Obaid Hilal Obaid Mohamed Al Kaabi – Director 

Mr. Obaid Hilal Obaid Mohamed Al Kaabi was elected Alizz Islamic Bank’s board member in March 2016.

Mr. Al Kaabi is a Retired Officer from the UAE Armed Forces and has an educational background as a Bachelor of Military Sciences and Management. 

Besides his extensive and proud experience in the Armed Forces, he has also worked as the Director General of United International for Companies Representation and the 
Director General of Business Support at Das. 

Mr. Saleh bin Nasser Al Araimi – Director

Mr. Saleh bin Nasser Al-Araimi was elected Alizz Islamic Bank’s board member in March 2016. Mr. Al Araimi is a seasoned and experienced professional. Before joining 
alizz islamic bank, he was the General Manager of the Public Authority for Social Insurance - a place where he worked for almost 20 years. Mr Al Araimi also held the 
position of Acting CEO and Deputy CEO. 

Mr. Al Araimi also worked for close to 20 years at the Ministry of Social Affairs and Labor (now called the Ministry of Social Development) - where he held a number 
of positions including the Director General of Social Affairs and GM - Administration & Finance to name a few. Mr. Al Araimi has also handled various roles in banks and 
investment companies including BankDhofar, Oman Housing Bank, Oman Development Bank, Oman Integrated Tourism Fund, Bank Muscat, National Investment Funds 
Company (NIFCO) and Mazoon First Investment Fund. 

He has further held various roles of responsibility in private sector companies, such as Al Sharqiya University, Oman Fisheries, Shell Marketing Company and Oman Cement 
Company. Plus he also has experience in working with international organisations such as the International Social Security Association (ISSA) Geneva and the Arabian Gulf 
Development Fund (AGFUND) in KSA. 

Mr. Al Araimi holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from the University of Cairo, besides an Executive MBA from the University of Lincoln, UK and a Higher 
Diploma in Management.
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SHARIA SUPERVISORY BOARD 

The Sharia Supervisory Board comprises of three members and met five times during the year. 
The names of the members and their positions are as set out in the table below: 

Table 8

 Name  Position Meetings Attended 

Sheikh Dr. Mohammad Abdul Rahim Sultan Al Olama Chairman  5

Sheikh Dr. Osama Mohammed Saad Bahar Member 5

Sheikh Nasser bin Yousef Al Azri  Member 5

An independent Shari’a Supervisory Board approves all alizz islamic banking products and services. The members of Shari’a Board are the scholars with knowledge and expertise in 
Islamic jurisprudence. No funds pertaining to alizz islamic bank will be invested in non-Shari’a compliant assets or taken from any non-Shari’a compliant sources. alizz islamic bank 
offers its customers peace of mind with each product or service offered through a Fatwa certificate, which is signed by the Shari’a Board.

The existence of the Shari’a Supervisory board (SSB) contributes to further assurance to the shareholders and depositors, and without any doubt, confidence is one of the most 
important success factors for banks.

The General Meeting appoints the SSB based on the Board of Directors nomination, consists of not less than three members. 

THE MAIN ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SSB ARE:

• To approve the bank’s products and services 

• To approve the standard agreements and contracts pertaining to the bank’s financial transactions

• To give a Shari’a opinion regarding the products introduced by the bank and issue fatwas on the questions and transactions submitted to it

• To follow up the bank’s operations and check its activities, to make sure that the concluded transactions are comprehended within the approved products by the Board

• To present and suggest the possible Shari’a solutions for the problems of the financial transactions inconsistent with the principles and provisions of Islamic Shari’a as well   
find alternatives for the products repugnant to the Shari’a rules 

• To declare its objection on the transactions repugnant to the provisions of Islamic Shari’a and correct it or stop it and advice the concerned department to not repeat it.   
The written objection shall be addressed to the Board of Directors

• To review the reports of the Shari’a Audit and Compliance Department concerning the audit of the bank’s transactions and to which extent such transactions are compliant   
with the provisions of Islamic Shari’a and the fatwas and resolutions of the Board

• To ensure that the distribution of the profits among Shareholders and Depositors and bearing of the loss are calculated in accordance to the Islamic Shari’a principle

• To present an annual report in front of the General Assembly of the bank encompasses the Board’s opinion about the bank’s transaction and operations which are done   
during the year and to which extent that the bank’s management has committed to the Board fatwas’ decisions and direction

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SITTING FEES AND REMUNERATION OF THE SHARIA SUPERVISORY BOARD 

The details of the sitting fees paid or accrued for payment to the Sharia Supervisory Board during 2016 are as follows:

Table 9

 Name of the Directors Total fees “RO”

Sheikh Dr. Mohammad Abdul Rahim Sultan Al Olama 2,000
 
Sheikh Dr. Osama Mohammed Saad Bahar 2,000

Sheikh Nasser bin Yousef Al Azri 2,000

Total  6,000

The SSB members are also entitled to receive remuneration in addition to the sitting fees. The table below gives details of the remuneration paid to the SSB members:

Table 10

 Name of the Directors Total Remuneration   “RO”
 
Sheikh Dr. Mohammad Abdul Rahim Sultan Al Olama 16,000
  
Sheikh Dr. Osama Mohammed Saad Bahar 12,000

Sheikh Nasser bin Yousef Al Azri 12,000

Total  40,000

The total hotel and travel expense related to the Sharia Supervisory Board during 2016  is RO 9,367.  

SHARIA SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS PROFILE 

Sheikh Dr. Mohammad Abdul Rahim Sultan Al Olama - Chairman

Sheikh Dr. Mohammad Abdul Rahim Sultan Al Olama is a member of the Grand Islamic Scholars Body in Dubai, an Associate Professor of the School of Shari’a at the United Arab 
Emirates University in Al Ain and an acknowledged expert in Shari’a finance. 
Dr. Al Olama is also the head of the Fatwa Committee of the Zakat Funds in the United Arab Emirates.

Dr. Al Olama has written extensively on modern Islamic finance and has presented numerous research papers at various international conferences. He currently serves on a number 
of Shari’a boards representing Islamic financial institutions and Takaful companies, some of which include Dubai Islamic Bank, al hilal bank, Emirates Islamic Bank, Noor Islamic 
Bank, Dar Al Takaful, Mawarid Finance and Manazel Real Estate.

Dr. Al Olama holds a PhD in Comparative Islamic Law from Umm Al Qurra University in Mecca, Saudi Arabia.
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Sheikh Dr. Osama Mohammed Saad Bahar – Member

Sheikh Dr. Bahar is a prominent, highly-respected Shari’a scholar from Bahrain. He is currently the Head of the Internal Sharia Compliance and member of Fatwa and Shari’a 
Supervisory Board at First Energy Bank, following earlier senior positions at Islamic banks in Bahrain including Head of Shari’a Compliance at Al Salam Bank as well as the Chairman 
and Executive Member of the Shari’a Supervisory Board at Capinnova Investment Bank, an investment arm wholly owned by Bank of Bahrain and Kuwait in Bahrain.

His expertise extends across structuring Islamic financial products, preparing Sharia contracts as well as authoring research papers on Islamic Banking and Finance. Sheikh Dr. Bahar 
sits on a number of Sharia Supervisory Boards including, Ithmaar Bank, Global Banking Corporation, International Investment Bank, Sakana Holistic Housing Solutions and Reef 
Real Estate Finance Company.

Sheikh Bahar received his Doctorate degree from Lahaye University in Holland, his Master’s Degree from Al Emam Al Awzae University in Lebanon and his Bachelor’s degree in 
Islamic Shari’a from Prince Abdul Qader University of Islamic Studies in Algeria.

Sheikh Nasser bin Yousef Al Azri – Member

Sheikh Nasser bin Yousif Al Azri is currently the Director of the Fatwa Department at the Ministry of Awqaf and Religious Affairs in Oman and an Interim Secretary at the Grand 
Mufti’s Office. He is also an active member of several committees at the Ministry responsible for Mosques, Zakat, Hajj, Publications and Book Revision. Prior to his current capacity, 
Sheikh Al Azri held a number of prestigious positions including Judge Assistant at the Ministry of Justice and Researcher in Islamic Affairs at the Ministry of Awqaf and Religious 
Affairs.

Sheikh Al Azri has extensive knowledge and expertise in Islamic and judiciary laws. He has also authored several papers and research studies, and attended prominent Islamic 
conferences such as those held by the International Islamic Fiqh Academy.

He received a High Diploma degree in Jurisprudence from the Institute of Shari’a Sciences in Oman.

COMPOSITION OF THE MANAGEMENT:

The Bank’s management includes the Chief Executive Officer as the leader of the organization whose appointment, functions and package are determined by the Board. 

The other senior management are appointed to assist the CEO and to lead the organization. The following table gives details of the top five management officers along with their 
positions:

Table 11

 Name Position

1. Mr. Salaam Said Al Shaksy    Chief Executive Officer

2. Mr. Ghalib Fawzy Al Busaidi Deputy General Manager, Head of Wholesale Banking 

3. Mr. Ehab Hashish Deputy General Manager, Ex - Head of Wholesale Banking 
  (resigned in November 2016)

4. Mr. Moosa Al Jadidi Chief Operating Officer

5. Mr. Mohamed Al Balushi Chief Human Resources Officer

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE 

Honorable Salaam Said Al Shaksy – Chief Executive Officer

The Honorable Salaam Said Al Shaksy, is Chief Executive Officer of alizz islamic bank, overseeing the strategic direction of Oman’s newest dedicated Islamic Bank providing 
innovative financial solutions and products adhered by Islamic Shari’a. He joined alizz islamic bank as Chief Executive Officer on June 4, 2014.

Al Shaksy is a Member of Oman’s State Council and Deputy Head of its Economic Committee.  He is also a member of the Board of Directors of Oman Oil Company 
and Chairman of its Board Audit and Risk Committee.  His other appointments include: Member of the Board and Board Executive Committee of Al Raff’d Fund (Oman’s 
Government funded SME fund); Chairman of Oman’s Investment Stabilization Fund;  Member of the Advisory Board at The College of Economics & Political Science, Sultan 
Qaboos University; and Chairman of The Shaksy Group.

Prior to joining alizz, he served as Chief Executive Officer of National Bank of Oman between 2010 and 2014, leading its turnaround and transformation during this period.
Al Shaksy has held a number of senior executive positions including CEO of Dubai Banking Group, CEO of Dubai Islamic Investment Group and Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer of Bank Dhofar (where he led its merger with Majan International Bank in 2002).  
Between 1994-2000, Al Shaksy headed a group comprising three divisions - retail banking, investment banking and correspondent banking at the National Bank of Oman. 
He embarked on his banking career with Citibank Global Consumer Business, Dubai, UAE in 1992.

His previous roles include Chairman of Oman National Investment Corporation Holding, Deputy Chairman of the Board of Shell Oman Marketing and Chairman of its Board 
Audit Committee, Deputy Chairman, Muscat Securities Market and Board Member of Bank Muscat.

Al Shaksy is the first Omani CEO of a full-fledged Islamic Bank in Oman and has received a number of awards in Banking, including “Banker of the Year 2008” - Banker 
Middle East. He is also a sought after keynote speaker at global financial conferences. Al Shaksy is a graduate of Boston University, USA, where he received a Bachelor’s 
Degree in Economics (cum laude), a Masters in Management Information Systems (Honors) and an MBA in Management of Financial Services (High Honors). He has also 
completed the Senior Executive Program from the London Business School, UK. He is married and has five children. He enjoys boating, chess and photography.

Mr. Ghalib Fawzi Al Busaidi – DGM, Head of Wholesale Banking 

Mr. Ghalib Fawzi Al Busaidy is the Head of Wholesale Banking. He joined alizz islamic bank in August 2014 as Chief Financial Officer. He has more than 21 years of 
experience in the State General Reserve Fund, Oman.

Prior to joining alizz, Al Busaidy was the Deputy CEO for Investments at the State General Reserve Fund, responsible for the key investment functions of public and private 
markets. Al Busaidy started his career in 1987 in PricewaterhouseCoopers London, United Kingdom.

Al Busaidy is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1991, and a member of the UK Associates of Corporate Treasurers. He holds 
a BA “Honors” in Accounting and Finance from Middlesex University, Business School. Al Busaidy has also completed the Investment Management Program (London 
Business School), High Performance Boards (Lausanne, Swizerland), and Interest Rate Risk Management Program (New York Institute of Finance).

Mr. Ehab Hashish – Ex - DGM, Head of Wholesale Banking ( Resigned in November 2016) 

Mr. Ehab Hashish was the Head of Corporate Banking. He joined alizz islamic bank in August 2014. Ehab came to alizz islamic bank with over 26 years of corporate 
banking and Islamic Banking experience; most recently as Head of Islamic Banking, Muzn – National Bank of Oman.

He started his banking career in 1989 as a Senior Credit Analyst at Commercial International Bank, the largest private-sector lender in Egypt. He then moved to American 
Express before joining Union National Bank as Senior Relationship Manager . In 2002 he joined ABN Amro Bank as Assistant Vice president until 2005 when he moved to 
Dubai Bank as Senior Vice president.

Ehab holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commercial Accounting from the University of Alexandria, Egypt.

Mr. Moosa Al Jadidi- DGM, Chief Operating Officer  

Mr. Moosa Al Jadidi is the Head of Retail Banking. He joined alizz islamic bank in August 2014. He is a seasoned banker with more than 17 years of work experience. Prior 
to joining alizz, Al Jadidi was the Deputy General Manager of Retail and Private Banking at National Bank of Oman. 

Al Jadidi commenced his banking career at the National Bank of Oman as a sales representative for one year. In 2001, he was appointed as Manager Of Private & Privilege 
Banking where he managed the privilege banking account across 50 branches. He later moved to Bank Muscat as Manager of Private & Priority Banking.

Al Jadidi is an associate of the Canadian Institute of Bankers and is also a certified private banker.
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Mr. Mohamed Al Balushi – Chief Human Resources Officer 

Mr. Mohammed Al Balushi was appointed as Head of Human Resources at Alizz Islamic Bank in September 2013. He joins Alizz Islamic Bank from Bank Dhofar where he had 
served in a number of roles since 1994, finally attaining the position of Assistant General Manager Human Resources & Training and Development, a position he had held since 
2006. Parallel to his career in the banking industry, Mohammed Al Balushi was also a part time lecturer at the College of Banking and Financial Studies. 

Mr. Al Balushi adds an exceptional range of HR and Banking skills, responsibilities and expertise honed through a successful career within the banking sector in Oman. 
His 20 years of banking experience, leadership, HR strategic planning, as well as performance management, career development, recruitment and manpower planning will become 
an invaluable asset to Alizz Islamic Bank. Mr. Al Balushi’s other remits have included acted as a Secretary to the HR Committee of the Board at Bank Dhofar, and represented 
several other executive management committees, (HR Management Committee, Disciplinary Committee, Grievance Committee and Staff Recognition Committee) as well as 
College Academic Advisory Committee at the College of Banking and Financial Studies. 

Mr. Al Balushi holds a postgraduate Certificate in Human Resource Development and Performance Management from the University of Leicester in the United Kingdom, as well as 
a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the University of Wales, Cardiff, United Kingdom. He also holds a number of professional qualifications and accreditations in the 
field of HR and banking including Associate of Canadian Institute of Bankers (ACIB) and a holder of an Advanced Human Resource Executive Certificate - University of Michigan - 
Ross School of Business – USA.

MARKET PRICE DATA:

The following table shows the high, low, and average prices of the Bank’s shares and compares the Bank’s performance against the broad index of banks and investment 
companies during 2016.

Table 12
alizz AND MSM BANK & INVESTMENT INDEX - FY 2016

alizz islamic bank 

 Month   Open  High Low Closing

 1/31/2016 0.057 0.061 0.057 0.06

 2/29/2016 0.057 0.057 0.056 0.056

 3/31/2016 0.06 0.061 0.06 0.06

 4/28/2016 0.058 0.059 0.058 0.059

 5/31/2016 0.057 0.057 0.057 0.057

 6/30/2016 0.058 0.058 0.058 0.058

 7/31/2016 0.062 0.063 0.062 0.063

 8/31/2016 0.064 0.065 0.063 0.065

 9/29/2016 0.064 0.064 0.063 0.064

 10/31/2016 0.064 0.064 0.063 0.063

 11/30/2016 0.067 0.067 0.067 0.067

 12/29/2016 0.072 0.072 0.072 0.072

financial index

 Month   Open  High Low Closing

 1/31/2016 5,028.58 5,179.55 5,028.58 5,179.36

 2/29/2016 5,383.84 5,399.39 5,381.03 5,395.11

 3/31/2016 5,473.48 5,484.64 5,464.56 5,467.42

 4/28/2016 5,941.00 5,949.77 5,941.00 5,942.72

 5/31/2016 5,838.56 5,844.77 5,810.96 5,810.96

 6/30/2016 5,779.55 5,784.84 5,777.31 5,777.31

 7/31/2016 5,854.39 5,858.35 5,843.04 5,843.78

 8/31/2016 5,771.29 5,776.86 5,735.00 5,735.00

 9/29/2016 5,726.16 5,743.45 5,726.16 5,726.20

 10/31/2016 5,487.34 5,487.85 5,477.01 5,481.44

 11/30/2016 5,481.30 5,489.83 5,476.22 5,487.68

 12/29/2016 5,780.49 5,792.97 5,775.35 5,782.71

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of all transactions where a Director and/or other related parties might have a potential interest are provided to the Board for their review and approval, and the 
interested Director neither participates in the discussions, nor do they vote on such matters.

On quarterly bases, the details of the related party transactions are submitted to the Board for review and approval as part of approving the bank’s quarterly financial 
statements.
 
Details of all the related party transactions are provided to the shareholders as part of the financial statements submitted for approval at the Annual General Meeting. 

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW
The Board gives great importance to maintaining a strong control environment and Board review has covered all controls, including financial, operational, compliance and 
risk management. The Board has established a management structure that clearly defines roles and responsibility and reporting lines and has approved the policies. 

Financial information is prepared using appropriate accounting policies that are consistently applied. Operational procedures and controls have been established to facilitate 
complete, accurate and timely processing of transactions and the safeguarding of assets through policies and procedures manuals, desk performance instructions and other 
circulars.

SHAREHOLDERS 
Communication with shareholders and investors 

The Board is committed to ensure that all material information relating to the Bank’s business operations is regularly communicated to its stakeholders and investors.  

All material information relating to the Bank, its products, its operations and annual and quarterly financial statements are posted on the Bank’s website. The Bank’s web-
site address is: www.alizzislamic.com

The quarterly, half-yearly, and annual results of operations of the Bank are published in leading Arabic and English newspapers in the Sultanate of Oman.  After completion 
of the statutory audit, the annual report and summary financial statements are sent by post to all shareholders along with the notice of the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting of the Bank.  

The Bank did not achieve profit in 2016 accordingly will not distribute dividend for 2016. 

Distribution of Shareholding:
Major shareholders ( 5% and above)

Table 13

 Shareholder name No. of shares as on % of Capital 
  31st  December 2016 

Aabar investments Company  200,000,000 20.00

First Energy Oman 150,000,000 15.00

Tasameem Real Estate Company LLC 150,000,000 15.00

Huriah Company LLC  100,000,000 10.00

Al Khonji Holding LLC 67,798,806 6.77

Civil Service Employees Pension Fund 55,164,969 5.52

A copy of the Management Discussion and Analysis is circulated as part of the Annual report. 
There are no Global Depository Receipts/Warrants or any convertible instruments outstanding. 
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NON COMPLIANCE

There has neither been any non-compliance of legal requirements nor have been any penalties or strictures imposed by the regulators on any matters relating to the 
Capital Market Authority over the last three years.

The Bank has been imposed penalties of RO 4,500 by Central Bank of Oman for non-compliance over the last three years.

AUDITORS

During the Annual General Meeting, your Board of Directors intends to propose for Shareholder’s approval the appointment of external Auditors for 2016 as per statutory 
requirements. 

PROFILE OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services. EY is committed to doing its part in building a better working world. The insights and quality 
services which EY delivers help build trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the world over. 

The MENA practice of EY has been operating in the region since 1923 and employs over 6,500 professionals. EY has been operating in Oman since 1974 and is a leading 
professional services firm in the country. EY MENA forms part of EY’s EMEIA practice, with over 4,400 partners and approximately 1,00,000 professionals. Globally, EY 
operates in more than 150 countries and employs 231,000 professionals in 700+ offices. Please visit ey.com for more information about EY. 

During the year 2016, RO. 43,354 was accrued for the external auditors towards the audit and other services. 

DECLARATION

The Board of Directors declares its liability for preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable standards and rules.

For the year under review the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control policies and procedures and is satisfied that the Bank’s 
internal control are effective and that appropriate procedures are in place to implement the code’s requirements. 

The Board of Directors confirms that there are no material issues that affect the continuation of the Bank and its ability to continue its operations during the next 
financial year. 

Taimur A. Al Said 
Chairman

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



30

Shari’a Supervisory
Board Report

REPORT OF THE SHARI’A SUPERVISORY BOARD
TO THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF ALIZZ ISLAMIC BANK
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Praise be to Allah and to the messenger, Mohamed, May Blessing of 
Allah be upon him.

To the shareholders of Alizz Islamic Bank

Pursuant to the guidelines set out in the Islamic Banking Regulatory 
Framework issued by the Central Bank of Oman, Shari’a Supervisory 
Board prepares a comprehensive report on the business and transactions 
of the bank during the year. The objective of this report is to illustrate 
the extent of the Bank’s compliance with the Shari’a rules and principles 
and with the Fatwa and resolutions of the Board.

The responsibility of ensuring that the bank is operating in accordance 
with the rules and principles of the Islamic Shari’a rests with the 
management. The management is responsible for the activities and 
business of the bank and carrying them according to the basis on which 
the activity and the business of the bank is based, viz., full compliance 
with the rules and principles of the Islamic Shari’a. Our responsibility 
is to express independent Shari’a opinion based on our review of the 
documents that we perused and prepare a report for you.  

We have reviewed the basis of the Bank’s business, its financial results, 
its investments and other operations with the objective of expressing 
opinion on whether the bank has complied with the Shari’a rules and 
principles in the light of the Fatwas, resolutions and directives we issued 
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Therefore, we have reviewed the financial results of the bank, its balance 
sheet and income and expenses statement as well as reviewing the 
deposits of the bank with other  banks, all of which are Islamic banks 
and windows. 

Sheikh Dr. Mohamed Abdul 
Raheem Sultan Al Ulamaa

Chairman of the Board

Sheikh Dr. Usama Mohamed Saad Bahar
Member of the Board

Sheikh Naser bin Yusuf bin Naser Al Azri
Member of the Board
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We further reviewed the areas of investment in which the 
bank entered, in addition to our pre-reviews of the investment 
processes in which the bank entered during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2016. We have approved the Shari’a 
acceptable transactions and requested the amendment of 
those that require any amendments in accordance with the 
Shari’a requirements.

We have obtained the information and interpretations that 
we considered as necessary to provide us with adequate 
evidences that are sufficient to enable us to give reasonable 
assurance that the bank did not breach the rules and principles 
of Shari’a, within the scope of the Bank’s different activities 
and businesses reviewed by the Board.

In our opinion 

FIRST:
In its different activities, investments, deposits and businesses 
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the bank 
has complied with Shari’a rules and principles of the Islamic, 
in the view of the documents that were made available to 
us, taking into consideration the Shari’a amendments and 
treatments that we have requested on the transactions, 
contracts and investments presented to us and amended those 
that require any amendments.

SECOND:
Whereas the Board of Directors of the bank is not authorized to 
pay the Zakat on behalf of the shareholders, the responsibility 
for payment of Zakat on the Bank’s shares lays at the part of 
the shareholders in compliance with the third pillar of Islam. 
The Shari’a Audit & Compliance Department in the Bank will 
calculate the amount payable and will inform the shareholders 
about that the same.

THIRD:
Profit and loss computation for the year ended 31 December 
2016 was made in accordance with the Shari’a rules.

FOURTH:
The revenues that do not comply with the Shari’a rules were 
forfeited and deposited in Charity Account, in an intention to 
disburse them after the approval of the Shari’a Supervisory 
Board of the Bank.

While issuing this report, the Board confirms that the use of any 
document, instrument or contract or entering into any agreement 
or investment or carrying out any of the activities shall be 
approved in advance by the Board to ensure that it complies 
with the Shari’a requirements and the correct procedures shall 
be put into consideration while executing them.

The Board would like to avail this opportunity to emphasize 
to the executive management of the Bank the importance of 
providing training to all the Bank’s staff for to avoid mistakes or 
their reoccurrence.

The Board would like to congratulate the bank for its good 
approach in complying with the rules and principles of the 
Islamic Shari’a for the sake of Allah and we beseech to Allah to 
bestow the boon in livelihood and business.

May Prayers and Blessings of Allah be on His Prophet Mohamed.

Date: 8 Jamada Al Awla 1437 Hijri coinciding with 5th February 
2017.

SHARI’A SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT
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1. Prize Account based on personal saving account

2.  Overdraft Facility for HNWI Current Accounts 

To stimulate the habit of saving among its clients, the bank would like to put up a new savings account product which grants the clients the opportunity to invest their 
money in activities compliant with the provisions of Islamic law, in addition to chances to win cash prizes periodically (weekly, monthly, quarterly, and yearly).

 A) Sharia principle of the account:
 Like the other investment saving accounts in Alizz Islamic Bank, the new product shall be offered according to Mudaraba Contract, where the client shall be   
 the provider of the fund “Rabu Alm’al” and the bank shall be the entrepreneur “Mudarib”. The resulting profits shall be distributed pursuant to the agreed profit   
 sharing ratio.
 All cash prizes shall be provided from the Bank’s fund (shareholders account) as a gift (hiba) to the winning account holder.

Alizz islamic bank offers its customers Shari’a compliant Current Account under the Islamic principle of ‘Qard –Hassan. The bank is proposing to offer temporary overdraft 
facilities to High Networth Individuals (HNWI) on their current account in order to make their daily banking easier and allow them to meet temporary shortfalls in their 
current accounts.
The facility will be offered as per the following features:
 Temporary overdraft 
 Qard Hassan from the Bank to the customer
 Qard Hassan Limit of (Maximum amount): 1,000 RO 
 Qard Hassan Tenor will be 1 year maximum. 
 Obligation to donate against late payment is 1% per day of the due amount.
 Overdraft fees are not applicable. The Bank will not impose any fees on customers in return for this feature.

 B) Important points about the product:
 1. This product is offered to all the bank’s retails clients except the following:
  I. Employees of Alizz Islamic Bank, their spouses and children.
  II. Customers who have failed in any financing due payments to the bank. 

 2. The number of chances a customer has to enter the draws depends on the average of the balance deposited during the period identified for draw. Each   
 deposits of 100 Omani Rials grants the account holder one chance to enter the draw.  
 3. Customers that have already won a prize draw will still be entitled to enter the remaining prize draws for which they are qualified. 
 4. The automated draw system is provided by an independent third party and has been designed in a manner that guarantees that the results cannot be   
 manipulated or tampered with. Additionally, an independent supervisor shall be invited to oversee the draw process.
 5. The proposed weightage for this product is 2.95 % whereas the expected profit rate is 0.2%.

 We seek the opinion of the esteemed board regarding the mentioned product.

 The board Fatwa
 1. No objection on this product, provided bank’s compliance to the following controls:
 The prizes shall be given from the bank shareholders’ fund, and not from the fund of the accounts holders.
 2. All marketing advertisements shall mention that these prizes are hiba (gift) from the shareholders fund, and that the prize is paid by the shareholders at   
 their own discretion without being an obligation on them.
 3. The chances of the participants in the draws shall not be in favor of one participant over another. 
 

Fatwas of Sharia
Supervisory Board
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 The board Fatwa
 The overdraft service can be provided with the following conditions:
 1. The overdraft amount shall not exceed RO 1000.
 2. The bank shall not impose any fees on this service.
 3. The amount for Qard-Hassan shall be from the shareholders’ funds
 4. No additional amount shall be imposed due to late payment.
 5.The bank shall impose 1 % of the borrowed amount for each day of delay in order to prevent the borrower from being late to pay on specified         
    time, and the bank shall be committed to transfer these amounts to the charity account.

3.  Finance Takeover from other Islamic banks:

4.  Pledge of Non-Shari’a compliant shares or bonds:

5.  Changing Ijarah Rate before the end of the existing Ijarah period:

Some customers would like to transfer their home financing based on Ijarah Mutahia Biltamleek or diminishing musharaka from other Islamic Banks to Alizz Islamic Bank. 
The common practice in Islamic Banks is that the sale price of the asset is the outstanding balance of the customer. However, this practice has been declined by one of 
the Islamic banks which requested that the sale price should be the market value of the asset at the time of signing the contract with the customer.
We seek the opinion of the esteemed board on this regard?

Is it allowed to pledge shares of companies not included in the Shari’a Index or interest-based bonds as a security against various financings provided to clients?

We want the opinion of the esteemed board on whether the bank can amend the Ijarah profit rate during the existing Ijarah period, i.e before its expiry.

The board Fatwa
Originally, sale is concluded by mutual agreement between the two parties (seller and buyer). For all similar transactions, Islamic Banks follow the practice of 
purchasing the asset at a value equivalent to the outstanding balance to safeguard the interests of their  customers, which is the objective of the transaction between 
the bank (property owner) and the customer (lessee of the property) under Ijarah Muntahia Biltamleek where the price of the property is considered.

The board Fatwa
The bank should request sharia compliant securities. In case such securities are not available, these shares or bonds can be pledged provided that the bank shall not 
liquidate them, rather the client or a third party shall sell such shares and bonds and collect their sale price to pay its debt to the bank.

The board Fatwa
The Ijarah rate of the existing Ijarah period may not be amended except by mutual agreement and satisfaction of both parties. It is permissible to amend the rate for 
the future leasing period at any time by the bank, Allah only knows.

6.  Appointing the customer as an agent to receive the goods in documentary credits:
In most of our documentary credits, the goods are shipped by land as they are imported from neighboring countries by trucks. Often, the goods arrive at night to the 
customer’s stores or location, therefore we request the esteemed Board to express its opinion regarding the following:
 1. Appointing the customer as an agent to receive the goods on behalf of the bank. The customer shall undertake not to dispose the 
 goods until Murabaha Sale Contract is signed.
 2. The interim between the arrival of goods and the signing of Murabaha Sale Contract shall not exceed 3 working days to prevent the client
 from disposing the goods.

The board Fatwa
The customer can be appointed to receive the goods on behalf of the bank, provided that the customer shall undertake not to dispose the goods until concluding Murabaha 
Contract between the bank and the customer. To protect the bank from the risks in terms of any damages or dispose of goods by the customer, the customer can send, 
after receipt of the goods as an agent, an offer to the bank to purchase the goods either by reporting to the bank on the first working day after receipt of the goods or by 
the considered means of communications such as e-mail or registered phone calls. 
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8. Returning an amount to the bank by the purchase orderer who took the amount by conclude from the asset seller: 

9. Demolishing part of a house leased to client:

10. Promotional offer to grant grace period: 

A customer bought a plot of land by Murabaha. The valuation of the land was RO 50,000; however, the seller wanted RO 47,000 only as a price for his land. Accordingly, 
the customer agreed with the seller to sell the land to the bank with an amount of RO 50,000 provided that the customer takes the difference between the two amounts 
which is RO 3,000. After concluding Murabaha Contract, and after the customer took the amount  mentioned above he asked for Fatwa for the legality of what he had 
done. The fatwa received by him stated that he must return the amount to the bank and he is not entitled to take the amount, as such the client came back to the bank 
to return the amount.
We kindly request the esteemed board to inform us about the mechanism required to return this amount to the bank.

A customer has home finance through Ijarah Mutahia Biltamleek. The leased house consisted of one part built with mud and another part built with concrete. The 
customer requested to demolish the part that was built with mud and rebuild it by financing from the bank, However, this part of the house was not mentioned in the 
valuation report submitted to the bank when purchasing the house from the seller.

The Bank would like to launch a promotional offer that grants new customers, the following features:
 A grace period of three months.
 Free life Takaful Insurance for the first three months (where the bank pays the Takaful contribution).
The profit calculation starts from the date of signing the contract. The offer shall be optional and not mandatory, as the client can start paying the installments from 
the first month if he wishes to do so. 
The mentioned offer includes the following products:
 Home finance “Ijarah”.
 Auto finance “Murabaha”.
 Personal finance “Goods Murabaha”.
 Personal finance “Service Ijarah”.
We kindly request you to express your opinion regarding the mentioned promotional offer.
 

The board Fatwa
The board confirms that the price of the commodity intended to be sold by Murabaha must be specified in the contract and it is not allowed to increase the price at a 
later period. The bank may sell the commodity immediately after its possession at a price which include the cost and profit. This price shall remain unchangeable. 

The board Fatwa
1: The whole transaction shall be canceled from the system. The purchase price shall be amended in the original Asset Purchase Contract with the seller. The  
Murabahah Sale Contract with the customer shall be terminated.
2: The customer shall return the amount of RO 3,000 to the bank.
3: A new transaction shall be created by concluding Murabahah Sale Contract with the client where the purchase price of the asset is RO 47,000.

The board Fatwa
The parties shall agree on amending the Ijarah subject matter, so the rental shall be for the existing part. Then, Istisna’a Contract shall be concluded between the bank 
as Mustasni’a and the contractor as Sani’a to demolish the mud part and reconstruct a new building in its place on the land which is owned by the bank, along with the 
conclusion of Forward Ijarah Contract with the client for the new building. 

7. Installment payment to supplier in LC:
We have issued a Letter of Credit for the import of equipment where the cost shall be paid to the supplier in three installments; advance payment, payment on receipt of 
goods and final payment when installing and testing the equipment. By error, we signed a Murabaha Contract after paying the first payment, which means that the cost 
of the contract was the amount of the first payment only. However the customer has not paid any installment to date, therefore we kindly request the board to consider 
revoking the Murabaha Contract and signing a new contract where the cost shall be all the payments mentioned above.
On the other hand, the bank cannot know the date of the final payment until after the completion of installation and testing of the equipment and therefore we are 
unable to calculate the cost plus the profit and signing Murabaha Sale Contract until after the installation of said equipment. We therefore kindly request the esteemed 
board to advice whether it is permissible to sign the contract upon the final payment.
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11. Financing properties under construction through Diminishing Musharakah:

12. The consultant fees to oversee the construction:

The product applied currently by the bank for financing the construction of properties is the Forward Ijarah product. Recently, Central Bank of Oman instructed the Islamic 
Banks to register all the properties financed through Ijarah in the name of the bank. Customers of the bank are requesting to finance the building the properties through 
diminishing musharakah, where the registration of the property is allowed to be in the name of one of the parties (who is the customer in this case).
According to the existing structure of Diminishing Musharakah product, the bank earns its profit from the sale of its shares of the property to the client. However, for the 
property to be constructed, the construction period ranges from six months to three years and therefore the bank shall not earn profits during the construction period, 
because the bank cannot sell its shares as the construction of the property is not complete yet. Not acquiring any profits throughout the construction period will have a 
negative impact on the bank performance and the continuity of its business.     

In Forward Ijarah product, the bank signs Istisna’a Contract with the contractor and Forward Ijarah Contract with the client. The client himself makes an agreement with 
the consultant, and the client ,not the bank, pays the fees to the consultant.
We kindly request the board to express its opinion on the permissibility of that.
  

The board Fatwa
No objection to grant the customers a grace period for the payment of the installments as long as the contract is signed according to what the contract parties agreed 
upon in terms of the rental in case of Ijarah or the profit margin in case of Murabaha. Then, the deferment in paying the first installments and the grant of a grace period 
is accepted.

The board Fatwa
The bank may receive installments from the partner customer during the construction period as a down-payment to purchase shares from the bank on the agreed periods 
according to his promise to purchase. In case the construction is not completing, the installments received by the bank as down payment shall be returned to the partner 
customer and accordingly no shares shall be transferred to him from the bank shares.

The board Fatwa
Since the building is owned by the bank as Mustasni’a, then the fees of the consultant shall be borne by the bank unless been donated by the customer. The customer can 
also pay the fees on behalf of the bank provided that the customer claim the fees he paid from the bank.  

Question
Is the bank allowed to receive installments during the construction period, which include the bank profit during the construction period in addition to the normal profit and 
the principal as down payment to the purchase of a share, and in case of not completing the construction, the paid amount will be refunded to the client and the shares 
will not be sold to the client?

FATWAS OF SHARIA SUPERVISORY REPORT



36

Management Discussion
& Analysis Report



37

The Management Discussion and Analysis report is an update on significant activities of Alizz Islamic Bank (the Bank) for the year ended 31 December 2016. It contains 
the Bank’s achievements, strategy and key developments in its business and support functions.

OMAN’S ECONOMY 

There was a slowdown in Oman’s economy in 2016, as record-low oil prices resulted in a reduction of export revenues and Government income. The average oil price 
remained around USD 40 per barrel compared to the budgeted estimate of USD 45 per barrel which resulted in an increase in the actual budget deficit to OMR 5.3 billion 
from OMR 3.3 billion envisaged earlier.

The Government launched a variety of initiatives aimed at enhancing the revenues and optimising costs. In addition the plan aimed at diversifying the economy and 
reducing reliance on the oil and gas sector. The initiatives aimed to boost non-oil revenues and increasing their contribution to the economy, enhancing fees for hiring 
foreign workers, introducing tax on certain commodities and limiting tax and custom duty exemptions granted to establishments. Cost rationalisation measures included 
reducing capital expenditure on non-developmental projects, rationalising subsidies and the divestment of Government assets. In addition, the “Tanfeedh” programme 
developed and launched by the Supreme Council for Planning in 2016 has also identified projects and initiatives for diversification of the economy which will be prioritised 
and implemented by the Government in the coming years.

THE BANKING SECTOR

The Banking sector in Oman continued to grow steadily, with total credit and Islamic financing reaching OMR 22.1 billion and total deposits at OMR 20.4 billion by the 
end of 2016, from OMR 20.1 billion and OMR 19.4 billion respectively in 2015.  During the same period, the market share of Islamic financing grew to 11% from 8.9% 
of total credit.  However, in the short to medium term, a continuation of low oil prices may lead to further tightening of liquidity and possibly lower credit growth for the 
banking sector at large.  

Key challenges for the banking sector in 2017 will be constrained liquidity, possibly slower credit growth, volatile capital markets and rising cost of funds. Strong capital 
adequacy ratios, conservative regulatory framework of the Central Bank of Oman and strong asset quality of existing portfolios helped the banks to face the challenges in 
2016. Despite the challenges, the banks are likely to benefit in 2017 from an expected improvement in economic conditions as a result of rise in oil prices. 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

In response to market conditions, the Bank has carefully reviewed its credit policies to avoid sectors that were more vulnerable to volatile conditions and mobilized deposits 
aggressively to remain liquid at all times. This strategy has helped maintain a strong balance sheet for the Bank.

The Bank’s financing portfolio reached OMR 312.8 million registering a growth of 56.8% from the same period last year. Deposits grew by OMR 129.6 million 
representing a growth of 80.3%. Net operating income grew by 49.6% from 2015 to reach OMR 8.9 million. Due to the increase in income, cost controls and strong 
monitoring of credit quality, the net loss of the Bank reduced by 11.8% from 2015 to reach OMR 4.7 million.

WHOLESALE BANKING 

Wholesale Banking consists of following strategic business units, which have all made significant progress in 2016:
 Corporate Banking;
 Project Financing;
 Government & Institutional Banking; 
 Financial Institutions; and 
 Treasury & Global Markets.

Overall, Wholesale Banking performed well and grew by 52.8% in terms of financing and 64.8% in terms of deposits from 2015. The Bank’s trade finance business has 
also grown substantially and will remain a key area for growth in 2017. The Bank has strengthened its team by recruiting experienced relationship managers to effectively 
compete with local and regional players by offering exceptional services to the corporate sector in Oman.
The Bank established a dedicated Government and Institutional Banking Division under Wholesale Banking which provides a full array of banking solutions for Government 
and related entities. The team consists of relationship managers who understand the unique challenges and provide products and services tailored to their needs.  

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
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Government and Institutional Banking is the major source of funding of the Bank and has performed exceedingly well in difficult market conditions.  With the right 
strategy, dedicated team and innovative product offerings, the Government team is expected to perform even better in 2017. 

The Bank has been granted a license to perform Investment Banking activities and is currently working on some of the largest and prestigious transactions in the Omani 
market. In collaboration with some of the biggest regional and global players, the Bank intends to establish its name in the regional Investment Banking landscape.

The Treasury & Global Market Division’s focus for 2016 was to play a fundamental role in the most critical element of the bank, namely; liquidity management. This year, 
the Bank’s Treasury Division evolved into an active player in the Omani Islamic Financial Market enabling the Bank to successfully manage liquidity at all times whilst also 
ensuring the safekeeping of cash resources enabling effective growth across the bank’s business units. 

Treasury has been successful in contributing to the Bank’s growth, and continually strives to achieve a better understanding of the Bank’s customer needs in partnership 
with the Retail and Corporate Banking Divisions. 

RETAIL BANKING 

Retail Banking witnessed exceptional growth and achieved a number of key milestones in 2016 by continuing to focus on providing value-added products and services 
to the customer. The Bank progressed with its growth and expansion strategy during the year, further augmenting the Bank’s distribution channels and reach by adding 
multiple customer touch-points and through the strengthening of Direct Sales teams covered multiple locations across the Sultanate. 

The Bank expanded its distribution network by opening a new branch in Muscat thus bringing the network to 7 branches. 

The Bank introduced Oman’s first Shari’a compliant prize based saving product “Bushra” during the year which owing to its unique features became one of the flagship 
product of the Bank in a short space of time. Bushra is a Mudaraba based product where customers earn monthly profit, as well as the chance to win one of the many 
exciting cash prizes. The customer also enjoys a free debit card, enjoying a number of benefits and discounts at various merchant outlets.

2016 saw the Bank launch, ‘Tharwa’, a segment designed exclusively to provide world class priority banking services to High Net-Worth Individuals in the country.  The 
launch of Tharwa also saw the launch of the World Master Credit card for this exclusive segment. 

In an effort to cater to developing needs of customers in the Sultanate, Alizz Islamic Bank introduced a Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) banking segment. 
This segment is designed to meet the expectations of small business customers by providing them with easy financing options. This initiative is also in line with the 
Governments efforts of helping small business to become successful.

Adding to the Banks awards’ portfolio, the Retail Banking team was recognized by multiple business entities this year some of the most notable awards were: 
 Best Islamic Bank – Retail (Oman) by the prestigious The Islamic Business and Finance magazine for 2016: 
 Most innovative Bank in Oman 2016 by Global Business Outlook; 
 Best Islamic Financial Institution 2016 Global Financial Awards; 
 Best Islamic Bank in Oman 2016  by World Islamic Forum;
 Housing Finance Firm of the Year 2016 by Oman Real Estate Forum.

INTERNAL AUDIT 

Internal Audit forms the ‘Third Line of Defense’ under the Bank’s risk management model maintaining its independent status by operating under the direction and guidance 
of the Board Audit Committee and reporting directly to the Audit Committee Chairman. 

The objective of the Audit function in 2016 was to provide reasonable assurance to both, the Board of Directors and Senior Management that the internal control 
environment safeguards the assets of both customers and the Bank. This was achieved by employing a risk-based audit methodology to evaluate the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control systems, and confirm that they were aligned with the strategic objectives and policies of the organization.

The Annual Audit Plan took into account all operations of the Bank, which were audited on a cyclical basis. All audits were performed adhering to the international audit 
standards issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors. During 2016, all main areas of the Bank’s operations were reviewed to enable us to give an informed view of the 
state of the bank’s internal control environment. Areas reviewed included Information Technology, Wholesale and Retail Finance, the Bank’s branch network, and the 
majority of the support services.  
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During 2016, the Audit function introduced fraud awareness training courses primarily aimed at branch staff, however, these are now being rolled out to other departments 
within the Bank.

COMPLIANCE 

In 2016, the Bank commenced utilization of the Anti-Money Laundering (AML) system and with the issuance of the revised AML Law issued via Royal Decree 30/2016 
which led to a comprehensive review of the Bank’s AML policy. This subsequently strengthened the safeguards stipulated by the law, and the oversight by the Central Bank 
of Oman. AML training was provided to all branch staff to reemphasize a clear understanding of the processes in place and creating awareness for new employees of the 
malice of money laundering. In addition, the AML training was followed up with an AML e-learning module that helped further cement their understanding and to ensure 
continued vigilance.

Furthermore, in 2016 the Compliance team continued: 
 With monthly follow-ups and reporting issues;
 Reviewing various policies and procedures and other documents to ensure alignment to regulatory requirements;
 To manage the stipulated Central Bank of Oman annual examination from start to finish;
 With various reviews of the Bank’s processes and systems, helping to identify gaps and in turn ensure suitable controls were in place to mitigate any    
compliance risk; 
 Playing a pivotal role in obtaining regulatory approval for various activities, e.g. branch licenses, new product approvals, amongst others;
 Providing FATCA training for all branches; this course covered the fundamentals of the U.S. Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) Law.

SHARI’A AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT (SACD)

As Shari’a compliance is the essence and cornerstone of Islamic banking, the Bank has to ensure that all its products and services are Shari’a compliant.  To achieve this, 
the Bank has appointed a group of eminent Shari’a scholars specialized in the jurisprudence of Islamic transactions to form the Shari’a Supervisory Board. (SSB) In addition, 
the Bank established the Shari’a Audit and Compliance Department (SACD) which has been in operation since the bank’s launch. 

The SACD has played various important roles towards their ultimate objective of Shari’a Compliance across all customer dealings, products and services. To that end, 
the SACD reviewed the Bank’s products documentation, processes and procedures to ensure that all of the Bank’s transactions have been conducted in line with Shari’a 
principles and guidelines. Reports on their findings have been submitted to the SSB and the management who have taken the steps required to tackle the issues in the 
reports. 

In 2016, the SACD conducted a number of training sessions to the Bank’s staff, both existing and new joiners, to ensure their full understanding of the underlying Shari’a 
principles and to equip them with sufficient knowledge to perform their tasks professionally and in line with Shari’a standards. 

Furthermore, the SACD has been indispensable in terms of providing Shari’a compliant solutions to the Bank’s customers, especially in terms of corporate customers’ 
needs where more sophisticated structured products are often required. In addition, in 2016 the SACD have been involved in the development of different products that 
were launched during the year, as well as products that are due to be launched in 2017; all of which has been done under the supervision and guidance of the Shari’a 
Supervisory Board (SSB). 

All of the SACD activities are directed by the SSB, who have regular meetings throughout the year to discuss the matters pertaining to the Bank’s transactions and 
activities, issue Fatwas and consider audit reports; in 2016, the SSB met on five occasions. 

LEGAL  

The Legal Department was responsible for the provision of legal advisory services within the Bank and ensuring effective management of legal and contractual risks as per 
the Islamic Banking Regulatory Framework (IBRF).  The Department was also involved in regulatory consultation on legislation requiring legal updates and provided training 
to the employees of the Bank on the legal aspects of their role.  Among the various responsibilities, the Department was involved in extensively reviewing all Islamic 
banking product documentation to legalize it to Omani jurisdiction context, and also provided legal opinion on corporate matters and assisted in the registration of the 
Bank’s trademarks and patents with the relevant authorities.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
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NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Enabling technology is our key factor in providing a competitive edge to the Bank over its peers. IT continued to provide resolute support across the spectrum of the Bank’s 
departments to produce a scalable and optimal capability for transaction processing, telecommunications, technology and administrative services. The IT team successfully 
delivered a number of key projects in 2016 including the implementation of the banks:
 E-Learning System;
 Collections system;
 Segmentation and the wealth management segments;
 Business Intelligence;
 Treasury Front Office System (Acumen) enhancements;
 Retail and Operations Dashboards;
 Service Desk and Network monitoring tools.

In addition, IT also upgraded the banks: 
 Electronic Cheque Clearing (ECCS) system as per CBO requirement;
 Core banking environment enhancements and upgrade;
 Testing of DR systems.
 This year the IT department provided cutting edge innovation to customers with implementation of secure technology solutions, namely: 
 Payment gateway as per CBO requirement;
 Bushra prize draw system; 
 Bank’s E-statement provision; 
 Account opening facility using National ID cards
 Bank’s Izdihar and upfront wakala products

These advances helped strengthen and enhance the Bank’s position to drive scalability, agility, resilience and governance.

MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS 

The Marketing and Corporate Communications team at Alizz Islamic Bank has been working to raise public awareness about the Bank and its prominence in the field of 
Islamic Banking. In 2016, the Marketing Team adopted new mediums to communicate with customers and reach out to non-customers. In addition the Bank greatly 
leveraged its social media prowess to fulfill its ambition in being at the forefront in terms of reaching out to its technologically savvy customer base. Our strong digital 
footprint has ensured that the Bank has become the most followed Islamic Bank in Oman during 2016 on different social media platforms.

One of the objectives of the Bank is to spread the awareness of Islamic banking across the country and the Marketing team at the Bank is at the forefront of this effort by 
holding sessions throughout the year. In 2016 the Marketing team along with the banks Sharia department carried out many Islamic banking awareness sessions in leading 
universities and educational institutions in the country.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

At Alizz Islamic Bank CSR is used to compliment the Banks mission to deliver exceptional and sustainable results to our Shareholders. This is carried out by integrating 
social concerns into our values, strategy and operational transparency. We are therefore committed to play a leading role in the communities we serve.

Alizz Islamic Bank has initiated several projects that have had a positive impact on the community and created value for all. To help create a culture of ‘Employee 
Volunteerism’, Bank employees were given time during working hours to support volunteering initiatives such as Iftaar Sayim, which was Alizz’s flagship annual volunteering 
campaign for 2016, taking place a week before Ramadan.

The Bank was involved in helping build a school for young students looking to learn the Holy Quran. This school project was instrumental in bringing the small community 
of the area together and help the young minds get exposed to the knowledge of the Holy Quran.  The bank also considers it a duty to annually provide assistance to NGOs 
and organizations that are carrying out activities aimed at physically challenged children, in 2016 the Bank reached out to young Autistic children through Autistic Centre.
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HUMAN RESOURCES 

In 2016, the Human Resources Division worked towards attracting and retaining talented individuals, with a view to building a strong workforce, capable of delivering 
exceptional and sustainable results to our stakeholders. During the year, HRD managed to recruit 54 talented individuals, which has enriched the Bank’s talent pool. HRD 
diligently ensures an independent, impartial and transparent recruitment policy, the aim of which has been to select suitable individuals who meet the requirements of the 
roles and prove themselves to be a cultural fit who are able to demonstrate Alizz Islamic Bank’s core values: integrity, excellence and teamwork.

In conjunction with Management, the HR Department actively encourages a learning culture across the organization. To this effect, in 2016 the HRD arranged 759 
training days in different spheres of banking and general management; these training sessions benefited more than 240 employees across the Bank.

In 2016, the Bank implemented a robust E-learning platform to encourage staff to adapt and experience digital learning in a move that would support a shift from 
traditional class room training.

In spite of being a new bank, Alizz Islamic Bank is a firm believer in local talent and has managed to stay well ahead of regulatory requirements in terms of Omanisation 
levels, achieving 89.7% Omanisation by the end of 2016 with continued improvement envisaged in the coming year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Since inception, The Bank has exerted dedicated efforts to build a sound and strong risk governance structure and to spread the culture throughout all tiers of the 
organisation’s hierarchy. In 2016, the Bank leveraged on initiatives taken last year to further strengthen its existing processes and realign them to the changing market 
dynamics.

On Credit risk, the Bank established a comprehensive program of quarterly reviews of large exposures to provide early warning signals on deteriorating exposures and to 
prepare counter strategy for the management of those relationships.  The credit underwriting process for Retail Banking was streamlined to allow for faster turnaround 
while maintaining adequate oversight over the whole process. The Bank also developed a Risk Adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC) model for corporate financing which is 
under testing and will be implemented in 2017.

The governance process on market risk was further strengthened by establishing models for value at risk and shock analysis for its portfolio of proprietary investments.  
Risk tolerance limits for foreign exchange, profit rate and liquidity risks were realigned. 

The Bank completed its end to end testing for disaster recovery and periodical testing for Business Continuity Management. The Bank has also implemented tools to test 
its resilience towards IT security risks including Penetration Testing and Vulnerability Assessment. The Bank is in the process of establishing a Security Operations Centre 
(SOC) which will help to identify IT security risks on a timely basis.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES FOR 2017 

The Bank has continued to grow achieving the targets established by its Board of Directors. The Bank’s core strategic focus has been to:
 Deliver an exceptional and quality customer experience through continual enhancement of Alizz Islamic Bank’s services and customer convenience through
 state-of-the-art digital technology;
 Enhance liquidity and diversify funding sources;
 Increase fee based business;
 Maintain Asset quality;
 Run an efficient organization and control costs.

Delivering an exceptional customer experience continues to be the central focus of the Bank’s strategy, as we aim to be a class apart from our competitors. We are 
committed to offer our customers the best banking experience, not only in terms of Islamic banking, but in the banking sector as a whole.  This will also contributes 
towards promoting Islamic banking as a superior alternative to conventional banking. The Bank has launched a comprehensive program “Baader” aiming to enhance the 
customer service experience to a new level. The program includes training of front line staff, an incentive program with prime focus on service quality, a business process 
reengineering exercise to simplify processes and improve turnaround times and an innovation lab.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
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Enhancing the liquidity has been a priority, especially in the current economic environment. The Bank has formulated a structured funding plan which covers: 

 Specialised liabilities mobilization team;
 Tapping capital markets at right times;
 Enhancing the stable retail deposit base through expansion of the bank’s distribution network, new attractive saving products and improving cross sales ratio
 of the Bank;
 Diversifying the institutional deposit base;
 Tighter internal limits for liquidity gaps.
 
The Bank aims to significantly enhance its fee based business lines. The Bank has already started offering investment banking activities especially corporate finance and 
financing advisory services.  We are also revamping the card business to boost sales and utilization while other fee based services are being launched in the near future 
along with innovative new trade finance products and services.

The measures the bank has implemented in 2016 fortified the ability to adapt in a highly competitive and changing economic environment thereby strengthening our 
position as a market leader in Islamic banking in the Sultanate. Moreover, we continue to drive core business growth through strategic plans for both Retail and Corporate 
banking. 

In Retail Banking, the bank continues to partner with various government and private institutions to provide innovative financial solutions for their employees. In the coming 
years, Alizz Islamic Bank will expand its distribution network by opening new branches, enhancing its online and mobile banking platform and establishing a strong sales 
network.  

In Corporate Banking, our primary focus is on large, mid-sized corporates and the SME sector.  Within these segments, the concentration will be on core banking products, 
as well as trade finance business and ensuring that we meet the treasury needs of our large corporate clients.

The Bank will continue to operate as an efficient and lean organization through the use of technological tools, designing simple and efficient business processes and 
attracting and retaining quality talent. We are certain that this approach will provide us with a great competitive advantage for our long-term growth and success. Our 
priority is to continue to grow a quality portfolio and secure long-term contracts that will ultimately result in sustainable returns. 

Salaam Al Shaksy
Chief Executive Officer
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45BASEL II, PILLAR III AND BASEL III REPORT

1. INTRODUCTION

2. SCOPE OF APPLICATION

3. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Alizz Islamic Bank SAOG (“the Bank”) was incorporated in the Sultanate of Oman, as a public joint stock company to carry out Islamic banking activities in accordance with 
the principles of Shari’a. The Bank commenced its operations on 30 September 2013 and is currently operating with seven branches.

The Bank has established its risk management framework in accordance with the requirements of Basel accord and Islamic Banking Regulatory Framework issued by the 
Central Bank of Oman (CBO).

Basel II, Pillar III disclosures include qualitative and quantitative information about the Bank’s risk management framework, Shari’a governance and capital adequacy.

The Bank’s shares are listed on the Muscat Securities Market “MSM” and its principle place of business is in Muscat, Sultanate of Oman.

The Bank which is an Islamic Bank, is neither part of any group nor has any subsidiary, therefore Basel II and Basel III guidelines are applied at Bank level.

As there is no consolidation process, there are no differences in the basis of consolidation for financial reporting and for regulatory purposes. There are no restrictions 
applicable for transfer of funds or regulatory capital.

The Bank’s regulatory capital is calculated as per the guidelines issued by the CBO and it includes common share capital. The Bank has authorized share capital of OMR 
200 million divided into 2 billion shares of OMR 0.100 each, while it’s paid up capital is OMR 100 million divided into 1 billion shares of OMR 0.100 each.

The regulatory capital is classified into two categories – Tier I, and Tier II. The Bank’s Tier I capital comprises of equity shares, legal reserves and retained earnings, reduced 
by unrealized losses on investments categorized as fair value through equity, intangible assets and deferred tax.

Tier II capital comprises of general provisions held against financing portfolio to a maximum of 1.25% of the risk weighted assets, and any unrealized gain on investments 
categorized as fair value through equity, which is discounted by 55%.

Equity of Unrestricted Investment Account Holders (URIA) is not considered as part of regulatory capital and the Bank is not reducing its risk weighted assets for jointly 
financed assets.

Due to accumulated losses in the startup phase, Bank’s regulatory capital has fallen below minimum requirement of OMR 100 million. Bank is in the process of increasing 
the regulatory capital to the required level.

The Bank does not own any interest in any Takaful company or any other company.

2.1 QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

3.1 QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

2.2 QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES
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TIER I CAPITAL
Issued Capital
1 Paid-up capital
2 Legal reserves
3  Accumulated losses 

TOTAL GROSS TIER I CAPITAL

DEDUCTIONS

4 Cumulative Losses on Fair Value of investment classified as fair value through equity 
5 Deferred Tax Asset
6 Intangible Assets, including losses, cumulative unrealised losses recognised directly
     in equity

TIER I CAPITAL AFTER ALL DEDUCTIONS

TIER II CAPITAL
8 Cumulative fair value gains on AFS investments (up to 45%)
9 General financing loss provisions / Collective provision

10 TOTAL TIER II CAPITAL

DEDUCTIONS
11 TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM TIER II
TIER II CAPITAL (NET)

12 TOTAL REGULATORY CAPITAL

13 TOTAL AMOUNT OF UNRESTRICTED IAH FUNDS
14 PROFIT EQUALISATION RESERVE (PER)
15 INVESTMENT RISK RESERVE (IRR)                                                                                                                                                     

2015
RO

100,000,000 
289,969 

(18,981,331)

81,308,638 

 (126,721)
(2,532,694)

 (2,227,813)

76,421,410 

28,048
 3,771,375

 
3,799,423 

-   
3,799,423

 
80,220,833

64,519,497 
17,382 

-   

100,000,000 
289,969 

 (14,256,425)

86,033,544 

 (99,984)
 (1,942,158)
 (2,230,441)

81,760,961

1,450
 2,332,218 

2,333,668 

-   
2,333,668 

84,094,629

20,867,781 
-   
-   

2016
RO

3.2 QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Elements of Capital

4. CAPITAL ADEQUACY 

Approach for assessment of adequacy of Capital: 

The objective of the Bank is to maintain a strong Capital Adequacy Ratio and that the Bank remains adequately capitalized at all times. The capital requirement of the 
Bank is assessed with the compilation of the annual business plan, which takes into account the planned growth. The Capital Adequacy requirements are reviewed on an 
on-going basis by the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) and the Board of Directors (Board). Adequate capital in relation to the risk profile of the Bank’s assets 
leads to financial stability of the Bank and also results into increased confidence of the stakeholders.

4.1 QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
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Bank has ensured compliance to the applicable provisions of CBO in respect of Basel II and III framework. 

The Bank has in place an Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) Manual approved by the Board in line with the Basel II guidelines. The main objective of 
ICAAP is to ensure that the Bank not only satisfies the minimum regulatory capital requirements (Pillar 1) against credit, market, and operational risks, but also maintains 
adequate systems and controls for business risks, such as concentration, reputation, liquidity etc. The additional capital is based on the overall risk profile of the Bank and 
changes in the external operating environment. 

In respect of approaches for computation of capital charge for credit, market and operational risks, Bank has subscribed to Standardized approach for measurement of 
credit risk and market risk and Basic Indicator approach for measurement of operational risk.

Approach towards risk weighting of assets funded by Unrestricted Investment Holders (URIA):

Assets funded by URIA funds are risk weighted at 100% in view of requirements of the CBO and displaced commercial risk.

Capital Adequacy requirements also take into account the specific risks of the Islamic financing instruments.  The financing assets in the books mainly comprise of Ijarah, 
Murabaha, Wakala bil Istithmar, Diminishing Musharaka and Investments in Sukuk and Shari’a compliant Equities. 

In case of Ijarah financing the assets are leased to the customer, as such no market risk is accounted for the same.
However, in view of the lease rentals due from the customer, charge towards credit risk is accounted based on the amount due from the customer.

In case of Murabaha based contracts, in all cases the promise to purchase undertaking is obtained from the customers before issuance of the purchase order or cheque to 
the seller for purchase of asset, as such no market risk is assumed by the Bank in case of Murabaha based contracts.

In case financing is extended under the Wakala bil Istithmar or Diminishing Musharaka structures, the exposures are risk weighted at 100% given the fact that the same 
are done on an unrestricted basis wherein the risk of loss is assumed by the Bank.

Investments in Sukuk comprise of certificates that gives the Bank the entitlement to receive returns on an assets, usufruct and services of which the undivided ownership 
is transferred to the Sukuk holders. Investments in Sukuk and Shari’a compliant equities are held in the ‘Available for Sale’ category and are marked to market on a daily 
basis. 

All assets of the bank are risk weighted assets according to the CBO guidelines.

Capital adequacy ratio, capital requirements for various types of risks and composition of capital is presented as follows:

4.2 QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

Capital
Requirement

Capital
Requirement

Risk Weighted 
Assets (RWA)

Risk Weighted 
Assets (RWA)

2015 RO2016 RO

220,691,779 
4,775,000 

13,436,424
 

238,903,203

301,710,023 
11,150,000 
14,421,238

 
327,281,261

26,483,013 
573,000 

1,612,371 

28,668,384

36,205,203 
1,338,000 
1,730,549 

39,273,752

(A) CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk

TOTAL
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(B) CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

1 Tier I Capital (after supervisory deductions)
2 Tier II capital (after supervisory deductions and up to eligible limits)
3 Tier III Capital (up to a limit where Tier II and Tier III does not exceed Tier I)
4 Of which, total eligible tier III capital
5 Risk weighted assets – Banking book
6 Risk weighted assets – operational risk
7 Total Risk Weighted Assets – Banking Book + Operational Risk
8 Minimum required capital to support RWAs of Banking book and operational risk
             i) Minimum required Tier I Capital for Banking book and operational risk
    ii) Tier II Capital required for Banking book and operational risk
9 Tier I capital available for supporting trading book
10 Tier II capital available for supporting trading book
11 Risk Weighted Assets – trading book
12 Total capital required to support trading book
13 Minimum Tier I capital required for supporting trading book
14 Used Eligible Tier III Capital 
15 Total Regulatory Capital
16 Total Risk Weighted Assets – Whole Bank
17 BIS Capital Adequacy Ratio
18 Unused but eligible Tier III Capital                                                                                                                                                      

(C) CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)
Total Eligible Capital
Capital Adequacy Ratio        

(D) RATIO OF TOTAL AND TIER I CAPITAL TO TOTAL RWA

Tier 1 Capital 
Total Capital
Total RWA
Ratio to Total Capital
Ratio to Tier I Capital

(E) RATIO OF TOTAL CAPITAL TO TOTAL ASSETS

Total Capital 
Total Assets
Total Capital  to Total Assets

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

76,421,410 
3,799,423 

-
   -   

301,710,023 
14,421,238 

316,131,261 
37,935,752

 34,136,000
 3,799,423 
42,285,410 

-   
11,150,000 
1,338,000

381,330 
-   

80,220,833 
327,281,261 

24.51%
-

327,281,261 
80,220,833 

24.51%

76,421,410 
80,220,833 

327,281,261 
24.51%
23.35%

80,220,833 
381,646,004 

21.02%

81,760,961 
2,333,668 

-
   -   

220,691,779 
13,436,424 

234,128,203 
28,095,384
 25,761,000
 2,333,668 
56,000,845 

-   
4,775,000 

573,000 
163,305 

-   
84,094,629 

238,903,203 
35.20%

-

238,903,203 
84,094,629 

35.20%

81,760,961 
84,094,629 

238,903,203 
35.20%
34.22%

84,094,629 
252,728,202 

33.27%

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO
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Market RiskMarket Risk Credit RiskCredit Risk

2015 RO2016 RO

5,246,173 
3,068,169 

13,456,682 
127,322 

2,216,420 
301,046 
711,469 
695,778 
34,908 

625,046 

26,483,013 

7,398,745 
6,701,688 

13,593,326 
1,515,619 
2,312,314 

848,385 
1,088,924 
1,843,839 

279,056 
623,307 

36,205,203 

-   
-   
-   
-   
   

  
-   
-   
-
   

-  

-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   
-   

-  

(F) DISCLOSURE OF CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 
ACCORDING TO DIFFERENT RISK CATEGORIES OF
EACH SHARIA COMPLIANT FINANCING CONTRACT

Murabaha receivables
Wakala bil Istithmar
Ijarah assets-Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Banks
Investments
Other assets
Letter of Guarantees
Letter of Credit
Irrevocable financing commitments

TOTAL

5. INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS (IAH):

Bank accepts funds from investors in Savings and Investment deposits on Mudaraba basis and in Investment accounts on Wakala bil Istithmar basis.  As the Bank currently 
does not accept funds on restricted basis, disclosures provided below are applicable for unrestricted investment account holders.

Mudaraba: Under the Mudaraba contracts, Bank Participates both as Mudarib (manager) and Rab-al-Mal (investor). Funds provided by investors are on unrestricted 
basis and are comingled with funds of bank as Rab-al-Mal and called a Mudaraba pool and then invested in assets. Income generated from such assets is distributed in 
accordance with a transparent arrangement duly approved by the Sharia Supervisory Board of the Bank. Complete disclosure of policies, procedures,
product design/type, and profit allocation basis has been explained in detail in qualitative disclosure. Bank currently does not accept funds on restricted basis.

Wakala bil Istithmar: Under Wakala bil Istithmar arrangement, Bank accepts funds from investors as Wakeel and invests in Shari’a compliant assets. Wakeel is entitled to a 
fixed fee as a lump sum or percentage of fund provided. Expected profit payout is mentioned to investors upfront while any return generated in excess of expected profit is 
retained by the Bank as Wakeel as incentive fee. Wakeel should bear the loss in case of Wakeel’s default, negligence or violation of any terms and conditions of the Wakala 
bil Istithmar agreement; otherwise the loss would be borne by the investor or Muwakil.

Disclosures for URIA on Mudaraba basis

Policy governing management of unrestricted funds is in place, the same covers approaches to the management of the investment portfolio, establishment of 
prudential reserves, calculation, allocation and distribution of profits.

Bank has the following two broad categories of Mudaraba based URIA products.
 Saving accounts
 Term Investment deposits

5.1 QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

BASEL II, PILLAR III AND BASEL III REPORT



50

Savings accounts and Term Investment deposits under the Mudaraba contract are available to individual customers while Term deposits under the Mudaraba contract are 
available to corporate customers too.

Under Savings accounts, customers have the flexibility of withdrawing and enhancing their investment with the Bank at any time without any restrictions on the same. 
However, customers opting for savings account also accept lower weightage and corresponding profit payouts as Bank cannot invest customers’ money in long term assets 
yielding higher returns. A combination of Qard Hasan and Mudaraba based Izdihar allows the customer to earn the high weightages on the balances in savings account 
while it allows to withdraw from current account by cheques

During the year, the bank has introduced new product ‘Bushra’ which is Mudaraba Savings Account. Customers apart from earning profit out of Mudaraba pool, also stands 
a chance to win prizes which are provided through Hiba from shareholders fund. 

Under Term Investments, customers are required to maintain their investments with the Bank at contracted tenors The IAH are allowed to prematurely withdraw their 
funds. However, the IAH will be paid adjusted profit commensurate to the tenor the investments remained with the Bank.

ALCO of the Bank is the governing body for managing IAH funds while investment and financing decisions have been entrusted to various committees and individuals based 
on a comprehensive authority matrix duly approved by the Board of Directors.

IAH funds are invested and managed in accordance with Shari’a requirements and same is monitored by Sharia department of the Bank which reports directly to Sharia 
Supervisory Board. 

Products information is available on the Bank’s website and contained in the marketing material available at the branches.

Bank invests the URIA funds in financing and investment assets comingled with Shareholders’ funds.  High risk assets such as equities and Sukuk are funded directly by 
shareholders’ funds and their investment is duly deducted from shareholders’ funds in Mudaraba pool.

Income from Mudaraba pool is reduced by pool expenses comprising general and specific impairment provisions against Mudaraba pool assets. Net pool income is allocated 
to Mudarib, IAH and Wakala investors’ in accordance with their 
respective contribution. 

Income allocated to IAH is reduced by 10% towards Profit Equalization Reserve (PER). The Bank thereafter charges a Mudarib share at a maximum rate of 60% which is 
approved and declared on a quarterly basis. Remaining distributable profit is further reduced by 10% towards Investment Risk Reserve (IRR). These reserves are created for 
future contingencies. Net distributable income is distributed to different classes of IAH in accordance with the weightages coinciding with their tenor and amount of the 
investment which are announced in a transparent manner every quarter on the Bank’s website and in the branches.

Bank is committed to pay competitive rate of returns to its investors by accepting Displaced Commercial Risk (DCR). In order to pay its investors competitive rate of return, 
the Bank may waive partially or entirely its Mudarib share. The Net income from the pool after accounting for the Mudarib share, is further reduced by transfer of income 
to PER and IRR in line with Shari’a requirements. 

The investment objective of the Bank is to invest the funds without exposing the investors to excessive risks and to provide healthy payouts commensurate with their 
expectation, therefore investment in high risk assets namely Sukuk and equity are made out of shareholders’ funds. 

During the year 2016, there was no change in the investment strategy of the Bank that affects IAH funds. Further, the approach adopted by the Bank of comingling of 
funds of IAH and Shareholders continued throughout the year.

Bank does not charge any administrative expenses to the pool as the same are borne by the Bank as Mudarib in lieu of Mudarib share.

The Bank also accepts funds on Wakala bil Istithmar basis. This is an agreement whereby the principal (customer) provides a certain sum of money (Wakala Capital) to the 
Bank (agent), who invests the funds according to specific conditions in return for a certain fee (a lump sum of money or a percentage of the Wakala Capital. The principal 
(customer) would be responsible to bear any loss of Wakala Capital unless it is due to the negligence of Wakala contractual terms on the part of Wakil (the Bank).  At the 
moment, the Bank maintains single pool for Mudaraba and Wakala customers based on their respective contribution to the pool.
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PER TO IAH RATIO

Profit Equalisation Reserve (PER)
Unrestricted IAH funds

IAH funds by contract type

CONTRACT TYPE

Mudaraba
Wakala bil Istithmar

TOTAL

Disclosures for URIA on Mudaraba basis
Return on Assets (ROA): Amount of total net income (before distribution of profit to
unrestricted IAH) / Total amount of assets financed by Shareholders’ equity and minority
interests, Unrestricted IAH, and current accounts and other liabilities.

ITEM

Amount of Total Net Income 
Total amount of assets
Return of Assets (ROA)

Return on Equity (ROE): Amount of total net income (after distribution of profit to 
IAH) / Amount of shareholders’ equity.

ITEM

Amount of Total Net Income 
Amount of shareholder’s equity
Return of Equity (ROE)

Ratio of profit distributed by type of IAH

ITEM

Saving
Investment term deposits

2015
%

2015
RO

17,382 
470,879 

3.691%

           
64,536,879 

      204,761,746 
         

269,298,625 

-   
127,198

 
0.000%

20,867,781
114,829,057

         
135,696,838 

2016
%

2016
RO

5.2 QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015

           
13,969,199

317,187,103
4.40%

           
8,971,062 

        83,589,972 
10.73%

           
82%
18%

7,166,093
186,173,430

3.85%

5,995,002
88,655,086

6.76%

47%
53%

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
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Equity of unrestricted investment account holders by type

ITEM

Saving
Investment Term Deposits

TOTAL

ITEM

Profit sharing ratio (Mudarib : Investment Account Holders)
Average Profit paid to Investment Account Holders

Computation of Pool income for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

ITEM

POOL INCOME
Income from Financing
Income from Placements

POOL EXPENSES
General Provision
Specific Provision

NET POOL INCOME
Mudarib fee
Movement to or from PER/IRR
Total amount paid to IAH
Total amount attributable to Wakala investors and shareholders funds as
Rab - al - Mal

PER and IRR ratios: 

Mudaraba pool income was not sufficient to pay market based profit rates and therefore the Bank did not allocate income to PER and IRR and also waived in full or part 
of its Mudarib share after approval of SSB. This practice is normal for Islamic banks in its early years of their operation.

2015
RO

           
62,981,133
1,555,746

64,536,879

18,189,992
2,677,789

20,867,781

2016
RO

2015

           
60:40

0.87%

12,372,666
156,042

12,528,708
 
           

(1,457,316)
(177,955)

(1,635,271)

10,893,437 
(41,415)

            (17,382)
 
           

10,834,640 

60:40
0.52%

6,009,920
77,897

6,087,817
 
           

(1,531,547)
(36)

(1,531,583)

         4,556,234 
            (59,641)
                        -   
               67,557 

              
4,429,036 

2016

2015
RO

2016
RO

Income from jointly financed assets 12,528,708  6,087,817  1,417,284 

Profit distributed to IAH 429,464  67,557  3,380 

Contribution to the pool 64,536,879  20,867,781  4,032,207 

Return as percentage of contribution 0.67% 0.32% 0.08%

2015
RO

2014
RO

2016
RO
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At beginning of the year
Allocated for the year
Released

At end of the year

There were no material changes in asset allocation during the last six months. 

           

- 
17,382 

-
 

17,382 

- 
17,382 

-
 

17,382 

- 
- 
- 

-
 

TOTAL ROPER RO IRR RO

Latest Profit rates paid to investment account holders for quarter ended
31 December 2016

On quarterly basis, Bank announces profit rates and weightages on its website which can be accessed at
http://alizzislamic.com/Personal/Rates-Weightages.

The Bank had no off-balance sheet exposures arising from investment decisions. Further the bank had no
limits imposed on the amount that can be invested in any one type of asset

ITEM

Savings Account Individuals AED
Savings Account Individuals GBP
Savings Account Individuals OMR
Savings Account Individuals USD
Savings Account Izdihar (0-29,999)
Savings Account Izdihar (30,000-99,999)
Savings Account Izdihar (100,000 - 499,999)
Savings Account Izdihar (500,000 - 899,999)
Savings Account Izdihar (900,000 & Above)
Savings Account Individuals OMR
Savings Account Individuals USD
Term Investment Deposit - Monthly OMR
Term Investment Deposit - Quarterly OMR (0-10,000)
Term Investment Deposit - Quarterly OMR (10,001-50,000)
Term investment Deposit - Half Yearly OMR (0-10,000)
Term Investment Deposit - Half Yearly OMR (50,001-500,000)
Term Investment Deposit - 9 months OMR (0-10,000)
Term Investment Deposit - 9 months OMR (10,001-50,000)
Term Investment Deposit - Annually OMR (0-10,000)
Term Investment Deposit - Annually OMR (10,001-50,000)
Term Investment Deposit - Annually OMR (50,001-100,000)
Term Investment Deposit - 2 Years OMR (50,001-100,000)
Term Investment Deposit - 5 Years OMR (0-10,000)

2.55%
2.54%

10.16%
2.54%

10.16%
34.30%
51.00%
60.00%
81.01%
10.16%
2.54%

11.43%
13.97%
16.51%
19.05%
24.13%
24.17%
26.67%
26.67%
31.75%
38.10%
53.35%
74.35%

0.20%
0.20%
0.30%
0.20%
0.30%
2.00%
2.75%
3.00%
3.50%
0.30%
0.20%
0.40%
0.50%
0.60%
0.75%
 1.25%
1.80%
1.85%
1.90%
1.95%
2.50%
2.90%
3.25%

Weightages Declared
Profit Rate

6. RESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
The Bank does not have any restricted investment accounts as at reporting date.

2016
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7. RETAIL INVESTORS - ORIENTED DISCLOSURES FOR INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
The disclosures mentioned under section 5 above are equally applicable for retail investors. Salient features are reproduced below in a simplified manner.

7.1 DISTRIBUTION METHODOLOGY

The Bank abides by the following profit distribution methodology for distributing its profits to IAH. Total income from Islamic financing and placement activities in respect 
of the common pool will be calculated using the best accounting practices in accordance with the Shari’a standards as well as the Accounting Standards published by 
Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI).

The net profit of the pool is calculated in accordance with the following formula:

Net income of the pool = (Income from financing & placements) – (General and specific provisions)

Net income of the Mudaraba pool shall be allocated between Shareholders, Wakala customers and IAH according to their respective contribution and tenor of their 
investments in the common pool. 

All administrative and general expense (including staff expenses) shall be borne solely by the shareholders from the date of commencement of the Bank’s operation. 

Fees, charges (Letters of Credit, Letters of Guarantee, General Banking and allied services) is Bank’s income and such income shall not be included in the Common Pool. 

Investment in riskier asset classes such as Sukuk and equities are made from shareholders’ funds and hence income arising from such investments is not shared in common 
pool. 

Depreciation expenses relating to the fixed assets owned by the Bank (other than those meant for the investment in the common pool) shall not be charged to the 
Common Pool and shall be charged to the shareholders. 

Undesired income relating to the Shari’a repugnant transactions shall be deducted from the shareholder’s share of profit. 

Before distributing the net profit of the Common Pool, PER shall be established by transferring a suitable percentage (maximum 10%) of the net profit on quarterly basis. 
Transfers and deductions from this reserve shall be carried out with prior approval from the Bank’s Shari’a Supervisory Board. 

The Mudarib’s profit share (Bank) shall be calculated by applying a predefined percentage (between the Bank and the IAH) to share the profit from the Common Pool. The 
Bank’s share as Mudarib shall be 60% maximum while IAH share will be 40%.

Investment Risk Reserve (IRR) shall be created out of the IAH share of profit (maximum of 10%).

In case the balance in the reserve account is not sufficient to pay the desired rate of return, shareholders may forego in full or in part their share of profit to the depositors 
with the approval of the Bank’s Sharia Supervisory Board.

The assessment of provision shall be made by the Bank on a regular basis. 

The PER shall be used for smoothening the returns that are paid to the Investment Account Holders and Shareholder. Any loss of IAH shall be covered from the IRR. 

Any loss due to negligence or misconduct on the part of the Bank shall be deducted from the Bank’s share in the profits of the common pool. Any excess of such loss shall 
be deducted from the Bank’s share of fund in the common pool.

In order to ensure adequate transparency in the payout process, the profit paid to IAH is posted on the Bank’s website at
http://alizzislamic.com/Personal/Rates-Weightages
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7.2 PROFIT EQUALIZATION RESERVE

 The Bank (at its discretion) shall apportion an amount out of the Mudaraba income before allocating the Mudarib share, in order to maintain a certain level
 of return on investment for IAH.
 
 The percentage (upto a maximum of 10%) being set aside for the purpose is determined by the management and shall be approved by ALCO.

 The percentage of PER shall be agreed/approved by the IAH at the time of opening the URIA account by signing the terms and conditions. 

 The amount accumulated as PER shall be released/distributed in the years of lower performance as decided by the ALCO, subject to approval of SSB.

 Balance of PER shall be maintained as a current account.

7.3 INVESTMENT RISK RESERVE (IRR)

 The Bank (at its discretion) shall apportion an amount out of the income of IAH, after allocating the Mudarib share, to IRR in order to cater against future
 losses for Investment accountholders.

 The percentage (upto a maximum of 10%) being set aside for the purpose of PER is determined by the management and shall be approved by ALCO,
 subject to the approval of SSB.
 
 The percentage of IRR (upto a maximum 10%) shall be agreed / approved by the IAH at the time of opening the URIA account. 

 The amount accumulated as IRR shall be released / distributed to mitigate the account loss as decided by the ALCO.

 Balance of IRR shall be maintained as a current account.

The Bank has trained customer services representative in all the branches who provide appropriate guidance to customers in selection of relevant products suitable to the 
individual investors. Further, complete product booklet is available at the branches and on the Bank’s website which can be referred in case of any further clarification is 
required. 

The Bank has in place a Customer Complaint & Grievance Management policy. Customers have been provided the following channels to register their complaints:

 Call Center Contact number 80072265
 In person, walk-in-to the Head Office or any branch
 In writing, through a formal complaint to the below address:
 Head of Service Quality
 Alizz Islamic Bank SAOG
 Alizz Tower, P.O. Box 753, CBD Area, PC 112
 Sultanate of Oman
 In writing via email ID: customerservice@alizzislamic.com
 Online through the website via “Contact Us” Through the web portal below 
 http://alizzislamic.com/Contact-Us
 Verbally to a member of the sales staff at external sales sites 
 Verbally via referrals through aib staff
 On social media through the portals identified in the website.

The Bank has generated and distributed healthy payouts to IAH during 2016 but the same should not be taken as commitment from the Bank for future periods. However 
Bank will make all efforts to enhance and maintain healthy payouts.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT, RISK EXPOSURES AND RISK MITIGATION:

8.1 GENERAL DISCLOSURES

8.1.1 Qualitative disclosure:

Objective, strategy, policies and procedures:

The primary objective of risk management is to protect the Banks’ assets from the various risks the Bank is exposed to and maximize shareholders value.   

The Bank is exposed to key risks: credit risk, investment risk, liquidity risk, rate of return risk, market risk, displaced commercial risk, operational risk and Shari’a non-
compliance risk.

A well-defined risk management framework is in place with the overall responsibility of risk management vested with the Board of Directors managed through the Board 
Risk and Compliance Committee.

The Board of Directors approve the Bank’s risk management policies which defines the Bank’s risk strategy, which is backed by appropriate qualitative and quantitative 
parameters, delegation of authorities to the Executive Committee of the Board, Management Credit Committee and Executives to approve financing exposures. The policies 
and processes for management of risks have proved to be effective. 

The risk management framework compliments the International Best Practices, Basel Committee, Islamic Financial Services Board and Central Bank of Oman guidelines.

The role of the Risk Management Department is to develop and implement the risk policies associated specifically with both quantifiable and non-quantifiable risks arising 
from the activities of the Bank and manage the day-to-day risks.
The risk management function along with the internal audit function of the Bank provides independent assurance that all types of risk are being managed in accordance 
with the policies set by the Board of Directors. Independent review of the risk management framework is carried out by the internal audit function and Compliance 
function. Shari’a non-compliance risk is monitored and managed by Shari’a Compliance Unit. 

Organization:

        

Board Risk and 
Compliance Committee

Risk Management  
Department

Credit Risk
Management

Market Risk
Management

Operational Risk
Management

Board
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Risk measurement and reporting system:

Credit risk in respect of corporate credit is evaluated at the time of initial review, on-going portfolio review and annual reviews. In respect of retail credit, the same is 
based on approved product parameters, exceptions if any are approved by the relevant approving authorities, ongoing review of retail portfolio is also conducted, these 
measures help to identify, measure, monitor and control credit risks. Risk reports are agenda items at the meetings of the Management Risk Committee and, Board Risk and 
Compliance Committee.

Operational risk is monitored by through a review of the Operational Risk Event reports, Risk Control and Self-Assessment Reports and Key Risk Indicator Reports, the same 
is deliberated at the meetings of the Management Risk Committee.

In respect of market risks: liquidity risk is identified and measured by the Maturities of Assets and Liabilities statement and liquidity ratios, profit rate risk is identified and 
measured by the Sensitivity of Assets and Liabilities statement, earnings at risk and economic value. Investments in Sukuk and equity are monitored on a daily basis to 
ensure its compliance to approved exposure and stop loss limits. Risk reports on market risk are a calendar item at the meetings of the Asset and Liability Management 
Committee, which monitors and controls market risks. 

Displaced Commercial Risk (DCR): refers to the market pressure to pay returns that exceed the rate that has been earned on the assets funded by the Unrestricted 
Investment Account Holders. DCR is managed by the Bank as the Mudarib foregoing a part or in all the share of the earnings. The Bank benchmarks its rates with the other 
banks in the Sultanate.

Policies and practices for mitigating risks:

Risk mitigants are obtained wherever possible. In respect of rate of return risk, in financing products wherever repricing is possible, clause to the effect is incorporated in the 
financing documents. In respect of credit risk, efforts are made to obtain collateral by way of mortgage of real estate, plant and machinery, obtaining individual/corporate 
guarantees towards facilities granted to individual and legal entities. In case of Operational risks, it is ensured that there are in place approved policies and procedures and 
the same are strictly complied with.

Bank accepts DCR. In order to pay its investors competitive rate of return the Bank may waive partially or entirely its management fee (Mudarib share). Further no alpha 
factor is used to discount the assets funded by the IAH funds for capital adequacy purposes, the same are risk weighted at 100%.

The Bank accords a great deal of importance to risk management and ensures appropriate investments are made for effective management of risks to support the growth 
plans of the Bank.

Basel I and II: 

CBO in line with the requirements of Basel III framework, has issued a circular on the capital norms and liquidity ratios:  In respect of revised capital norms, Capital 
Conservation buffer and Counter Cyclical buffer have been made applicable to all Banks in the Sultanate. Capital Conservation buffer has been implemented in a phased 
manner from the year 2014, whereas Counter Cyclical buffer will be implemented based on the domestic economic situation. CBO requires Banks in the Sultanate of Oman 
to maintain a Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 12.625 % and the Bank is compliant to the same.

In respect of the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR), reporting thereof has already been put in place. Phased-in threshold limit for LCR 
has been put in place. The Bank is reporting LCR & NSFR at monthly intervals to the Central Bank of Oman. The Bank is in compliance with the LCR threshold of 60% (to 
reach 100% by 2019) as prescribed by the CBO.

8.1.2. Quantitative:

Bank applies same treatment for calculation of risk weighted assets for assets financed exclusively by the shareholders and the Mudaraba pool. Detailed disclosures have 
been provided under Credit Risk section.
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8.2. CREDIT RISK:

Credit risk is the potential loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counter party to honor its financial or contractual obligations in accordance with the agreed terms. 
The Bank is exposed to credit risk through its financing and investing activities. The function of credit risk management is to maximize the Bank’s return by maintaining 
credit risk exposure within acceptable parameters. 

8.2.1. Qualitative disclosures

The Bank has set for itself clear and well defined limits to address different dimensions of credit risk including concentration risk, tenor for each type of financing, exposure 
limits based on the credit risk rating of the customer. Compliance with the various parameters set in the risk policy is reviewed regularly and variances from the norms are 
reported to the Board Risk and Compliance Committee for their information and appropriate action. Credit risk is managed by the Risk Management Department. All retail 
and corporate financing applications are reviewed by risk prior to it being submitted to the approving authorities.  

The financing extended to corporates are risk weighted at 100%. However, in respect of Banks, ratings assigned by Moody’s, S & P and Fitch are taken into account while 
arriving at the risk weightings. 

It is ensured that the financing exposures assumed by the Bank are well within acceptable parameters. Policies and procedures on credit risk are periodically reviewed to 
ensure that the same are aligned to the current best practices. 

The existing infrastructure of the financing applications  both retail and corporate are  reviewed by risk management, approved by delegated authorities and post sanction 
compliance to covenants being done by an independent department namely credit administration, which ensures that the identified credit risks are duly mitigated at the 
inception of the providing credit. Regular review of the portfolio and annual reviews ensures proper monitoring of the credit risks at an individual level in case of corporate 
financing and at a portfolio level in case of retail financings.
 
Credit risk makes up the largest part of the Bank’s risk exposure. 
 
Types of Credit Risk: Financing contracts mainly comprise Due from banks, Murabaha receivables, Diminishing Musharaka and Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek.

 Due from banks: Due from banks comprise Wakala bil Istithmar.

 Wakala bil Istithmar:  Bank appoints the Customer to invest the funds to achieve an expected profit with a fee. 

 Murabaha receivables: The Bank finances these transactions through buying the commodity which represents the object of the Murabaha contract and     
 then resells this commodity to the Murabeh (beneficiary) at a profit. The sale price (cost plus profit margin) is repaid in installments by the Murabeh over   
 the agreed period. The transactions are secured at times by the object of the Murabaha contract (in case of real estate finance) and other times by a total   
 collateral package securing the facilities given to the Murabeh.

Diminishing Musharaka is a contract, based on Shirkat-ul-Mulk, between the Bank and a customer for joint ownership of a fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or 
machinery). The Bank divides its share in the fixed asset into units and gradually transfers the ownership of these units to a customer (at carrying value).The use 
of Bank’s share by the customer is based on the customer bear the cost of maintenance and takaful insurance for the bank’s share in the Musahraka asset.

 Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek: The legal title of the assets under Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek only passes to the lessee at the end of the Ijarah term, through   
 consideration, provided that all the Ijarah installments are settled.

Wakala Bil Istithmar: An agreement whereby the principal provides a certain sum of money (Wakala Capital) to an agent, who invests it according to specific 
conditions in return for a certain fee (a lump sum of money or a percentage of the Wakala Capital). The principal would be responsible to bear any loss of Wakala 
Capital unless it is due to the negligence of Wakala contractual terms on the part of Wakil.

Corporate financing risk:  Includes management of all corporate and financial institutions exposures. The individual proposals are subject to credit review by the Risk 
Management department of the Bank. The comments of the Risk Management department along with the clarifications / responses to the same form part of the 
financing proposal. Renewals and reviews are subject to the same process. Each proposal is also reviewed to established concentration limits – economic sector, financing 
tenor, credit risk rating. All corporate financing proposals are approved either by the Management Credit Committee, Executive Committee of the Board or the Board of 
Directors based on delegation of authority.  Corporate and financial institutions financing proposals are subject to annual review.
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Sovereign risk: Sovereign risk is managed in the same manner as credit risk, i.e. an assessment is made as to the level of exposure in a country, taking into account all 
relevant risk factors. Specific sovereign limits are established for each country based on its sovereign ratings assigned by external rating agencies and in the absence of such 
ratings, the specific country is treated as unrated. The sovereign limits matrix is part of the Credit Risk Appetite Manual approved by the Board of Directors. 

Bank Counterparty risk: Exposures to Banks are guided by risk assessment based on latest ratings assigned by external rating agencies. Where a Bank is unrated, an 
independent assessment of the Bank is carried out based on quantitative and qualitative factors. It is ensured that the overall exposure to overseas counterparties shall be 
within the specific country limits approved by the Board.

Retail financing risk: Parameters of retail financing are in strict compliance to CBO guidelines. Retail financing product programs are updated / revised on an on-going 
basis, the same are also subject to annual review. Approval authority has been delegated to the officials of Retail Banking Department, with exceptions required to be 
approved by the Management Credit Committee. However, all retail financing proposals are reviewed by the Risk Management Department. Retail financing is reviewed on 
a portfolio basis.

Credit Risk rating: The Bank has in place a Credit Risk Rating system to rate its corporate customers. The Credit Risk Rating has 10 ratings, with rating 8 onwards would be 
considered default cases. Default cases would be segregated based on time-based criterion of past due days and/or qualitative parameters prescribed by CBO. The Bank 
has implemented a Moody’s Risk Rating application.  The Bank uses the Moody’s, Fitch and Standard & Poors rating for risk weighting its assets. The ratings are used for 
Sovereign and Bank exposures.

Past-due financing exposure: Past due and impaired financing assets are classified based on the guidelines provided by the CBO. Specific and General Provisions is 
provided on the exposure in line with aforesaid guidelines. However, comprehensive risk management systems in the Bank ensures minimal impact of impairment. Detailed 
policy providing guidelines for classification of the assets and provisioning thereof are in place at the Bank.

Remain past due for 60 days or more but less than 90 days
Remain past due for 90 days but less than 180 days
Remain past due for 180 days or more but less than 365 days
Remain past due for 365 or more days  
Restructured accounts categorized as standard

Special Mention
Sub-standard
Doubtful
Loss
Standard -Restructured

Nil
25%
50%
100%
5% in the first year
10% in the second year
15% in the third year

No of days past due* Classification Provisioning requirement

*apart from number of days past due qualitative criteria has been prescribed for corporate financing accounts.

Concentration risk: Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of customers are engaged in similar business activities, located in the same geographical region, or 
those which have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political and/or 
other conditions. Concentration of exposure to counterparties, geographies and sectors are governed and monitored according to regulatory norms and limits prescribed in 
the approved policies.
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Credit Risk Mitigation: The Bank uses a variety of tools to mitigate its credit risk, the primary one being that of securing the exposures by suitable collaterals. While 
existence of collaterals is not a precondition for financing, in practice a large part of existing exposures are fully or partially collateralized. As an inherent nature of 
Islamic products Bank has ownership of underlying asset of Ijarah and diminishing Musharakah. Additionally the Bank has policies on the type of assets that can be 
accepted as collateral. In general all collaterals are required to be valued periodically depending on the collateral type. The legal validity and enforceability of the 
documents used for collateral have been established by qualified personnel, including lawyers.

The collaterals that are accepted by the Bank as credit risk mitigants are cash or near cash (such as fixed deposits, marketable securities such as Stocks and Sukuk 
etc.), Bank payment guarantee/stand-by LCs, mortgage over immoveable property (real estate, warehouses etc.), mortgage over machinery and equipment and 
Government or Corporate Guarantees of companies. No securities are pledged to the Bank.

The Bank has subscribed to the simplified approach for collateral recognition under the standardized approach, where 0% risk weight is assigned for the exposures 
covered by cash collateral. All other financing exposures to corporate and retail are assigned 100% risk weight (except retail mortgage financings, which are 
assigned 35% risk weight).

8.2.2 Quantitative disclosures:

Percentage 
(%)

Percentage 
(%)

Percentage 
(%)

Percentage 
(%)

RO

RO

RO

RO

2015

2015

2016

2016

4,479,229 
31,255,310 
25,568,073 
43,718,105 

131,511,914 
1,061,017 

60,209,309 

297,802,957 

8,603,050 
25,171,792 
12,784,037 
31,087,704 
91,933,933 

530,509 
41,589,279 

211,700,302 

9,906,994 
32,647,648 
55,847,398 
61,685,212 

186,610,860 
12,630,160 
72,039,289

 
431,367,561 

7,193,112 
31,951,479 
40,707,736 
52,701,659 

159,061,387 
6,845,589 

66,124,299
 

364,585,259 

2%
10%
9%

15%
44%
0%

20%

100%

4%
12%
6%

15%
43%
0%

20%

100%

2%
8%

13%
14%
43%
3%

17%

100%

2%
9%

11%
14%
44%
2%

18%

100%

GROSS CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE

Balances with Central Bank of Oman
Due from Banks
Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Contingent liabilities and commitments

TOTAL

AVERAGE RISK EXPOSURE

Balances with Central Bank of Oman
Due from Banks
Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Contingent liabilities and commitments

TOTAL 
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GCC

GCC

Financing

Total

Total

Total

Oman

Oman

Rest of the 
world

Rest of the 
world

Investments

RO

RO

RO

 -   
1,051,597 

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

605,470 

1,657,067 

-   
2,743,475 

                      -   
                      -   
                      -   
                      -   
                      -   

2,743,475 

1,291,968 
          1,001,848 
          4,957,790 
             771,839 

                     -   
          1,262,249 

          9,285,694 

9,906,994 
25,000,000 
55,288,924 
60,592,103 

184,410,642 
12,503,859 
2,405,059

 
350,107,581 

4,479,229 
24,000,000 
25,312,392 
42,989,409 

130,090,007 
1,050,407 
1,080,156

 
229,001,600 

9,906,994 
32,647,648 
55,288,924 
60,592,103 

184,410,642 
12,503,859 
9,218,264 

364,568,434 

4,479,229 
31,255,310 
25,312,392 
42,989,409 

130,090,007 
1,050,407 
5,482,693 

240,659,447 

66,318,540 
          1,001,848 
          4,957,790 
        21,960,101 
      158,733,572 
        73,087,473 

       
326,059,324 

 -   
6,596,051 

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

6,207,735 

12,803,786 

 -   
4,511,835 

                     -   
                     -   
                     -   
                     -   

4,402,537 

8,914,372 

65,026,572 
                       -   
                       -   
        21,188,262 
      158,733,572 
        71,825,224 

        
316,773,630 

Geographical Concentration of net credit risk exposure
31 December 2016

CLASS OF FINANCIAL ASSET

Balances with Central Bank of Oman
Due from banks
Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijara muntahia bitamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Investments

TOTAL

Geographical Concentration of net credit risk exposure
31 December 2015

CLASS OF FINANCIAL ASSET

Balances with Central Bank of Oman
Due from banks
Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijara muntahia bitamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Investments

TOTAL

Economic/Industry Sector concentration risk
31 December 2016

Construction and real estate
Banks and financial institutions
Sovereigns
Trading and manufacturing
Personal
Other Services

TOTAL
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Financing TotalInvestments

RO

RO

 -   
          1,057,079 
          3,218,913 
          1,206,701 

                     -   
                     -   

          5,482,693 

- 
8,012 

640,342 
- 

648,354 

51,841,000 
          8,757,079 
          3,218,913 
        17,074,701 
        99,572,000 
        26,885,936 

       
207,349,629 

55,847,398 
61,685,212 

186,610,860 
12,630,160

 
316,773,630 

51,841,000 
          7,700,000 
                       -   
        15,868,000 
        99,572,000 
        26,885,936 

        
201,866,936 

383,309 
3,080,659 

21,312,903 
860,538 

25,637,409 

55,464,089 
58,596,541 

164,657,615 
11,769,622

 
290,487,867 

Economic/Industry Sector concentration risk
31 December 2015

Construction and real estate
Banks and financial institutions
Sovereigns
Trading and manufacturing
Personal
Other Services

TOTAL

Past due and impaired financing 
31 December 2016

TYPE OF FINANCING CONTRACT

Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka

TOTAL

Past due but 
performing Total

Neither past due and 
non-performing Non-performing

Disclosure of each financing product by residual maturity has been provided under liquidity risk section.
Investments in Sukuk and equities are financed exclusively by shareholders while financing and placements are financed jointly by shareholders and IAH.

RO

- 
- 
- 
- 

- 

25,568,073 
43,718,105 

131,511,914 
1,061,017

 
201,859,109 

- 
1,416,800 
3,392,120 

-
 

4,808,920 

25,568,073 
42,301,305 

128,119,794 
1,061,017 

197,050,189 

Past due and impaired financing 
31 December 2015

TYPE OF FINANCING CONTRACT

Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka

TOTAL

Past due but 
performing Total

Neither past due and 
non-performing Non-performing
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RO

- 
- 
- 
- 

184,230 
- 
- 
- 
- 

17,392 
- 
- 
- 

201,622 

83,840 
- 

21,818 
12,000 

648,865 
105,200 
50,625 
70,333 
76,197 

2,198,416 
8,833 

- 
499,971 

3,776,098 

- 
- 
- 
- 

586,797 
- 
- 
- 
- 

61,556 
- 
- 
- 

648,353 

8,393,293 
- 

2,214,104 
1,200,000 

64,439,774 
10,580,865 
5,062,500 
7,035,237 
7,638,465 

158,672,017 
883,281 

- 
50,005,741 

316,125,277 

Past due and impaired financing by Sector
31 December 2016

SECTOR

Import Trade
Export Trade
Wholesale & Retail Trade
Mining & Quarrying
Construction
Manufacturing
Electricity , Gas & Water
Transport & Communication
Services
Personal Financing
Agriculture & Allied Activities
Financing to non-Residents
All Others

TOTAL

Non performing 
Financing

General
Provisions held

Performing
 Financing

Specific
Provisions held

* Above amount of sector wise financing exclude gross credit card receivables of RO 696,334. General and specific provision on credit card portfolio 
amount to RO 13,925 and RO 918 respectively

RO

7,827 
6,098 

68,348 
74,446

 
15,463 

97,736 

2,424,721 
1,457,316 

177,955
 1,635,271

 
15,846 

4,075,838 

10,610 
115,691 

                 - 
115,691 

                 - 

126,301 

1,421,907 
696,820 
81,491 

778,311 

- 

2,200,218 

728,696 
335,914 
28,116 

364,030 

383 

1,093,109 

255,681 
302,793 

-
 302,793 

- 

558,474 

Movement of Provision
31 December 2016

Provision at beginning of the year
Charge for the year-Portfolio
Release / (charge) for the year-Specific

Reserve profit

PROVISION AT END OF THE YEAR

Ijarah muntahia 
bittamleek

Others TotalWakala 
bil Istithmar

Murabaha
receivables

Diminishing 
Musharaka
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RO

79,393 
4,972 

 (76,538)
 (71,566)

- 

7,827 

895,063 
1,531,547 

36 
1,531,583 

 (1,925)

2,424,721 

 
10,610 

                 - 
10,610

 
                 - 

10,610 

523,557 
807,225 
91,125 

898,350 

-
 

1,421,907 

292,113 
453,059 

 (14,551)
438,508 

 (1,925)

728,696 

- 
255,681 

- 
255,681

 
- 

255,681 

Movement of Provision
31 December 2015

Provision at beginning of the year
Charge for the year-Portfolio
Release / (charge) for the year-Specific

Reserve profit

PROVISION AT END OF THE YEAR

ITEMS

SOURCES OF CHARITY FUNDS
Undistributed charity funds at beginning of the year 
Donation against Late payments  received from customers
Forfeit of Non-Shari’a Compliant Income

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS DURING THE YEAR 

USES OF CHARITY FUNDS
University and school students
Philanthropic societies
Aid to needy families

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS DURING THE YEAR 

UNDISTRIBUTED CHARITY FUNDS AT END OF THE YEAR 

Details of Donation against late payments received from customers, Profit forfeited transferred to Charity account and its disposition. 

Ijarah muntahia 
bittamleek

Others TotalWakala 
bil Istithmar

Murabaha
receivables

Diminishing 
Musharaka

3,682 
             13,849 
              6,036 

             23,567
 

 - 
                     - 

             (5,613)

             (5,613)

             17,954 

881 
           4,521 
                  - 

           5,402
 

 - 
                  - 

          (1,720)

          (1,720)

           3,682 

2016
RO

2015 
RO
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8.3 CREDIT RISK MITIGATION

8.3.1 Qualitative Disclosures

8.3.2 Quantitative Disclosures

The Bank uses a variety of tools to mitigate its credit risk, the primary one being that of securing the exposures by suitable collaterals. While existence of collaterals is 
not a precondition for financing, in practice a large part of existing exposures are fully or partially collateralized. The Bank has policies on the type of assets that can be 
accepted as collateral. 

The collaterals that is accepted by the Bank as credit risk mitigants are cash (Hamish Jiddiyyah) or near cash (such as fixed deposits- PSIA, marketable securities such 
as Stocks and Sukuk etc.), Bank payment guarantee/stand-by LCs, mortgage over immoveable property (real estate, warehouses etc.), mortgage over machinery and 
equipment, Individual and Corporate Guarantees.

All other financing exposures to corporate and retail are assigned 100% risk weight without taking benefit of the value of the collateral and the same treatment is applied 
for assets leased under Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek  (except retail mortgage financings, which are assigned 35% risk weight).

In general all collaterals are required to be valued periodically depending on the collateral type. The legal validity and enforceability of the documents used for collateral 
have been established by qualified personnel, including lawyers.

Wherever third party guarantee is taken as risk mitigant, risk weight applicable to the customer is considered and no consideration to the risk weight applicable to the 
guarantor is taken into account.

Collaterals must meet the following criteria to qualify as acceptable collateral:
 Assets must be maintaining their value, at the level prevalent at inception, until settlement date of the facility.
 Such assets should be easily convertible in cash (liquidity),
 There should be a reasonable market for the assets (marketability)
 The Bank should be able to enforce its rights over the asset if necessary (enforceability)

The Bank has subscribed to the simplified approach for collateral recognition under the standardized approach, where 0% risk weight is assigned for the exposures covered 
by cash collateral. All other financing exposures to corporate and retail are assigned 100% risk weight without taking benefit of the value of the collateral and the same 
treatment is applied for assets leased under Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek  (except retail mortgage financings, which are assigned 35% risk weight).
        

Bank does not reduce its risk weighted assets by value of collaterals as risk mitigation and apply risk weights on the gross outstanding balances of various exposures.

Carrying amount of assets under Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek as of reporting date is RO 184,410,642s/-.

Rating distribution

RATING

1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Special Mention

RATING

Sub-standard
Doubtful
Loss
Total Financing – rated
Unrated Financing

TOTAL

-   
7,939,640 

16,975,000 
15,331,229 
88,351,130 
13,647,618                             

-

18,020,074                              

640,342                               
8,012                                      

-   
160,913,045 
155,860,585

316,773,630

-   
-   

3,366,000 
17,031,000 
73,996,000 
8,720,000

-

118,000 

-   
-                                  
-            

103,231,000            
98,628,109 

201,859,109

2016
RO

2016
RO

2015 
RO

2015 
RO
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8.4 LIQUIDITY RISK:

8.4.1 Qualitative Disclosures

Liquidity may be defined as a Bank’s ability to ensure the availability of funds to meet all on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet commitments at a reasonable 
price. Liquidity risk can in turn be defined as the risk to earnings and capital arising from a Bank’s potential inability to meet its liabilities when they become due, 
without incurring unacceptable losses. Conversely, liquidity risk also manifests itself in the form of opportunity losses due to holding excess liquidity relative to 
liabilities.

The Bank has a comprehensive liquidity risk management structure in place.

The strategy of the Bank in management of liquidity risk is to minimize the resultant impact on the earnings of the Bank. The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank’s reputation. 

The Bank takes a two-tiered approach to Liquidity Risk Management: 

Going concern liquidity management: the management of the liquidity position within specified parameters to ensure all claims on account of liabilities can be met 
on a timely basis.

Event risk liquidity management: ensuring that in the event of either a firm-specific or general market event, the Bank is able to generate sufficient liquidity to 
withstand a short term liquidity crisis. 

Treasury department maintains a portfolio of short-term liquid assets, largely made up of short-term liquid investment securities and inter-Bank placements, to 
ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank as a whole. Liquidity requirements are met from deposits in current accounts and URIA by IAH.

The Bank is subject to liquidity gap limits prescribed by the CBO and for areas where discretion is given to the Bank, internal mismatch limits by currency have been 
put in place. Conservative internal limits are in place vis-à-vis the limits prescribed by CBO.

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is intended to promote short-term resilience to potential liquidity disruptions. Maintenance of the LCR by the Bank as per 
Regulatory prescriptions assures that the Bank has sufficient high-quality liquid assets at all times. The level of LCR is monitored by the Bank at monthly intervals. 

The Bank has diversified source of funding, funds are mobilized in Current accounts from individuals and corporates, these funds are not accounted as unrestricted 
basis. Funds are mobilized in Savings and Term Deposits accounts from individuals and corporates, these funds are accepted on the basis of Mudaraba and are on 
an unrestricted basis. The Bank does raise funds in the inter-bank market both locally and regionally from Islamic banks. Placement of funds in inter-bank market is 
made only with Islamic Banks.

The Bank has in place a Market Risk Manual which addresses Liquidity Risk and the Bank has also in place a Liquidity Contingency Policy.  

The Bank has implemented an Asset Liability Management application, OneSumX licensed from Wolters Kluwer. This application enables the generation of reports 
on liquidity, repricing and Fund Transfer Pricing.

Reporting and measurement of liquidity risks

Liquidity risk is measured using the stock and cash flow approaches. Important liquidity ratios and the Maturities of Assets and Liabilities statement is a calendar 
item at the meetings of the ALCO. ALCO meets at monthly intervals or shorter frequencies to ensure an effective monitoring of the liquidity position.
Expected inflow and outflow of funds are factored into the Maturities of Assets and Liabilities statement and resultant gaps are monitored to ensure that the gap 
limits are within the CBO and internal approved limits.

The Market Risk Manual provides detailed guidelines for measurement and management of liquidity risks.

A comprehensive Liquidity Contingency Policy is in place, it defines the strategy for handling a liquidity crisis, planning under alternative scenarios and alert levels. 
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8.4.2 Quantitative Ratios

RATIOS

Financing Ratio
Financing to customers to total assets
Equity to total assets
Liquidity coverage ratio
Net stable funding ratio

85.15%
81.96%
21.29%

214.63%
67.67%

83.90%
78.92%
34.00%

558.00%
278.00%

2016
Percentage

2015 
Percentage

277,728
-

4,625,000
7,392,647

67,491,014
-
-

3,537,509
2,227,813

-
-

85,551,771

-
5,240,855
5,623,051

-

10,863,906
15,749,938

81,244,245

107,849,089

(22,353,765)
(56,387)

12,483,664
32,647,648
55,288,924
60,592,103

184,410,642
12,503,859
9,218,264
3,537,509
2,227,813
2,532,694
6,202,884

381,646,004

3,657,501
21,730,032

204,761,746
5,715,601

235,864,880
64,536,879

81,244,245

381,646,004

(56,387)

-
-

13,979,597
31,416,093
74,594,194
10,578,773
1,173,000

-
-

2,532,694
-

134,274,351

-
-

28,518,078
-

28,518,078
31,486,002

-

60,004,080

74,270,271
22,297,378

-
-

5,243,899
9,816,413

21,626,780
1,203,448
8,045,264

-
-
-

6,202,884

52,138,688

-
4,192,685

107,880,939
5,715,601

117,789,225
6,435,948

-

124,225,173

(72,086,485)
(51,972,893)

-
-

19,402,244
10,533,357
19,102,976

621,974
-
-
-
-
-

49,660,551

-
7,337,198

57,931,236
-

65,268,434
6,657,503

-

71,925,937

(22,265,386)
20,113,592

12,205,936
32,647,648
12,038,184
1,443,593
1,595,678

99,664
-
-
-
-
-

60,020,703

3,657,501
4,959,294
4,808,442

-

13,425,237
4,216,488

-

17,641,725

42,378,978
42,378,978

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman
Due from banks
Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha recivables
Ijarah assets - Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Investments
Property and Equipment
Intangibles
Deferred tax asset
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

Due to banks
Customers’ current accounts
Customers’ wakala
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTHOLDERS

TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTHOLDERS AND OWNERS’ EQUITY
Net gap
Cumulative Net gap

6 months
to 1 year

Over 5 
years

TotalUp to 
1 month

1 to 6 
months

1 to 5
years

The table below summarizes the maturity analysis of financing and various categories of funding:

2016 RO
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144,619
-
-

4,705,972
42,138,029

-
-

3,933,843
2,230,441

-
-

53,152,904

-
-
-
-

-
18,189,992
85,935,698

104,125,690

(49,925,843)
1,046,944

6,062,940
31,255,310
25,312,392
42,989,409

130,090,007
1,050,407
5,482,693
3,933,843
2,230,441
1,942,158
2,378,602

252,728,202

1,925,000
25,685,581

114,829,056
3,485,085

145,924,722
20,867,781
85,935,698

252,728,201

1,046,944

-
-

689,447
25,156,742
55,794,255

796,555
-
-
-

1,942,158
-

84,379,157

-
11,558,512
28,790,000

-

40,348,512
85,000

-

40,433,512

43,945,645
50,972,787

-
-

145,177
8,415,080

20,805,512
132,231

5,482,693
-
-
-

2,378,602

37,359,295

-
5,137,116

32,398,550
3,485,085

41,020,751
144,530

-

41,165,281

(3,805,986)
7,027,142

-
-

17,156,212
3,974,672

10,020,197
104,969

-
-
-
-
-

31,256,050

-
3,852,837
1,566,100

-

5,418,937
120,800

-

5,539,737

25,716,313
10,833,128

5,918,321
31,255,310
7,321,556

736,943
1,332,014

16,652
-
-
-
-
-

46,580,796

1,925,000
5,137,116

52,074,406
-

59,136,522
2,327,459

-

61,463,981

(14,883,185)
(14,883,185)

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman
Due from banks
Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha recivables
Ijarah assets - Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Investments
Property and Equipment
Intangibles
Deferred tax asset
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

Due to banks
Customers’ current accounts
Customers’ wakala
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED
INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS

TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF INVESTMENT
ACCOUNTHOLDERS AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

Net gap
Cumulative Net gap

6 months
to 1 year

Over 5 
years

TotalUp to 
1 month

1 to 6 
months

1 to 5
years

2015 RO

8.5 MARKET RISK:

8.5.1 Qualitative Disclosures

Market risk is defined as the risk of losses in the value of on or off-balance sheet financial instruments caused by changes in market prices or rates including 
changes in profit rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. 

A Treasury and Capital Markets Policy is in place which provides detail guidelines for management of market risk. 

The capital charge for market risk is computed as per the standardised approach.
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Regulatory/In-House Policy Limits and guidelines as approved by the Board are strictly adhered to, deviations if any are immediately escalated and action taken 
wherever necessary. The principal categories of market risk faced by the Bank are set out below:

Foreign exchange risk: 
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the foreign currency positions taken by the Bank may be adversely affected due to volatility in foreign exchange rates. The 
responsibility for management of foreign exchange risk rests with the Treasury and Capital Market Department of the Bank. Foreign exchange risk management in 
the Bank is ensured through regular measurement and monitoring of open foreign exchange positions. The foreign exchange transactions carried out by the Bank are 
on behalf of customers and are on a back-to-back basis. No proprietary foreign exchange positions are assumed by the Bank. The Bank conservatively restricts its 
Net Open Position below 39.2% of the net-worth of the Bank vis-à-vis the Regulatory limit of 40%. Limits are in place for individual currencies too.
 
Profit rate risk:  
Profit rate risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a financial loss as a result of mismatch in the profit rate on the assets and investment account holders. The profit 
distribution is based on profit sharing agreements instead of guaranteed return to investment account holders; therefore, the Bank is not subject to any significant 
profit rate risk. However, the profit sharing arrangements will result in displaced commercial risk when the Bank’s results do not allow the Bank to distribute profits 
in line with the market rates.

In respect of monitoring the impact of profit rate changes on the earnings and economic value of the Bank, the Bank has developed suitable measurement 
approaches. The measurement systems for profit rate sensitivity analysis are: traditional maturity gap analysis (to measure the profit rate sensitivity of earnings), and 
duration (to measure profit rate sensitivity of capital). The results of the sensitivity analysis are a calendar item at the meetings of the ALCO.

Price risk: 
Investment price risk is the risk of reduction in the market value of the Bank’s portfolio as a result of diminution in the market value of individual investment. 
The responsibility for management of investment price risk rests with the Treasury under the supervision and guidance from the ALCO of the Bank. The Bank’s 
investments are approved by the appropriate authorities and are subject to rigorous due diligence. 

The Sukuk investments are held in the Available for Sale. Investments held in the Available for Sale Category are marked to market on a daily basis based on their 
market value. The market value of the investments is monitored against the stop loss limits and market trends of the individual investment

The equity investments are held in the Available for Sale category, the same are monitored on a daily basis vis-à-vis the rates available on recognized stock 
exchanges, against the stop loss limits prescribed by the Bank.

The Bank allocates capital for its investment portfolio based on the Basel II standardized approach.  

Investments in Sukuk and Equity are made after a detailed due diligence of the Issuer/Company, and approved by the Management Credit Committee with a 
risk review thereon provided by the Risk Management department. Investments are made in Shari’a compliant equities which are liquid and actively traded on 
recognized exchanges. Investment in Sukuk is made in Sukuk issued by Regional Sovereigns and Corporates of repute for which an active secondary market exists. 
The investments in Sukuk and equities are part of the Banking Book, classified as Available for Sale, made with the objective of earning constant periodic returns on 
Sukuk and dividend on Equities, the same are not held for speculative purposes.

Commodity risk:  
The Bank does not have exposure to the commodity market.

The various techniques used by the Bank for the purposes of measuring and monitoring of market risk are as follows:
 Overnight open positions
 Stop loss limits
 Profit rate gap analysis
 Earnings at Risk
 Economic Value

Lists for the above mechanisms are approved by the Board based on the recommendations of ALCO. Treasury and Capital Markets department and Risk Management 
department of the Bank monitors the positions vis-à-vis the limits approved by the Board. 
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Foreign Exchange Risk:   The Bank has exposure in foreign exchange and as such is exposed to foreign currency risk. However, significant amount of foreign currency 
are either in GCC currencies or USD which are pegged to OMR, therefore result of any sensitivity analysis will not be material.

Profit Rate Risk: The Bank measures the profit rate risk in its banking book by computing the earning at risk and Economic Value by using the methodology 
prescribed in the Basel document – Principles for Management and Supervision of Interest Rate Risk – July 2004

Price risk: The Bank’s investment in Sukuk and Equity held in the Available for Sale Category are marked to market on a daily basis.

Reports on market risk is a calendar agenda item at the meetings of the ALCO which is held on a monthly basis.

The Bank employs four categories of stress testing, profit rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and Sukuk prices. For each category the worst possible shocks 
that might realistically occur in the market are considered for stress testing.

8.5.2 Quantitative disclosures

The Bank’s hold investment portfolio in banking book and not in trading book.
Total amount of assets subject to market risk by type of assets

Breakdown of market RWA by

MARKET RISK POSITION

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign Exchange risk

Foreign Exchange - NOP
Percentage of NOP to Regulatory Capital
Regulatory Ceiling 

Price risk
Impact of 10% fall in price

Regional listed Sukuk
Listed Equities

TOTAL

11,150

11,150
35%

32,088 

10%
10%

4,677

4,677
5.50%
33,638

690,070
238,500

928,570

2016
RWA (RO’000)

2016

Change in price

2015 
RWA (RO’000)

2015 

Effect on equity
 

Amount subject to Market Risk (RO’000)

Value at risk of Bank’s equity portfolio computed at 95% confidence interval comes to OMR 13,898.
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8.6 OPERATIONAL RISK: 

8.6.1 Qualitative Disclosure

Operational risk is the risk inherent in all business activities that losses will result from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external 
events. Primary responsibility for the day-to-day management of operational risk lies with the Bank’s individual business units and support units. Each unit is 
responsible for ensuring that each function complies with the defined and approved operational framework through the establishment of procedures, internal 
controls, a succession plan and reliable and timely management reporting.

The objectives of operational risk management at alizz Islamic Bank are as follows:

 To achieve strong risk control by harnessing the latest risk management technologies and techniques, resulting in a distinctive risk management capability,  
 enabling business units to meet their performance and growth objectives.

 To minimize the impact of operational risks through means like a fully functional business continuity plan, up-to-date documentation, developing general  
 operational risk awareness within the Bank, Risk and Control Self-Assessment, Key Risk indicators (KRIs), new product review and approval processes and  
 business continuity plans.

 Results of monitoring of operational risk will enable proper performance evaluation and compliance.

Business and Support units have the primary responsibility for identifying, measuring and managing the operational risks that are inherent in their respective 
operations. Operational risk is controlled through a series of strong internal controls and audits, well-defined segregation of duties and reporting lines, detailed 
operational manuals and standards. Internal audit function independently reviews effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control and its ability to minimize the impact 
of operational risks. 

The Risk Control and Self-Assessment (RCSA) process enables the line managers to identify the significant operational risks and the controls in place to manage 
them, in their area which is documented in the RCSA document, which are duly assessed on the basis of the impact and frequency of each risks identified. As part 
of Performance Analysis of each employee, especially the Material Risk Takers, operational risk events forms an important Key Performance Indicator. The Key Risk 
Indicators (KRIs) for the significant risks identified are monitored on a quarterly basis vis-à-vis the threshold limits. Compliance to Policy and Procedural guidelines is 
assessed by the Internal Audit Department. 

The Bank’s operational risk management policy provides the framework to identify, assess, monitor, control and report operational risks in a consistent and 
comprehensive manner across the Bank. A distinct operational risk management function is in place to independently support Business and Support units in the 
process of identifying, assessing, monitoring, controlling and reporting of operational risks.  

The Bank on a continuous basis, assesses the effectiveness with identified risks, and regularly monitors the operational risk profiles and material exposures to losses.

The Business and Support functions in consultation with the Risk Management department will determine all material operational risks and decide the appropriate 
procedures to be used to control and/or mitigate the said risks.

A well laid down process is in place for reporting of operational risk events. Each Business and Support units are required to submit the operational risk event report 
at monthly intervals. The same are reviewed by the Risk Management department and are submitted to the Management Risk Committee. Management Risk 
Committee undertakes periodic analysis of operational risk events to identify the root cause for the event and take appropriate actions to mitigate the same.
A library of operational risks both internal and external, are available with the Risk Management department.

The Bank follows the Basic Indicator approach for determining operational risk.

Business Continuity Management: 
Business Continuity Management is the implementation of measures, planning and preparation to ensure that the Bank continues to operate at a pre-decided level 
following an unplanned event or disruption in operations.
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The Bank has in place a Business Continuity Policy duly approved by the Board; A detailed Business Impact Analysis was carried out. A Business Continuity Site has been 
set up and the same has been tested. During the course of the testing, training was imparted to the employees. Internal Audit also provides an independent assessment to 
evaluate the program’s effectiveness. 

Due to their independence from the business units within the Bank, the Internal Audit Department have a well drafted audit program to periodically review all business and 
support functions and communicate exceptions and control lapses, if any, to the functional head. In turn, the business and support functions head will review the relevant 
policies and procedures to address the gaps identified

In case of internal controls, whenever new products, services or process are implemented by the Bank a detailed review of the same is conducted to identify the 
operational risks and address the same. Similarly, whenever any of the existing products, services or processes are reviewed, a detailed review of the same is conducted to 
identify the operational risks and address the same. Alternatively, whenever any operational risk event takes places the controls are reviewed and strengthened to prevent 
the reoccurrence of similar operational risk events. 

During the RCSA process, the line managers are provided information about the objectives of Operational Risk management.

8.6.2 Quantitative Disclosure

Amount of non-shari’a compliant income transferred to charity was OMR 6,036.

ITEM

Net income from financing activities
Net income from investing activities
Other income - net 
Gross Income
Average Income
Gross Income times of Alpha (15%)

OPERATIONAL RISK BASED ON BASIC INDICATOR APPROACH

12,528,708 
             286,876               

1,153,615            
13,969,199 

        10,567,646               
1,585,147 

           
19,814,336 

6,087,817                  
234,736                  
843,540               

7,166,093               
7,166,093               
1,074,914 

           
13,436,424 

2016
RO

2015 
RO

8.7 RATE OF RETURN RISK:

8.7.1 Qualitative Disclosure

Rate of return risk arises from the possibility that changes in return rates will affect future profitability or the fair value of financial instruments. The Bank is exposed to rate 
of return risk as a result of mismatches in repricing of assets and liabilities.

The profit rate risk may arise due to the financing and investing activities:

In addition, rate of return risk can also affect the Bank through market wide changes that are brought on by changes in the economy. The effect of the market rates is 
reflected and can be seen in the Bank’s pricing of contracts as they carry competitive pricing that prevails in the market. When risks are high, the market tends to place a 
higher rate of return to maintain the risk /return profile. Accordingly, the market reduces the rate of return when it identifies a decrease in the market wide risk that would 
be reflected by banks decreasing their rate of return pricing.
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As a strategy for managing the rate of return risk in the banking book, the Bank 

 Has identified the profit rate sensitive products and activities it wishes to engage in;
 Makes efforts to match the amount of floating rate assets with floating rate liabilities in the banking book

The Bank uses the following tools for profit rate risk measurement in the banking book:
 Re-pricing gap analysis which measures the arithmetic difference between the profit-sensitive assets and liabilities in the banking book in absolute
 terms; and

 Computing the Earnings at Risk and Economic value assuming a 200 bps shift in profit rates.

The Bank’s cautious asset liability strategy avoids funding short term financing facilities from long term investments. 

The Bank has implemented a system to measure the profit rate risk through the use of gap analysis based on repricing buckets. 

The statement of Sensitivity of Assets and Liabilities, results of the assumed shift in profits rates on the economic value and earnings at risk is a calendar item at the 
meetings of the ALCO, which reviews the same and actions points are determined.

8.7.2 Quantitative Disclosure

Average yield on bank’s financial assets and liabilities is as follows

ITEM

Due from banks
Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Investments
Due to banks’
Customer Wakala bil Istithmar
Equity of unrestricted Investment Accountholders

0.79 
5.34 
5.25 
4.64 
4.81 
4.74 
0.64 
2.77 
0.87 

0.82 
3.20 
4.89 
4.30 
4.56 
2.84 
0.22 
1.80 
0.30 

2016
in percentage

2015 
in percentage

The sensitivity analysis of the impact of profit rate movement in the market by 200 basis points showed it would have a negative impact 
on the income of the Bank by RO 2.09 million.
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-
-
-

26,113,573
-
-

26,113,573

-
-

40,159,428
3,657,500

-
-
-
-
-
-

43,816,928
(17,703,355)
(20,169,699)

12,325,385
-

2,248,309
-

5,765,322
8,602,214

28,941,230

44,222,240
-
-
-

5,965,629
100,000,000

289,969
(18,981,331)

(37,577)
-

131,458,930
(102,517,700)

-

-
-

5,732,796
37,781,007

-
-

43,513,803

-
-

103,522,070
-
-
-
-
-

(26,815)
-

103,495,255
(59,981,452)
(80,151,151)

12,483,664
32,647,647
9,218,264

313,161,539
5,765,322
8,602,214

381,878,650

44,222,240
62,963,751

183,825,284
3,657,500
5,965,629

100,000,000
289,969

(18,981,331)
(64,392)

-
381,878,650

-
-

158,279
32,647,647

-
39,313,061

-
-

72,118,987

62,963,751
11,621,581

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

74,585,332
(2,466,345)
(2,466,345)

-
-

1,237,159
172,541

-
-

1,409,700

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,409,700
102,517,700

-
-
-

79,301,883
-
-

79,301,883

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

79,301,883
101,108,000

-
-
-

49,704,166
-
-

49,704,166

-
-

2,632,739
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

2,632,739
47,071,427
21,806,118

-
-
-

80,775,309
-
-

80,775,309

-
-

25,889,466
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

25,889,466
54,885,843

(25,265,309)

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman
Balances due from Other Banks
Investments
Financing
Fixed Assets
Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Current Deposits
Saving Deposits
Time Deposits
Balances due to Other Banks
Interest Payment & Other liabilities
Capital
Reserves
Retained Earnings
Others Others (IRS)

TOTAL
GAP
CUMULATIVE GAP

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman
Balances due from Other Banks
Investments
Financing
Fixed Assets
Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Current Deposits
Saving Deposits
Time Deposits
Balances due to Other Banks
Interest Payment & Other liabilities
Capital
Reserves
Retained Earnings
Others Others (IRS)

TOTAL
GAP
CUMULATIVE GAP

5-20
years

3-6
months

Non
Sensitive

6-12 
months

Total1-3
years

3-5
years

Up to
3 months

Over 20
years

2016
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8.8 DISPLACED COMMERCIAL RISK (DCR)

8.9 CONTRACT SPECIFIC RISKS

8.8.1 Qualitative Disclosure

8.9.1 Qualitative Disclosure

8.9.2 Quantitative Disclosure

8.8.2 Quantitative Disclosure

DCR refers to the amount of risks that are transferred to shareholders in order to protect the IAH from bearing some or all of the risks to which they are contractually 
exposed under Mudaraba financing contracts. The risk sharing is achieved by the creation of prudential reserves and the Mudarib foregoing in full or in part his share of 
profit. This ensures smoothening of the returns to the IAH and enables payment of returns that are competitive in the marketplace.

Bank has in place a Profit Distribution Policy which provides detailed guidelines for creation of PER and IRR to mitigate DCR in case Mudaraba Pool performance is not in 
line with the market trends. 

The Bank has adopted a policy of pooling the shareholder and IAH funds, the assets and investments financed by the pool are after a detailed due diligence is conducted 
by the business and reviewed by risk management department on individual counterparties. Moreover, the exposures are regularly monitored to ensure that the same are 
performing and if any adverse trend is observed, remedial measures are initiated.

On a quarterly basis, the profit earned by the Mudaraba Pool is reviewed against the market trends and profit is paid to the IAH in line with the market returns. Allocation is 
made to the prudential reserves: PER and IRR only if surplus is available. Most of the times a part of the Mudarib share of profit is allocated towards the IAH.

The Credit Risk Appetite document of the Bank has provided limits for the purpose of financing, i.e. Working Capital, Term Finance, Project Finance and Trade Finance. 
Defined within the purpose of financing are the various Shari’a compliant financing contracts that can be used. The risk weighting requirement for each of the Shari’a 
compliant financing contracts, based on the risk profile of the customer as provided in the IBRF is taken into account for the purposes of computing the CAR of the Bank. 

There are no benchmark rates in existence to provide comparison of historical profit pay out by the Bank to the customers against the benchmarks. Profit rate and 
weightages assigned have been mentioned in Unrestricted Investment accounts holders section.

Allocations to PER has been mentioned in Unrestricted Investment account holders section.

Credit risk weighted assets by type of financing contracts is as follows:

FINANCING CONTRACTS

Murabaha receivables
Wakala bil Istithmar
Ijarah assets-Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing Musharaka
Letter of Guarantees
Letter of Credit
Irrevocable financing commitments

TOTAL

61,656,206            
55,847,398          

113,277,712            
12,630,160            
15,365,326               
2,325,470               
5,194,225 

         
266,296,497 

43,718,105            
25,568,073          

112,139,015               
1,061,017               
5,798,146                  

290,898               
5,208,715 

         
193,783,970 

2016 2015 

              Risk Weighted Assets
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9. GENERAL DISCLOSURE FROM CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

9.1 QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

Corporate governance deals with the way companies are managed and led, defines the roles of the Directors and formalizes the internal control process within the 
institution. 

The Board of Directors of alizz Islamic Bank (the Bank) supports the establishment of a governance culture at the Bank.  Accordingly, the Board and its Committees 
continuously evaluate and improve their governance practices, policies and procedures. The Board also ensures that the Bank applies the principles of the Capital 
Market Authority’s (the CMA) Code of Corporate Governance (the Code) as well as the regulations for Corporate Governance of Banking and Financial Institutions 
issued by the Central Bank of Oman. As an Islamic Bank, alizz Islamic Bank also applies the Central Bank of Oman regulation for islamic banking institutions

The Bank has complied with all the applicable standards of Auditing and Accounting Organisation of Islamic Financial Institution (AAOIFI) and relevant International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

General Disclosure about Consumer 

As part of the overall consumer engagement we have implemented blended approach to disclosure all product & services information to customers. The following 
approaches have been used to publicize product & service information to customers:
 Product brochures and flyers containing specific product mechanism and features has been published
 Product information is published on the Bank’s website
 We have produced and printed a booklet that contains all Frequently Asked Questions about Islamic Banking business.
 All front end facing sales and service staff has been trained on Islamic Banking concepts and product offerings to be able to answer customer queries.   
 Additionally, back office team members have to been trained to ensure Shari’a compliance in operational process flows.
 All Call Centre staff has been trained and equipped to handle all customer related inquires.
 Social media platforms have been used to interact with all public
 Press releases are published frequently to inform the public of AIB’s services and products
 Face to face meetings with media, government agencies and NGO’s

The Customer Service Staff at the branch and Call Centre note down the customer complaints and coordinate with the relevant stakeholder, who in turn initiates 
measure for resolving the same. A draft document is in place.

Corporate Social Responsibility

At Alizz Islamic Bank CSR is used to compliment the Banks mission to deliver exceptional and sustainable results to our shareholders. This is carried out by 
integrating social concerns into our values, strategy and operational transparency. We are therefore committed to play a leading role in the communities we serve.  

This year CSR activities will be channeled in two main direction:
 Provide support to a cause that is close to the Omani community 
 Engage with bank staff to encourage the spirit of volunteerism 
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9.2 QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

Balances with related party and transactions with them during 2016 are as follows:

6,139,247 
350,801 
483,454 
39,688 

7,013,190 

1,126,810 
25,000 

              - 
1,151,810 

778,422 

39,600 
29,435 

527,328 
              - 

596,363 

1,368,443 
25,000 
13,833 

1,407,276 

28,995 

39,600 
29,435 

527,328 
- 

596,363 

1,154,842 
25,000 
13,833 

1,193,675 

28,995 

6,139,247 
350,801 
483,454 
33,368 

7,006,870 

1,089,628 
25,000 

              - 
1,114,628 

778,422 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

213,601 
- 
- 

213,601 

- 

- 
- 
- 

6,320 
6,320 

37,182 
- 
- 

37,182 

- 

ASSETS

Wakala bil Istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijarah assets-Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Other assets

LIABILITIES
Current account
Customer Wakala bil Istithmar
Other liabilities

EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT 
ACCOUNTHOLDERS

2016
RO

2016
RO

2015
RO

2016
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

Related party transactions for 2016
Directors Other Related Parties Total

ITEM

INCOME
Income from financing and investing activities 
Other income  

EXPENSES
Return on equity of IAH before Bank’s share as a Mudarib 
Profit on Wakala bil Istithmar payable 
Board expenses  
Shari’a board expenses
Other expenses 

ITEM

Compensation of key management personnel is as follows:
Salaries and allowances
End of service benefits

256,318 
10,813

 
267,131

922 
655 

64,369 
55,367 

979,648
 

1,100,961 

840,693 
23,880 

864,573 

29,313
3,310

32,623

94 
6,476 

50,788 
52,372 

      1,012,823
 

      1,122,553 

844,372 
21,755

 
866,127 

2016
RO

2016
RO

2015 
RO

2015 
RO
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10. SHARI’A GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Shari’a governance framework in the Bank comprises of the Shari’a Supervisory Board (SSB) at the Board level. The Shari’a Audit and Compliance department (SACD) 
in the Bank is headed by the Internal Shari’a Reviewer (ISR). Internal Shari’a Reviewer (ISR) reports functionally to Shari’a Supervisory Board and to CEO with respect to 
administrative matters. SSB decisions and guidelines are communicated to Bank management through SACD because the responsibility for observing and implementing 
Shari’a guidelines rests with the management of the Bank. Shari’a guidelines issued by SSB are binding on the Bank. SSB issues a report to shareholders of the Bank 
regarding compliance of the Bank’s activities with Shari’a guidelines. SSB has approved Shari’a Audit Charter, Shari’a Compliance Manual and Shari’a non-compliance Risk 
Policy.  

ISR is an experienced professional and he is the Secretary of SSB in addition to his duties. SACD is divided into Shari’a Compliance Unit (SCU) and Shari’a Audit Unit (SAU) 
managed by Head of Shari’a compliance unit and Head of Shari’a audit unit respectively. 

Sharia Compliance Unit facilitates the management in ensuring compliance with Shari’a guidelines as manifested by the SSB on a day to day basis in all the Bank’s business 
activities, operations and transactions. Additionally SCU provides appropriate recommendations to improve and enhance the compliance with Shari’a guidelines.  This is 
done through review and approval of the contracts, agreements, policies, procedures, products’ manuals, process flows, core banking system, application of accounting 
standards, transaction, fees, charges, commissions, financial and management reporting etc. SCU is also responsible for the Shari’a non-compliance risk management 
function. The mechanism of common pool and distribution of profit to various investment deposit classes is closely monitored by SCU.

Shari’a Audit Unit assists the ISR and SSB in forming post facto opinion on the extent of the Shari’a compliance of the Bank’s operation. SAU examines and evaluates the 
extent of compliance with Shari’a standards, principles, rules, Fatwa, and resolutions issued by SSB through actual audit on the business transactions. Its activities cover 
planning, executing, communicating, reporting and following up of audit findings included in the Shari’a audit plan.

Shari’a audit on the banks transaction has been conducted as follows:

DEPARTMENTS

Retail Banking:  Murabaha, Ijarah, Forward Ijarah, Service Ijara
Corporate Banking:  Murabaha, Ijarah, Wakala, Forward Ijarah, 
Diminishing Musharakah and  Trade Finance
Treasury: Interbank Wakala, FX Wa’ad invemsent
Third Party Contracts: All service contracts 

62%
100%

100%
40%

65%
100%

100%
60%

2016 2015 

 Percentage of total executed transactions

10.1 EXTERNAL SHARI’A AUDIT

10.2 SSB MEETINGS 

The external Shari’a audit for the period from 1st January 2016 to 31 December 2016 has been executed in this year. The external shari’a audit report is shared 
with auditor.

Five SSB meetings were conducted with full quorum. SSB has reviewed 20 products and product related documents and issued 25 Fatwas on various queries. SSB also 
reviewed the quarterly PDMs, policies, investment proposals, and the Shari’a audit reports executed audits and provided the related guidance to rectify the mistakes and 
eliminate the mistakes in future. 
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10.3 TRAININGS

10.4 AWARENESS 

10.5 ZAKAH 

10.6 EARNINGS PROHIBITED BY SHARI’A AND DONATION AGAINST LATE PAYMENT

10.7 REMUNERATION OF AND SHARI’A SUPERVISORY BOARD (SSB)

SACD conducted total 9 days of trainings for 122 staffs on Shari’a Rules in Islamic Financial Transactions, Islamic banking fundamentals, products, process and 
documentation. It covers 50% of the staff. The trainings are provided to Branch staff, customer service representatives, sales team and Credit administration. The bank also 
launched E-Learning system including Islamic Banking course to ensure interactive design and convenience to access 24/7 from range of devices such as mobile, tablet, 
iPad …etc. The total number of employees who completed the course amounted to 154.

SACD conducted in collaboration with Retail Banking Department an Islamic Banking Awareness Event held in CBFS and SQU for the faculty and students.

Zakah is calculated in accordance with FAS 9 - Zakah issued by Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI) using the net assets 
method. Whereas the board of directors of the bank is not authorized to pay the Zakah on behalf of the shareholders, the responsibility for payment of Zakah on 
the Bank’s shares lays at the part of the shareholders.The Bank calculates the “Zakah base” based on audited financial statements and after approval from Shari’a 
Supervisory Board, notify the Shareholders of their pro-rata share of the Zakah payable annually. Payment of Zakah on the Investment Accounts and other Accounts is the 
responsibility of Investments Account Holders. 

The Bank is committed to avoid recognising any income generated from non-Shari’a-compliant sources such as late payment fee received due to the delay in instalment 
payment and profit from Shari’a non-compliant transactions as instructed by SSB. Accordingly all non-Shari’a-compliant income is credited to a charity account where the 
Bank uses these funds for charitable purposes. In addition to the previous years undistributed charity amount of RO 3,682 during the year ended 2016, RO 19,885 has 
been credited to charity account being income prohibited by Shari’a and donation due to late payment. The charity fund of OMR 5,613 is distributed to charity organisation 
as approved by SSB. Remaining charity amount of RO 17,954 shall be distributed in the first quarter of the financial year.

Following remuneration of Shari’a Board has been approved by the general assembly;
Chairman:  RO 16,000/- per annum 
Member:  RO 12,000/- per annum each 

Sitting Fee of Shari’a Board has been approved by the general assembly:
Chairman and Members RO 400/- per Meeting each

BASEL II, PILLAR III AND BASEL III REPORT
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11. BASEL III

11.1 CAPITAL DISCLOSURE

The below capital disclosures are prepared in accordance with the requirements of the CBO Circular BM 1114 ‘Regulatory Capital and Composition of Capital 
Disclosure Requirements under Basel III’ issued on 17 November 2013.

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves

 Directly issued qualifying common share capital (and equivalent for non-joint stock companies) plus related  
 stock surplus
 Retained earnings
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves)
 Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock companies) 
 Public sector capital injections grandfathered until 1 January 2018
 Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in group CET1)

 COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL BEFORE REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS 

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments 

 Prudential valuation adjustments
 Goodwill (net of related tax liability)
 Other intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability)
 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences (net  
 of related tax liability)
 Cash-flow hedge reserve
 Shortfall of provisions to expected losses
 Securitisation gain on sale (as set out in paragraph 14.9 of CP-1)
 Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities.
 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
 Investments in own shares (if not already netted off paid-in capital on reported balance sheet)
 Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity
 Investments in the capital of banking, financial, insurance and takaful entities that are outside the scope of  
 regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of   
 the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
 Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial, insurance and takaful entities that are   
            outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)
 Mortgage Servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)
 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold,
 net of related tax liability)
 Amount exceeding the 15% threshold
 of which: significant investments in  the common stock of financials  

100,289,969 

  (18,981,331)
                -   
                -   
                -   
                -   

81,308,638 

 126,721 
                -   

     2,227,813 
     2,532,694

 
                -   
                -   
                -   
                -   
                -   
                -   
                -   
                -   

                -   

                -   
                -   

                -   
                -   

1

2
3
4

5

6

7
8
9
10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

20
21

22
23
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 of which: mortgage servicing rights
 of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
 National specific regulatory adjustments 
 REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS APPLIED TO COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 IN RESPECT OF AMOUNTS SUBJECT  
 TO PRE-BASEL III TREATMENT
 Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to  
 cover deductions

 TOTAL REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS TO COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 

                -   
                -   
                -   

              

               
                -   

              
4,887,228

24
25
26

27

28

29 COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL (CET1)

 ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL (AT1)

 TIER 1 CAPITAL (T1 = CET1 + AT1)

76,421,410 

-

Additional Tier 1 Capital: Instruments

 Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1 instruments plus related stock surplus
 of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting standards 5
 of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting standards 6
 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Additional Tier 1 
 Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments not included in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and held  
 by third parties (amount allowed in group AT1)
 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 

 ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL BEFORE REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS 

Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments

 Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments
 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1 instruments
 Investments in the capital of banking, financial, insurance and takaful  entities that are outside the scope of  
 regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of   
 the issued common share capital of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)
 Significant investments in the capital of banking, financial, insurance and takaful entities that are outside   
 the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions)
 National specific regulatory adjustments
 REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS APPLIED TO ADDITIONAL TIER 1 IN RESPECT OF AMOUNTS SUBJECT TO   
 PRE-BASEL III TREATMENT
 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions

 TOTAL REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS TO ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL 

-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-
-
-

-

-

-

-

30
31
32
33
34

35

36

37
38
39

40

41

42

43

44

45 76,421,410
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Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions

 Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus related stock surplus
 Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out from Tier 2 
 Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not included in rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and  
 held by third parties (amount allowed in group Tier 2)
 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 
 Provisions

 TIER 2 CAPITAL BEFORE REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS 

Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments 

 Investments in own Tier 2 instruments
 Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments
 Investments in the capital of banking, financial, insurance and takaful entities that are outside the scope of  
 regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of   
 the issued common share capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold)
 Significant investments in the capital banking, financial, insurance and takaful entities that are outside the  
 scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions)
 National specific regulatory adjustments
 REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS APPLIED TO TIER 2 IN RESPECT OF AMOUNTS SUBJECT TO PRE-BASEL III   
 TREATMENT

 TOTAL REGULATORY ADJUSTMENTS TO TIER 2 CAPITAL 

 
 TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS (60A+60B+60C)

 Of which: Credit risk weighted assets
 Of which: Market risk weighted assets
 Of which: Operational risk weighted assets

Risk Weighted Assets

RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS IN RESPECT OF AMOUNTS SUBJECT TO PRE-BASEL III TREATMENT

-
-
-

-
3,799,423 

3,799,423 

-
-
-

-

-

-

-

46
47
48

49
50

51

52
53
54

55

56

57

58

59

60

60 A
60 B
60 C

TIER 2 CAPITAL (T2)

TOTAL CAPITAL (TC = T1 + T2)

3,799,423

80,220,833

327,281,261
 

301,710,023 
11,150,000 
14,421,238 
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Capital Ratios

 Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)
 Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)
 Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)
 Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1 requirement plus capital conservation buffer   
 plus countercyclical buffer requirements plus G-SIB/D-SIB buffer requirement expressed as a percentage   
 of risk weighted assets)
 of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 
 of which: bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement 
 of which: D-SIB/G-SIB buffer requirement 
 Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

National minima (if different from Basel III)

 National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel 3 minimum)
 National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel 3 minimum)
 National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel 3 minimum)

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

 Non-significant investments in the capital of other financials
 Significant investments in the common stock of financials
 Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability)
 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2

 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised approach
 (prior to application of cap)
 Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardised approach
 Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach   
 (prior to application of cap)
 Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
(only applicable between 1 Jan 2018 and 1 Jan 2022)

 Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements 
 Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) 
 Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements 
 Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) 
 Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out arrangements 
 Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities) 

 23.35 
           23.35 
           24.51 
           7.625 

           0.625 
                -   
                -   

           11.89 

  7.625 
           9.625 
         12.625 

   -   
                -   
                -   

2,532,694 

   3,799,423
                

3,776,098
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-

61
62
63
64

65
66
67
68

69
70
71

72
73
74
75

76

77
78

79

80
81
82
83
84
85
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Published financial 
statements 

ReferenceUnder Regulatory 
scope of consolidation 

12,483,664
32,647,648

312,795,528
312,795,528

3,771,375
3,771,375                                                    

-   
9,218,264
5,765,322

-2,227,813
8,735,578

-2,532,694

381,646,004
 

100,289,969
100,289,969
 -19,045,724
-18,981,331

-64,393
28,048

-126,721

81,244,245

291,028,657
                                         

3,657,501 
                                         

5,715,601 

381,646,004

f

c

d

a

b

g
e

12,483,664
32,647,648

312,795,528
-   
-
-
-                                             

9,218,264
5,765,322

-
8,735,578

 

381,646,004

 
100,289,969

 -19,045,724
-18,981,331

-64,393
 

81,244,245

291,028,657
                           

3,657,501
 

5,715,601

381,646,004

TABLE 2A – EXPANSION OF BALANCE SHEET UNDER REGULATORY SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Year ended 31 December 2016

ASSETS
Cash and balances with CBO
Due from Banks
Financings – Net, of which:
 Loans and advances to domestic customers
 Provision against financings, Of which:
 Amount eligible for T2
 Amount ineligible for T2
 Investments at fair value through equity
Fixed assets
  Amount eligible for T1
Other assets
 Amount eligible for T1

TOTAL ASSETS

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
Paid-up Capital, of which:
 Amount eligible for CET1
Reserves & Surplus; of which
 Amount eligible for CET1 
Investment fair value gains
 Amount eligible\ for CET2
 Amount ineligible for CET1

TOTAL CAPITAL

Deposits 

Due to Banks and financial institutions 

Other liabilities & provisions 

TOTAL
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COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL: INSTRUMENTS AND RESERVES 

 Directly issued qualifying common share (and equivalent for non-joint stock   
 companies) capital plus related stock surplus
 Accumulated loss

 Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments

 Intangible Assets including deferred tax

 Cumulative Losses on Fair Value

 Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1)

ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL: INSTRUMENTS

 Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1)

 Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1)

TIER 2 CAPITAL: INSTRUMENTS AND PROVISIONS
 Provisions
 Fair value reserve gains of AFS investments

 Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 

 Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments

 Tier 2 capital (T2) 

TOTAL CAPITAL (TC = T1 + T2)

100,289,969

-18,981,331

81,308,638

-4,760,507

-126,721

76,421,410

-   

76,421,410

3,771,375
28,048

 
3,799,423

-   

3,799,423

80,220,833

a

b

c,d

e

-

f
g

Component of
regulatory capital
reported by Bank

Source based on reference 
numbers/letters of the

balance sheet under the 
regulatory scope of

consolidation from step 2

STEP 3: Step Reconciliation of Regulatory Capital:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8
9
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MAIN FEATURES OF REGULATORY CAPITAL

Table below discloses the key features of all the regulatory capital issued by the Bank;

1. Alizz Islamic Bank SAOG Common Equity Share Capital

Unique identifier (eg CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identifier for private placement)
Governing law(s) of the instrument Regulatory treatment
Transitional Basel III rules
Post-transitional Basel III rules
Eligible at solo/group/group & solo
Instrument type (types to be specified by each jurisdiction)
Amount recognised in regulatory capital (Currency in mil,
as of most recent reporting date)
Par value of instrument
Accounting classification
Original date of issuance
Perpetual or dated
Original maturity date
Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval
Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount
Subsequent call dates, if applicable

Coupons / dividends *
Fixed or floating dividend/coupon
Coupon rate and any related index
Existence of a dividend stopper
Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory
Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem
Noncumulative or cumulative
Convertible or non-convertible
If convertible, conversion trigger (s)
If convertible, fully or partially
If convertible, conversion rate
If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion
If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into
If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into
Write-down feature
If write-down, write-down trigger(s)
If write-down, full or partial
If write-down, permanent or temporary
If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism
Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation
(specify instrument type immediately senior to instrument)
Non-compliant transitioned features
If yes, specify non-compliant features

NA
The laws of Oman in the form of Royal Decrees,
Ministerial Decisions and CMA and CBO Regulations 
Common Equity Tier 1
Common Equity Tier 1
Solo
Common Equity Share Capital
100 million

100 million
Shareholders’ Equity
02 November 2012
Perpetual
No maturity
No
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA

2
3
4
5
6
7
8

9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
28
30
31
32
33
34

35
36
37
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NA
The laws of Oman in the form of Royal Decrees,
Ministerial Decisions and CMA and CBO Regulations 
Common Equity Tier 1
Common Equity Tier 1
Solo
Common Equity Share Capital
100 million

100 million
Shareholders’ Equity
02 November 2012
Perpetual
No maturity
No
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA

11.2 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO

The below Liquidity Coverage Ratio return is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the CBO Circular BM 1127  ‘Basel III – Framework of Liquidity 
Coverage Ratio (LCR) and LCR disclosure standards. 

Statement of Liquidity Coverage Ratio – 31.12.2016
Factor Weighted 

amount
RO

Un weighted 
amount

RO

2,576,670
9,628,994                              

-   
                                  

-
   

12,205,664

           862,754 

      2,288,241 
                  -   

          3,150,995 

                 
 -    

        2,317,568 

       2,317,568
 

5,468,563

17,674,227
 
 
                                 

-   
 

       85,129,735 
 
 

13,473,535
            -   

                             
-

2,576,670
9,628,994                                

-   
                                  

-   

12,205,664
 
                  

733,341 
        

1,945,004.98 
               -   

              
2,678,346 

 
             

  -               
1,158,784 

              
1,158,784 

3,837,130

16,042,794
 
 
                                   

-   
         

8,512,973.46 
-

                                              
673,677 

               -   
                                  

-   

100%
100%
100%

100%
 

 
85%

85%
85%

 

 
75%
50%
50%

 
3%
5%

10%
0%

 

5%
10%
40%

 

STOCK OF HQLA

LEVEL 1 ASSETS
 Coins and bank notes
 Qualifying central bank reserves 
 Qualifying marketable securities from  sovereigns, central banks, PSEs and  
 multilateral development banks
 Domestic sovereign or Central Bank debt for non-0% risk weighted sovereigns

 TOTAL LEVEL 1 ASSETS

LEVEL 2A
 Sovereign, CB, PSE, multilateral development banks assets
 (qualifying for 20% risk weighing)
 Qualifying Corporate debt securities AA- or higher
 Qualifying Covered bonds AA- or higher

 TOTAL LEVEL 2A

LEVEL 2B
 Qualifying RMBS
 Qualifying corporate debt securities, rated between A+ and BBB-
 Qualifying common equity shares

 TOTAL LEVEL 2B (MAXIMUM 15% OF HQLA)

 TOTAL LEVEL 2 ASSETS (MAXIMUM 40% OF HQLA)

 TOTAL STOCK OF HIGH QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS

CASH OUTFLOWS
A. RETAIL DEPOSITS (CUSTOMER DEPOSITS)
 Demand Deposits +  Term Deposits with residual maturity upto 30 days
 Stable deposits (deposit insurance scheme meets additional criteria)
  - Stable Deposits  
  - Less Stable retail Deposits
 Term Deposits with residual maturity of more than 30 days 
B. UNSECURED WHOLESALE FUNDING
 Demand and term deposits (less than 30 days) -stable deposits
 Less Stable deposits
 Non-financial corporates, sovereigns, central banks and PSE 

1
2
3

4

5

6

7
8

9

10
11
12

13

14

15

16
17
18
19
20

21
22
23
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Factor Weighted 
amount

RO

Un weighted 
amount

RO

-                                   
-   
            

-                                     
-   

            -   
                                   

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-

   
                   -   
                   -   

               -   
 
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  
 

11,670,000
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                    -   
                   -   
                   -   

       18,011,000 
42,358,002

                   -   

-                                   
-   
            

-                                     
-   

            -   
                                   

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-

   
                   -   
                   -   

               -   
 
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  

-   
                                  
 

583,500

-   
                                  

-   
                    -   
                   -   
                   -   

       18,011,000 
2,117,900                   

-   

20%
25%

100%
25%

5%
 

0%

15%

25%

25%
50%

100%
 

100%

100%

20%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

 
5%

10%

30%

40%
40%

100%
100%

5%
5%

STOCK OF HQLA

 If entire portion covered by deposit insurance
 Cooperative banks in an institutional network (qualifying deposits with
 the centralised institution)
 Other legal entity customers 
 Operational deposits generated by clearing, custody and
 cash management activities
 Portion covered by deposit insurance
C. SECURED FUNDING
 Secured funding transactions with a central bank or backed by Level I assets  
 with any counterparty
 Secured funding transactions backed by Level 2A assets  with
 any counterparty
 Secured funding transactions backed by non-level 1 or non-level 2A assets   
 with domestic Sovereign, domestic PSE, multilateral development banks as a  
 counterparty
 Backed by RMBS eligible for inclusion in level 2B
 Backed by other level 2B assets
 All other secured funding transactions 
D. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
 Liquidity needs  (e.g. collateral calls)related to financing transactions,
 derivatives and other contracts , downgrade of up to 3 notches 
 Market valuation changes on derivatives (largest absolute net 30 day
 collateral flows realised during preceding 24 months-look back approach)
 Valuation changes on non-level 1  posted collateral securing derivatives 
 Excess collateral held by a bank related to derivative transactions contractually  
 callable at any time by its counterparty
 Liquidity needs related to  collateral contractually due from reporting bank on  
 derivative transactions
 Increased Liquidity needs related to derivative transactions that allow
 collateral substitution to non-HQLA assets
 Liabilities maturing from SPV’s, ABCP’s and SIV’s etc. (applied to maturing  
 amounts and returnable assets)
 Asset backed securities (including covered bonds) applied to maturing   
 amounts
CURRENTLY UNDRAWN PORTION OF CREDIT LINES 
 (i) Retail and small business 
 (ii) Non-Financial corporates,  Sovereign, CB, PSEs, multilateral development  
 banks credit facility
 (iii) Non-Financial corporates,  Sovereign, CB, PSEs, multilateral development  
 banks -liquidity facility
 (iv) Banks subject to prudential supervision
 (v) Other Financial Institutions credit
 (vi) Other Financial institutions-liquidity
 (vii) Other Legal entity customers, credit and liquidity facilities
 Other contingent funding liabilities (L/cs ,LGs)
 Trade finance

24
25

26
27

28

29

30

31

32
33
34

35

36

37
38

39

40

41

42

43
44

45

46
47
48
49
50
51
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Factor Weighted 
amount

RO

Un weighted 
amount

RO

-   
                  -   

170,642,271
 
 
                 

  -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

167,119
14,942,625

27,117,501

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                    -   

42,227,245

-   
                  -   

29,899,050

 
                 

  -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                   -   

83,560 
7,471,313

27,117,501

                   -   
                   -   
                   -   
                    -   

34,672,373

22,424,288

22,424,288

7,474,762

214.63%

50%
100%

 
 

-
0%

15%
25%
50%
50%

100%
50%
50%

100%

0%
0%

100%
100%

STOCK OF HQLA

 Customer short positions covered by other customers’ collateral
 Any Other outflows

 TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS

CASH INFLOWS
Maturing secured lending transactions backed by following collateral:
 Level 1 assets 
 Level 2A assets 
 Level 2B assets-eligible RMBS
 Other assets
 Margin lending backed by all other collaterals
 All other assets
 Amounts to be received from retail counterparties
 Amounts to be received from non-financial wholesale counterparties from  
 transactions other than those listed.
 Amounts to be received from financial  institutions and central banks from  
 transactions other than those listed
 Credit or liquidity facilities provided to the reporting bank
 Operational deposits held at other financial institutions
 Other contractual cash inflows 
 Net derivatives cash inflows

 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS

 75% OF OUTFLOWS 

 Inflows restricted to 75% of outflows

 NET CASH OUTFLOW

 LCR (%)
  

52
53

54

55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62

63

64
65
66
67

68

69

70

71

72
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ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman
Due from banks
Wakala bil istithmar
Murabaha receivables
Ijarah assets-ijarah muntahia bittamleek
Diminishing musharaka
Investments
Property and equipment
Intangibles
Deferred tax asset
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS AND
OWNERS’ EQUITY 
     
LIABILITIES
Due to banks
Customers’ current accounts
Customers’ wakala bil istithmar
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS

OWNERS’ EQUITY 
Share capital
Legal reserve
Fair value reserve
Accumulated losses

TOTAL OWNERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS
AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

NET ASSETS PER SHARE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 January 2017 and signed on their behalf by:

          Chairman of the Board                                                                                                                                                           Chief Executive Officer

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these Financial Statements

2015
RONotes

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
25
13

14

15

16

17
17
17

18

19

 12,483,664 
 32,647,648 
 55,288,924 
 60,592,103 

 184,410,642 
 12,503,859 
 9,218,264 
 3,537,509 
 2,227,813 
 2,532,694  
6,202,884 

381,646,004

3,657,501 
21,730,032 

204,761,746 
5,715,601

235,864,880

64,536,879

100,000,000 
 289,969 
 (64,393)

 (18,981,331)

81,244,245

381,646,004

0.081

72,039,289

 6,062,940 
 31,255,310 
 25,312,392 
 42,989,409 

 130,090,007 
 1,050,407 
 5,482,693 
 3,933,843 
 2,230,441 
 1,942,158 
 2,378,602

252,728,202

1,925,000 
 25,685,582 

 114,829,056 
 3,485,085 

145,924,723

20,867,781

100,000,000 
 289,969 
 (97,846)

 (14,256,425)

85,935,698

252,728,202

0.086

60,209,309

2016
RO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2016
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Income from financing and investing activities

Return on equity of unrestricted investment 
accountholders before bank’s share as a Mudarib 
Bank’s share as a Mudarib

BANK’S SHARE IN INCOME AS MUDARIB AND RAB UL MAAL

Bank’s income from own investments
Other income - net

Profit on wakala bil Istithmar payable
NET OPERATING INCOME

Staff expenses
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangibles
Other general and administrative expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

LOSS BEFORE PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT AND INCOME TAX

Provision for impairment

LOSS BEFORE TAX

Income tax

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

LOSS PER SHARE

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these Financial Statements

20

21
22

11
12
23

24

25

26

 12,528,708 

 470,879 
 41,415 

 (429,464)

 12,099,244 

 286,876 
 1,153,615 

 13,539,735 
 (4,568,673)

 8,971,062 

 (7,361,326)
 (686,749)
 (534,086)

 (4,069,072)

 (12,651,233)

 (3,680,171)

 (1,635,271)

 (5,315,442)

 590,536 

 (4,724,906)

 (0.005)

 6,087,817 

 (127,198)
 59,641 

 (67,557)

 6,020,260 

 234,736 
 843,540 

 7,098,536 
 (1,103,534)

 5,995,002 

 (6,541,207)
 (628,529)
 (403,063)

 (3,071,533)

 (10,644,332)

 (4,649,330)

 (1,531,583)

 (6,180,913)

 824,529 

 (5,356,384)

 (0.005)

STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2015
RONotes

2016
RO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
  Depreciation 
  Amortisation
  Accrued for staff benefits
  Provision for impairment
  Gain / (loss) on sale of investments

Operating loss before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
  Capital deposit with Central Bank of Oman
  Wakala bil istithmar
  Murabaha receivables
  Ijarah assets-Ijarah muntahia bittamleek
  Diminishing musharaka
  Other assets
  Customers’ current accounts
  Customers’ wakala bil istithmar
  Other liabilities
  Equity of unrestricted investment account holders
  End of service benefits paid

Net cash from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through equity
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through equity
Purchase of property and equipment
Addition to intangibles

Net cash (used in) / from investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these Financial Statements

11
12

24
21

11
12

27

(5,315,442)

 686,749 
 534,086 
 37,653 

 1,635,271 
 29,588 

 (2,392,095)

 (133,109)
 (30,279,325)
 (17,966,724)
 (55,098,946)
 (11,569,143)
 (3,831,298)
 (3,955,550)
 89,932,690 
 2,312,110 

 43,669,098 
 (119,247)

 10,568,461 

 (11,739,916)
 7,940,780 
 (625,440)
 (196,433)

 (4,621,009)

 5,947,452 

 35,248,631 

 41,196,083

 (6,180,913)

 628,529 
 403,063 
 369,087 

 1,531,583 
 (20,214)

 (3,268,865)

 (19,619)
 (25,568,073)
 (25,262,727)
 (79,155,962)
 (1,061,017)
 (1,201,651)
 14,525,206 

 114,666,056 
 (4,519,043)
 16,835,574 

 (177,022)

 5,792,857 

 (17,008,017)
 18,909,881 

 (700,113)
 (270,347)

 931,404 

 6,724,261 

 28,524,370 

 35,248,631

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2015
RONotes

2016
RO
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Balance at 1 January 2016
Cumulative changes in fair value
Net amount transferred to statement of income
Loss for the year

Balance at 31 December 2016

Balance at 1 January 2015
Cumulative changes in fair value
Net amount transferred to statement of income
Loss for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015

Total Owners’
Equity

RO

Accumulated
Losses

RO

Fair Value
Reserve

RO

Legal
Reserve

RO

Share
Capital

RO

 85,935,698 
 (134,179)

 167,632 
 (4,724,906)

 81,244,245 

 91,374,473 
 (97,747)

 15,356 
 (5,356,384)

 85,935,698 

 (14,256,425 
-   

 -   
 (4,724,906)

 
(18,981,331)

 (8,900,041)
 -   
 -   

 (5,356,384)

 (14,256,425)

 (97,846)
 (134,179)

 167,632 
 -   

 (64,393)

 (15,455)
 (97,747)

 15,356 
 -   

 (97,846)

 289,969 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 289,969 

 289,969 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 289,969 

 100,000,000 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 100,000,000 

 100,000,000 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 100,000,000 

Reserves

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Sources of charity funds

Undistributed charity funds at beginning of the year 
Donation from Customers due to late payment 
Forfeit of non-shari’a compliant income

Total sources of funds during the year 

Uses of charity funds

Philanthropic societies

Total uses of funds during the year 

Undistributed charity funds at end of the year

 3,682 
 13,849 
 6,036 

 23,567 

 (5,613)

 (5,613)

 17,954 

 881 
 4,521 

 - 

 5,402 

 (1,720)

 (1,720)

 3,682 

STATEMENT OF SOURCES AND USES OF CHARITY FUND
For the year ended 31 December 2016

2015
RO

2016
RO

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2016

1  INCORPORATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Bank provides banking services which includes accepting customer deposits and providing financing through various Islamic instruments such as Murabaha,
Mudaraba, Ijarah, Wakala and Diminishing Musharaka as defined in the Central Bank of Oman’s Islamic Banking Regulatory Framework.    
         
The Bank’s registered office is P.O.Box 753, PC 112 Ruwi, Muscat and its shares are listed on Muscat Securities Market.      
  
The Bank is regulated by the CBO and its Shari’a Supervisory Board is entrusted to ensure the Bank’s adherence to Shari’a in carrying out its activities.   
     
        
2  BASIS OF PREPARATION               
2.1  Statement of compliance       
In accordance with the requirements of Section 1.2 of Title 3 of the Islamic Banking Regulatory Framework (“IBRF”) issued by CBO, the financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with Shari’a Rules and Principles as determined by the Shari’a Supervisory Board of the Bank and the Financial Accounting Standards 
(“FAS”) issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAOIFI”) and other applicable regulations of CBO (refer to note 29 
for minimum capital requirements). In accordance with requirements of AAOIFI, matters that are not covered by FAS, the Bank uses guidance from the relevant 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Thus subject to preparation of the financial statements in accordance with FAS issued by AAOIFI, the financial 
statements comply with the relevant requirements of the Commercial Companies Law of 1974, as amended and the Capital Market Authority. The significant 
accounting policies are set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

2.1.1  Standards, amendments and interpretation effective in 2016       
These financial statements have been prepared using accounting policies, which are consistent with those used in the preparation of the annual  financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, except for adoption for FAS - 27 Investment Accounts.
                
FAS 27 – Investment Accounts
The Bank has adopted FAS 27 which has replaced FAS 5 - ‘Disclosures of Bases for Profit Allocation between Owner’s Equity and Investment Account Holders’ and 
FAS 6 - ‘Equity of Investment Account Holders and their Equivalent’. This standard has enhanced certain disclosures with respect to investment account holders and 
bases of profit allocation without having any impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

2.1.2  Standard issued but not yet effective             
There are no new standards issued by AAOIFI during the period which may impact the financial statements of the Bank.      
  
2.2  Basis of measurement       
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for financial assets which are classified as fair value through equity and are 
measured at fair value.        
        
2.3  Functional and presentation currency       
The financial statements have been presented in Rial Omani, which is the functional and presentation currency of the Bank.
One RO is equivalent to one thousand Baizas.        
        
2.4  Use of estimates and judgments       
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and assumptions are based on various factors including expectation of future events 
that are believed by the Bank to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
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2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
2.4  Use of estimates and judgments (continued)
Significant items of financial statements where judgment is exercised are as follows:        
        
i)  Going concern       
The Bank’s management has made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Bank has the resources to continue 
in business for the foreseeable future and will be able to comply with applicable regulatory requirements. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on the going 
concern basis.        
        
ii)  Allowance for impairment       
The Bank reviews its financing contracts at each reporting date to assess whether an impairment provision should be recorded in the financial statements. In particular, 
judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are 
based on assumptions about factors involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ resulting in future changes to the provisions.  
      
        
In addition to specific provisions against individually significant financing contracts, the Bank also makes a collective impairment provision against exposures which, 
although not specifically identified as requiring a specific provision, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. This takes into consideration, factors such as 
any deterioration in country risk, industry, and technological obsolescence, as well as identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows.     
            
The Bank treats equity investments carried at fair value through equity as impaired when there is a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where 
other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment. The Bank evaluates factors, such as the historical 
share price volatility for comparable quoted equities and future cash flows.         
        
iii)  Liquidity       
The Bank manages its liquidity through consideration of the maturity profile of its assets, liabilities and investment accounts which is set out in the liquidity risk disclosures 
in note 29(ii). This requires judgment when determining the maturity of assets and liabilities with no specific maturities.       
 
iv)  Taxation       
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Further the taxation rules for the Islamic 
banking are yet to be finalised by the Ministry of Finance. Given the wide range of business relationships and nature of existing contractual agreements, differences arising 
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The Bank establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of finalisation of tax assessments. The amount of such provision is 
based on various factors, such as experience of other banks and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the Bank and the responsible tax authority.

v)  Deferred tax       
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. 
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future 
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

v)  Classification of investments       
Management decides on acquisition of a financial asset whether it should be classified as carried at fair value through equity or through statement of income.   
     

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2016

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES       
3.1  New and amended standards and interpretations       
New amended standards and interpretations effective in 2016 are disclosed in note 2.1.1.        
        
3.2  Cash and cash equivalents       
Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the statement of cash flows comprise cash in hand, balances with central bank (excluding mandatory reserves) and due 
from / to banks and financial institutions with an original maturity of ninety days or less.        
        
3.3  Due from banks       
Due from banks and financial institutions comprise current accounts and interbank Wakala bil Istithmar. Wakala bil Istithmar are stated at Wakala Capital plus accrued 
expected profit, less provision for impairment, if any.        
        
3.4  Murabaha receivables       
Murabaha receivables are stated net of deferred profits,  any amounts written off and provision for impaired debts, if any.     
Murabaha receivables are sales on deferred payment terms. The Bank arranges a murabaha transaction by buying a commodity (which represents the object of the 
murabaha) and then resells this commodity to murabeh (beneficiary) after computing a margin of profit over cost. The sale price (cost plus the profit margin) is repaid 
in installments by the murabeh over the agreed period. Promise made in the murabaha by the purchase orderer is obligatory upon the customer.   
             
3.5  Investment in ijarah muntahia bittamleek       
These are initially recorded at cost including initial direct costs. Ijarah muntahia bittamleek is a lease whereby the legal title of the leased asset passes to the lessee at 
the end of the ijarah (lease term), provided that all ijarah installments are settled.          
Depreciation is calculated on Ijarah muntahia bittamleek assets at the rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its lease term in a systematic manner. 
Ijarah income receivables represent outstanding rentals at the end of the year less any provision for doubtful amount. The ijarah income receivable is classified under 
other asset.        
                
3.6  Wakala bil Istithmar       
An agreement whereby the principal provides a certain sum of money (Wakala Capital) to an agent, who invests it according to specific conditions in return for a 
certain fee (a lump sum of money or a percentage of the Wakala Capital). The principal would be responsible to bear any loss of Wakala Capital unless it is due to the 
negligence of Wakala contractual terms on the part of Wakil.        
        
3.7  Diminishing Musharaka       
Diminishing Musharaka is a contract, based on Shirkat-ul-Mulk, between the Bank and a customer for joint ownership of a fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or 
machinery). The Bank divides its share in the fixed asset into units and gradually transfers the ownership of these units to a customer (at carrying value).The use of 
Bank’s share by the customer is based on the customer bear the cost of maintenance and takaful insurance for the bank’s share in the Musahraka asset. Diminishing 
Musharaka is stated initially at historical cost of consideration given, less any impairment.

3.8  Investment securities               
Investment securities comprise investments in debt-type and equity-type financial instruments. 
       
Investments in instruments are classified into the following categories: 
      • at amortised cost 
      • at fair value through equity  
      • fair value through statement of income.
        
A debt-type investment is classified and measured at amortised cost only if the instrument is managed on a contractual yield basis or the instrument is not held for 
trading and has not been designated at fair value through the statement of income or through equity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2016
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.8  Investment securities (continued)       
Investments which have fixed or determinable payments and where the Bank has both the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as debt type 
instrument carried at amortised cost. Such investments are carried at amortised cost, less provision for impairment in value. Amortised cost is calculated by taking 
into account any premium or discount on acquisition. Any gain or loss on such type of instruments is recognised in the statement of income, when the instruments 
are de-recognised or impaired.        
        
Instruments at fair value through statement of income        

This includes instruments held for the purpose of generating profits from the short term market fluctuations. These are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
All related realised and unrealised gains or losses are included in the statement of income.         
        
Instruments at fair value through equity        

This includes all instruments that are not fair valued through statement of income or debt type instruments not held at amortised cost. Subsequent to acquisition, 
investments designated at fair value through equity are re-measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised proportionately in owners’ equity 
and equity of investment accountholders until the investment is derecognised or determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recorded in owners’ equity or equity of investment accountholders is recognised in the statement of income.

Impairment losses on instruments carried at fair value through equity are not reversed through the statement of income and increases in their fair value after 
impairment are recognised directly in owners’ equity.        

On initial recognition, the Bank makes an irrevocable election to designate certain debt type and equity instruments that are not designated at fair value through 
statement of income to be classified as investments at fair value through equity.        

Investment securities are recognised at the trade date i.e. the date that the Bank contracts to purchase or sell the asset, at which date the Bank becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Investment securities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or 
where the Bank has transferred substantially all risk and rewards of ownership.        

Investment securities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, except for transaction costs incurred to acquire investments at fair value through 
statement of income which are charged to statement of income.

3.9  Other financial assets and liabilities       
3.9.1  Recognition and initial measurement        
The Bank initially recognises due from banks, financing assets, customer current accounts, due to banks, and financing liabilities on the date at which they are 
originated. All other financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date at which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through income statement, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to its acquisition or issue.
        
3.9.2  De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities        
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:     
      • The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;       
      • The Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party  
         under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
      • The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
         or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2016
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.9  Other financial assets and liabilities (continued)       
3.9.3  Offsetting        
Financial assets and liabilities are offset only when there is a legal and sharia enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Bank intends to either 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.        

3.10  Property and equipment       
3.10.1 Recognition and measurement        
Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.       
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct 
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the assets and 
restoring the site on which they are located and capitalised financing costs. 

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components).
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item of 
property and equipment, and is recognised in other income/other expenses in statement of income.

3.10.2  Subsequent costs        
The cost of replacing a component of property and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the 
day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in statement of income as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised in statement of income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property and equipment since 
this closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset and is based on cost of the asset less its estimated 
residual value.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Computer hardware                5-10 years
Leasehold improvements            10 years
Furniture and fixture                    5 years 

Useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

3.11  Intangible assets       
Intangible assets (Computer software) are amortised over their estimated useful life of 5-10 years, and carried net of accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.  
       
3.12  Due to banks and financial institutions       
Due to banks and financial institutions comprise of Wakala bil Istithmar. Wakala bil Istithmar are initially recognised at principle, being the fair value of consideration 
received plus expected profit. Subsequently, they are at carrying value.

3.13  Equity of unrestricted investment accountholders       
Equity of investment account holders are funds held by the Bank in unrestricted investment accounts, which it can invest at its own discretion. Equity of unrestricted 
investment account holders comprises of deposits obtained on the basis of mudaraba and includes accrued profit, profit equalisation reserve and investment risk 
reserve. The investment account holder authorises the Bank to invest the account holders’ funds in a manner which the Bank deems appropriate without laying 
down any restrictions as to where, how and for what purpose the funds should be invested. Equity of unrestricted investment account holders is invested through 
islamic financing contracts.The Bank charges management fee (Mudarib share) to investment account holders.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2016
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.13  Equity of unrestricted investment accountholders (continued)
Of the total income from investment accounts, the income attributable to customers is allocated to investment accounts after setting aside provisions, reserves 
(Profit equalization reserve and Investment risk reserve) and deducting the Bank’s share of income as a Mudarib. The allocation of income is determined by the 
management of the Bank within the allowed profit sharing limits as per the terms and conditions of the investment accounts.

Investment accounts are carried at their book values and include amounts retained towards profit equalisation and investment risk reserves, if any. Profit equalisation 
reserve is the amount appropriated by the Bank out of the Mudaraba income, before allocating the Mudarib share, in order to maintain a certain level of return to 
the deposit holders on the investments. Investment risk reserve is the amount appropriated by the Bank out of the income of investment account holders, after 
allocating the Mudarib share, in order to cater against future losses for investment account holders. Creation of any of these reserves results in an increase in the 
liability towards the pool of  unrestricted investment accounts. 

3.14  Impairment of financial assets       
The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an asset is impaired. Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity-
type investments) are impaired can include default or delinquency by a counterparty / investee, restructuring of financing facility by the Bank on terms that the 
Bank would not otherwise consider, indications that a counterparty or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other 
observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of counterparty or issuers or economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults in the Bank. In addition, for an investment in equity-type instruments, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is an objective 
evidence of impairment.        
        
3.14.1 Investments classified as fair value through equity        
In the case of investments classified as fair value through equity and measured at fair value, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment 
below its cost is considered in determining whether the investments are impaired. If any such evidence exists for investments classified as fair value through equity, 
the cumulative loss previously recognised in the statement of changes in owner’s equity is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of income. 
Impairment losses recognised in the statement of income on these investments are subsequently reversed through equity.

3.14.2  Financial assets carried at amortised cost (including investment in debt-type instruments classified as amortised cost)      
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the present value 
of estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective profit rate. Losses are recognised in statement of income and reflected in an allowance account. 
When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income, to the extent of 
previously recognised impairment losses.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment for financial assets carried at amortised cost at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant 
financial assets are assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant financial assets found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed 
for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Financial assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by 
grouping assets together with similar risk characteristics.

3.15  Impairment of non-financial assets       
The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets (where applicable) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that 
have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. An impairment loss is recognised if 
the carrying amount of an asset or its Cash Generating Unit (“CGU”) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.       
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset or CGU.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 31 December 2016
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15  Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows 
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of 
goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed reflects the 
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to group of CGUs that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.        

The Bank’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilised by more than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable 
and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in statement of income. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs) and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.  
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting 
date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

3.16  Revenue recognition       
Profit on amounts due from banks and financial institutions        
Profit on amounts due from banks and financial institutions is recognised on a time apportioned basis over the period of the contract based on the Wakala Capital 
outstanding and the expected profit agreed with counterparties.        

3.16.1 Murabaha receivables        
Profit on murabaha receivables is recognised when the income is both contractually determinable and quantifiable at the commencement of the transaction. 
Such income is recognised by proportionately allocating the attributable profits over the deferred period whereby each financial period carries its portion of profits 
irrespective of when cash is received. Income related to non performing financing installments that are above 90 days is excluded from the statement of income 
from the day they become overdue.        

3.16.2 Ijarah muntahia bittamleek        
Ijarah income is recognised on a time apportioned basis over the Ijarah term and is stated net of depreciation and impairment. In case of Forward Ijarah additional 
rental (profit) during the construction period will be accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the construction period on account of rentals. These profit 
amounts are received either during the construction period as advance rental payment or with the first or second rental payment after the commencement of the 
lease. Income related to non performing ijarah muntahia bittamleek accounts and ijarah installments that are above 90 days is excluded from the statement of 
income from the day they become overdue.        

3.16.3 Wakala bil Istithmar        
Income from Wakala bil Istithmar placements is recognised on a time apportioned basis so as to yield a expected rate of return based on the wakala capital.

3.16.4 Bank’s share of income from equity of unrestricted investment accountholders (as Rabalmal and Mudarib)       
Income is allocated proportionately between equity of unrestricted investment accountholders and shareholders on the basis of their respective investment in the 
pool before allocation of the mudarib fees. The Bank’s share as a mudarib for managing the equity of unrestricted investment accountholders is accrued based on 
the terms and conditions of the related mudaraba agreements.

3.16.5 Diminishing Musharaka        
Income from Diminishing Musharaka is recognised when Bank’s right to receive payment is established once the bank sells t its shares of the Musharaka asset to the 
customer. Income related to non-performing customers is excluded from statement of income.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.16  Revenue recognition (continued)

3.16.6 Fees and commission income        
Fees and commission income including structuring fees is recognised when earned.        
        
3.16.7 Dividends        
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.        
        
3.16.8 Income from investments        
Income from investments is recognised when earned.

3.17  Expected profit on Wakala bil Istithmar (banks and non banks)       
Expected profit on these is accrued on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the contract based on the wakala capital.

3.18  Taxation       
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is provided in accordance with the Omani fiscal regulations relating to conventional banks.
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is provided in accordance with the Omani fiscal regulations relating to conventional banks.
        
3.18.1 Current        
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and any adjustments to 
tax payable in respect of previous years. Income tax is recognised in the statement of income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in equity.        
        
3.18.2 Deferred        
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are calculated using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or 
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets/liabilities is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
        
3.19  Fair values       
Fair value is determined for each financial asset individually in accordance with the valuation policies set out below:
  (i)  For quoted investments that are traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to the quoted market bid prices prevailing on the 
       reporting date.

 (ii)  For unquoted investments, fair value is determined by reference to recent significant buy or sell transactions with third parties that are either completed or are 
       in progress. Where no recent significant transactions have been completed or are in progress, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value  
       of similar investments. For others, the fair value is based on the net present value of estimated future cash flows, or other relevant valuation methods.

 (iii)  For investments that have fixed or determinable cash flows, fair value is based on the net present value of estimated future cash flows determined by the Bank 
        using current profit rates for investments with similar terms and risk characteristics.

 (iv)  Investments which cannot be remeasured to fair value using any of the above techniques are carried at cost, less provision for impairment.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20  Provisions       
Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.    
        
3.21  Earnings prohibited by Shari’a       
The Bank is committed to avoid recognising any income generated from non- Shari’a compliant sources. Accordingly, income from non- Shari’a compliant sources is 
credited to a charity fund where the Bank uses these funds for social welfare activities upon approval of Shari’a Supervisory Board.

3.22  Foreign currencies        
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Rial Omani at exchange rates ruling at the value dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Rial Omani at exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items 
is the difference between amortised costs in the Rial Omani at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective profit and payments during the period and the 
amortised costs in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to Rial Omani at the exchange rate at the date 
that the fair value was determined. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as Equity-type instruments at fair value through 
statement of income are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as Equity-type instruments at fair value through equity are included in statement of changes in 
equity.

3.23  Earnings per share (EPS)       
The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of 
the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to 
owners and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.     
   
3.24  Employee benefits                                                     
End of service benefits are accrued with the terms of employment of the Bank’s employees at the reporting date, having regard to the requirements of the Omani 
Labour Law 2003 as amended. Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and leave passage are recognised when they accrue to employees and an accrual is made 
for the estimated liability arising as a result of such services upto the reporting date.

These accruals are recorded in other liabilities. With respect to its national employees, the Bank makes contributions to the Omani Government Social Security 
Scheme under Royal Decree 72/91 calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Bank’s obligations are limited to these contributions.
        
3.25  Joint and self financed        
Investments, financing and receivables that are jointly owned by the Bank and the equity of unrestricted investment accountholders are classified under the caption 
“jointly financed” in the financial statements. Investments, financing and receivables that are financed solely by the Bank are classified under “self financed”.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26  Profit distribution on investment accountholders       
The Bank abides by the following profit distribution methodology for distributing its profits to Investment account holders (IAH). Total income from Islamic 
financing and placement activities in respect of the common pool is calculated using the accounting practices in accordance with the Shari’a standards as well as 
the Accounting Standards published by Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial Institutions (AAOIFI). The net profit of the pool is calculated as 
income from financing & placements less collective and specific provisions.

Net income of the Mudaraba pool is allocated between Shareholders, Wakala customers and IAH according to their respective contribution and tenor of their 
investments in the common pool. All administrative and general expense (including staff expenses) are borne solely by the shareholders from the date of 
commencement of the Bank’s operation.

Fees and charges pertaining to letters of credit, letters of guarantee, general banking and allied services are Bank’s income and such income is not included in the 
common pool. Allocation of profit between shareholders and IAH is set at 60:40, however Bank at its discretion lowers percentage of Mudarib fee to enhance the 
share of profit of investment holders in the form of hiba. Investment in riskier asset classes such as Sukuk and equities are made from shareholders’ funds and hence 
income arising from such investments is not shared in common pool.

Depreciation expenses relating to the fixed assets owned by the Bank (other than those meant for the investment in the common pool) shall not be charged to the 
common pool and shall be charged to the shareholders. Undesired income relating to the Shari’a repugnant transactions shall be deducted from the shareholder’s 
share of profit.

3.27  Zakah       
Zakah is calculated in accordance with FAS 9 Zakah using the net assets method. The Bank will calculate the “Zakah base” based on audited financial statements 
and after approval from Shari’a Supervisory Board, notify the Shareholders of their pro-rata share of the Zakah payable annually.

Payment of Zakah on the Investment Accounts and other Accounts is the responsibility of Investments Account Holders.      
  
3.28  Shari’a supervisory board       
The Bank’s business activities are subject to the supervision of a Shari’a supervisory board consisting of members appointed by the general assembly of shareholders.  
       
3.29  Directors’ remuneration       
The Board of Directors’ remuneration is accrued within the limits specified by the Capital Market Authority and the requirements of the Commercial Companies Law 
of the Sultanate of Oman, as amended.        
        
3.30  Dividend on ordinary shares       
Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as liability and deducted from equity in the period when it is approved by the Bank’s shareholders. Interim dividend is 
deducted from equity when they are paid.               
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4  CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK OF OMAN
Cash in hand  
Balances with CBO  
 Current account 
 Capital and other deposit

The Capital deposit with the CBO is a mandatory deposit and cannot be withdrawn without its approval
and accordingly is not available for use in day to day operations of the Bank.

5  DUE FROM BANKS
Current accounts  
Inter bank wakala bil Istithmar
 Local banks
 Foreign banks

6  WAKALA BIL ISTITHMAR

Wakala bil Istithmar  
Less: Provision for impairment

7  MURABAHA RECEIVABLES   

Murabaha receivables  
Less: Deferred profit  
Less: Collective provision  
Less: Specific provision  
Less: Reserve profit (refer note 24)  
    
Net murabaha receivables

Murabaha receivables which are non-performing as of 31 December 2016 amounted to OMR 8,011 (31 December 2015: nil).
The fair value of collateral that the bank holds relating to the non-performing Murabaha receivables amounts to nil (31 December 2015: nil).

 2,576,670 

 9,629,266 
 277,728 

 9,906,994 
 12,483,664 

 1,872,646 

 25,000,000 
 5,775,002 

 30,775,002 
 32,647,648

 1,583,711 

 4,334,610 
 144,619 

 4,479,229 
 6,062,940 

 1,095,310 

 24,000,000 
 6,160,000 

 30,160,000 
 31,255,310

2015
RO

2015
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

Total
RO

Total
RO

Total
RO

Total
RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

 25,568,073 
 (255,681)

 25,312,392 

 50,766,299 
 (7,048,194)

 (727,806)
 (890)

 - 

 42,989,409 

 55,847,398 
 (558,474)

 55,288,924 

 72,034,931  
(10,349,719)
 (1,063,720)

 (29,006)
 (383)

 60,592,103 

 25,568,073 
 (255,681)

 25,312,392 

 50,766,299 
 (7,048,194)

 (727,806)
 (890)

 - 

 42,989,409 

 55,847,398 
 (558,474)

 55,288,924 

 72,034,931  
(10,349,719)
 (1,063,720)

 (29,006)
 (383)

 60,592,103 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 
 - 

2015

2015

2016

2016
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8  IJARAH ASSETS-IJARAH MUNTAHIA BITTAMLEEK

Building  
Cost:  
   At beginning of the year  
   Additions  
   Disposal  
   At the end of the year  
  
Depreciation:  
   At beginning of the year  
   Charge for the year  
   Disposal  
   At the end of the year  
  
Provision for impairment:  
   At beginning of the year  
   Provided during the year  
   At the end of the year  
  
NET BOOK VALUE  
  
Plant and machinery  
Cost:  
   At beginning of the year  
   Additions  
   Disposal  
   At the end of the year  
  
Depreciation:  
   At beginning of the year  
   Charge for the year  
   Disposal  
   At the end of the year  
  
Provision for impairment:  
   At beginning of the year  
   Provided/(Released) during the year  
   At the end of the year  
  
NET BOOK VALUE  
  
TOTAL  
Cost  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  
Less: Collective provision  
Less: Specific provision  
Less: Reserve profit  
  
NET BOOK VALUE

Total
RO

Total
RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

 42,928,301 
 93,036,133 
 (4,291,126)

 131,673,308 

 4,785,682 
 13,519,963 
 (4,291,126)
 14,014,519 

 381,424 
 980,285 

 1,361,709 

 116,297,080 

 14,380,000 
 50,000 

 -   
 14,430,000 

 166,667 
 410,208 

 -   
 576,875 

 142,133 
 (81,935)

 60,198 

 13,792,927 

 146,103,308 
 (14,591,394)
 (1,330,782)

 (91,125)
 - 

 130,090,007 

 131,673,308 
 83,068,340 
 (6,938,192)

 207,803,456 

 14,014,519 
 23,263,769 
 (6,938,192)
 30,340,096 

 1,361,709 
 747,034 

 2,108,743 

 175,354,617 

 14,430,000 
 - 

 (2,166,667)
 12,263,333 

 576,875 
 2,705,625 
 (166,667)
 3,115,833 

 60,198 
 31,277 
 91,475 

 9,056,025 

 220,066,789 
 (33,455,929)
 (2,027,602)

 (172,616)
 - 

 184,410,642 

 42,928,301 
 93,036,133 
 (4,291,126)

 131,673,308 

 4,785,682 
 13,519,963 
 (4,291,126)
 14,014,519 

 381,424 
 980,285 

 1,361,709 

 116,297,080 

 14,380,000 
 50,000 

 - 
 14,430,000 

 166,667 
 410,208 

 - 
 576,875 

 142,133 
 (81,935)

 60,198 

 13,792,927 

 146,103,308 
 (14,591,394)
 (1,330,782)

 (91,125)
 - 

 130,090,007 

 131,673,308 
 83,068,340 
 (6,938,192)

 207,803,456 

 14,014,519 
 23,263,769 
 (6,938,192)
 30,340,096 

 1,361,709 
 747,034 

 2,108,743 

 175,354,617 

 14,430,000 
 - 

 (2,166,667)
 12,263,333 

 576,875 
 2,705,625 
 (166,667)
 3,115,833 

 60,198 
 31,277 
 91,475 

 9,056,025 

 220,066,789 
 (33,455,929)
 (2,027,602)

 (172,616)
 - 

 184,410,642 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

20152016
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9  DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA

Diminishing musharaka  
Less: Collective provision

10  INVESTMENTS

Quoted investments classified
as fair value through equity

Regional listed sukuks  
(Cost: RO 6,927,511,  
31 December 2015:
RO 5,275,226)  
  
Regional listed equities  
(Cost: RO 2,422,575,   
31 December 2015:
RO 305,313)  
Less: Impairment loss

11  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:  
  At 1 January 2016  
  Additions  
  Transferred  
  
  At 31 December 2016  
  
Depreciation:  
  At 1 January 2016  
  Provided during the year  
  
  At 31 December 2016  
  
Net book values:  
  At 31 December 2016  

Total
RO

Total
RO

Total
RO

Total
RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Jointly
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

Self
Financed

RO

 1,061,017 
 (10,610)

 1,050,407 

 5,175,237 

 307,456 

 -   
 5,482,693 

 12,630,160 
 (126,301)

 12,503,859 

 6,900,696 

 2,384,998 

 (67,430)
 9,218,264 

 1,061,017 
 (10,610)

 1,050,407 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   

 12,630,160 
 (126,301)

 12,503,859 

 -   

 -   

 -   
 -   

 - 
 - 
 - 

 5,175,237 

 307,456 

 - 
 5,482,693 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 6,900,696 

 2,384,998 

 (67,430)
 9,218,264 

2015

2015

2016

2016

Total
RO

Capital Work
in Progress

RO

Funiture, fixtures 
& office equipment 

RO

 Computer  
 hardware 

 RO 

Leasehold 
improvments 

  RO 

 5,046,902 
 625,440 

 (335,025)

 5,337,317 

 1,113,059 
 686,749 

 1,799,808 

 3,537,509 

 524,874 
 115,069 

 (555,123)

 84,820 

 - 
 - 

 - 

 84,820 

 586,252 
 141,230 
 29,936 

 757,418 

 330,627 
 147,739 

 478,366 

 279,052 

 1,687,894 
 195,908 

 - 

 1,883,802 

 394,546 
 279,023 

 
673,569 

 1,210,233 

 2,247,882 
 173,233 
 190,162 

 2,611,277 

 387,886 
 259,987 

 647,873 

 1,963,404 
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11  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Cost:  
  At 1 January 2015  
  Additions  
  Transferred  
  
  At 31 December 2015  
  
Depreciation:  
  At 1 January 2015  
  Provided during the year  
  
  At 31 December 2015  
  
Net book values:  
  At 31 December 2015

12  INTANGIBLES

Cost  
Addition during the year  
Transfer (refer note 11)  
Less: amortisation

Movement of amortisation is as follows:      
      

At 1 January      
Provided during the year       
At 31 December

Total
RO

Capital Work
in Progress

RO

Funiture, fixtures & 
office  equipment 

RO

 Computer  
 hardware 

 RO 

Leasehold 
improvments 

  RO 

 4,346,789 
 700,113 

 - 

 5,046,902 

 484,530 
 628,529 

 1,113,059 

 3,933,843 

 227,634 
 327,880 
 (30,640)

 524,874 

 - 
 - 

 - 

 524,874 

 446,750 
 139,502 

 - 

 586,252 

 225,532 
 105,095 

 330,627 

 255,625 

 1,483,122 
 174,132 
 30,640 

 1,687,894 

 89,948 
 304,598 

 394,546 

 1,293,348 

 2,189,283 
 58,599 

 - 

 2,247,882 

 169,050 
 218,836 

 387,886 

 1,859,996 

 3,116,927 
 196,433 
 335,025 

 (1,420,572)

 2,227,813 

 886,486 
 534,086 

 1,420,572 

 2,846,580 
 270,347 

 - 
 (886,486)

 2,230,441 

  483,423 
 403,063 
 886,486 

2015
RO

 1 January 2015
to 

 31 December 2015
RO

2016
RO

 1 January 2016
to 

 31 December 2016
RO
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13  OTHER ASSETS    
            

Profit recievable on financing and investing activities      
Prepaid expenses      
Security deposits      
Credit card receivables - gross      
Others            
Total      
Less: Collective provision      
Less: Specific provision      
Less: Reserve profit

Reserve profit pertains to profit reserved on profit receivable towards ijarah non performing assets.        
Others includes balances held with investment fund managers of the bank amounting to RO 1.963 million (2015: RO 0.209 million).

14  DUE TO BANKS         
                  
Interbank wakala bil istithmar          
          

15  OTHER LIABILITIES         
          
Managers cheque          
Accrued expenses          
Payable in respect of capital expenditure          
Financing liabilities - payable to suppliers          
Provision for staff benefits          
Others          
          

         

          
16  EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNT HOLDERS         
          
Equity of unrestricted investment account holders          
Profit equalisation reserve           
Investment risk reserve

As investment accountholder’s funds are commingled with the Bank’s funds for investment, no priority is granted to any party for the purpose of investments and 
distribution of profits. No appropriation for investment risk reserve has been made to maintain healthy pay out for unrestricted investment account holders. 

 2,033,670 
 461,847 
 401,088 
 696,334 

 2,640,251 
 6,233,190 

 (13,925)
 (918)

 (15,463)
 6,202,884 

 985,240 
 475,662 

 9,361 
 264,969 
 580,731 

 3,399,638 
 5,715,601 

  64,519,497 
 17,382 

 - 

 64,536,879 

  3,657,501 

 948,155 
 353,098 
 200,695 
 391,330 
 493,151 

 2,386,429 
 (7,827)

 - 
 - 

 2,378,602 

 1,149,262 
 372,559 
 173,654 
 15,797 

 950,617 
 823,196 

 3,485,085 

 20,867,781 
 - 
 - 

 20,867,781 

 1,925,000 

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO
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17  OWNERS’ EQUITY    
            
(i)  Share capital         
Authorised 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares (2015: 2,000,000,000) of 100 Baizas / share        
 

 
Issued and fully paid 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares (2015: 1,000,000,000) of RO 100 Baizas per share

Names of the major shareholders holding 10% or more of the Bank’s outstanding shares are set out below:

Name of the major shareholders
    

Huriah Company LLC    
Aabar Investments PJS    
First Energy Oman    
Tasameem Real Estate Company LLC

(ii)  Legal reserve             
In accordance with the Commercial Companies Law of Oman, the Bank is required to transfer 10% of its profit for the year to legal reserve until the accumulated 
balance of the reserve equals one third of the Bank’s paid up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution. The Bank has incurred loss for the year thus 
no transfer was made for the year ended 31 December 2016.             
              
(iii)  Fair value reserve             
This represents the net unrealised fair value gains and losses relating to instruments recorded at fair value through equity.

18  NET ASSETS PER SHARE       
        
Net assets (RO)    
    
Number of shares at reporting date    
    
Net assets per share (RO)

Net assets per share is calculated by dividing the owners’ equity at the reporting date by the number of shares outstanding at the reporting date.

19  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Letter of guarantees    
Letters of credit    
Irrevocable financing commitments

 200,000,000 

100,000,000

 81,244,245 

 1,000,000,000 

 0.081 

 100,000,000 
 200,000,000 
 150,000,000 
 150,000,000 

 600,000,000 

 100,000,000 
 200,000,000 
 150,000,000 
 150,000,000 

 600,000,000 

  200,000,000 

100,000,000

   85,935,698 

 1,000,000,000 

 0.086 

10%
20%
15%
15%

60%

10%
20%
15%
15%

60%

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

% of total
 outstanding 

shares 

% of total
 outstanding 

shares 

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

Number
of

shares 

Number
of

shares 

20152016

   30,730,652 
 11,627,349 
 29,681,288 
 72,039,289 

  28,990,732 

 1,454,490 

 29,764,087 

 60,209,309 

2015
RO

2016
RO
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20  INCOME FROM FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES          
          

Wakala bil istithmar placement with customers          
Murabaha receivables          
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek (note 20.1) - net          
Diminishing musharaka          
Wakala bil istithmar placement with banks          
          
                  
20.1 Ijarah Muntahia Bittamleek          
          
Income from Ijarah muntahia bittamleek          
Depreciation on Ijarah muntahia bittamleek          
          
          
          

21  BANK’S INCOME FROM OWN INVESTMENTS         
          
          
Dividends          
Gain on sale of investments          
Profit from debt type instrument at fair value through equity          
          
          
          

22  OTHER INCOME - NET                
   
          
Fee and commission          
Foreign exchange gain - net          
          
Less: Fee and commission expense          
          

          
          
23  OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE EXPENSES         
          
          
Administrative expenses          
Occupancy costs          
Board expenses          
Shari’a board expenses          

    1,974,312 
 2,709,487 
 7,534,251 

 154,616 
 156,042 

 12,528,708

33,503,645 
 (25,969,394)

 7,534,251 

     47,737 
 29,588 

 209,551 
 286,876 

      1,084,232 
 193,100 

 1,277,332 
 (123,717)
 1,153,615 

     3,576,865 
 372,471 
 64,369 
 55,367 

 4,069,072 

   422,793 
 1,542,557 
 4,039,533 

 5,037 
 77,897 

 6,087,817 

17,969,704 
 (13,930,171)

 4,039,533

    - 
 20,214 

 214,522 
 234,736 

 854,726 
 104,366 
 959,092 

 (115,552)
 843,540 

 2,625,833 
 342,540 
 50,788 
 52,372 

 3,071,533 

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO
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24  MOVEMENT IN PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT AND RESERVE PROFIT
          

2016 
 
Provision at beginning of the year 
Charge for the year - Portfolio  
Charge for the year - Specific 
 

Reserve profit 
Provision at end of the year

Specific provision in others includes impairment loss on investment in regional listed equities amounting to RO 67,430 (2015: nil)

2015 
 
Provision at beginning of the year 
Charge for the year - Portfolio  
Charge/(Release) for the year - Specific 
 

Reserve profit 
Provision at end of the year               
 

25  TAXATION

Current tax  
Deferred tax  
 
  
Deferred tax  
As at 1 January 
Movement for the year 
As at 31 December

The tax rate applicable to the Bank is 12% (2015 - 12%). For the purpose of determining the taxable result of the year, the accounting loss has been adjusted for 
tax purposes. Adjustment for tax purposes include items relating to both income and expense.
The adjustments are based on the current understanding of the existing tax laws, regulations and practices. The Bank has reported a taxable loss. Therefore the 
applicable tax rate is nil. The average effective tax rate cannot be determined in view of the taxable loss.

Total
RO

Total
RO

Others
RO

Others
RO

Diminishing 
Musharaka

RO

Diminishing 
Musharaka

RO

 Ijarah Muntahia 
Bittamleek

RO 

 Ijarah Muntahia 
Bittamleek

RO 

Murabaha 
Receivables 

RO 

Murabaha 
Receivables 

RO 

Wakala bil 
Istithmar

RO 

Wakala bil 
Istithmar

RO 

 2,424,721 
 1,457,316 

 177,955 

 1,635,271 
 15,846 

 4,075,838 

 895,063 
 1,531,547 

 36 

 1,531,583 
 (1,925)

 2,424,721 

 7,827 
 6,098 

 68,348 

 74,446 
 15,463 
 97,736 

 79,393 
 4,972 

 (76,538)
 

(71,566)
 - 

 7,827 

 10,610 
 115,691 

 - 
 

115,691 
 - 

 126,301 

 - 
 10,610 

 - 

 10,610 
 - 

 10,610 

 1,421,907 
 696,820 
 81,491 

 778,311 
- 

 2,200,218 

 523,557 
 807,225 
 91,125 

 
898,350 

 - 
 1,421,907 

 728,696 
 335,914 
 28,116 

 364,030 
 383 

 1,093,109 

 292,113 
 453,059 
 (14,551)

 
438,508 
 (1,925)

 728,696 

 255,681 
 302,793 

 - 

 302,793 
 - 

 558,474 

 - 
 255,681 

 - 
 

255,681 
 - 

 255,681 

       -   
 590,536 
 590,536 

 1,942,158 
 590,536 

 2,532,694 

 -   
 824,529 
 824,529 

 1,117,629 
 824,529 

 1,942,158 

2015
RO

2016
RO
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The Bank has assessed that following taxable losses available for offset against future taxable profits will be utilised prior to their expiry:

Available until 31 December 2018 (declared)   
Available until 31 December 2019 (declared)   
Available until 31 December 2020 (declared)   
Available until 31 December 2021 (estimated)

None of the assessments of the Bank have been agreed by the tax authorities. It is expected that amendments to the income tax law including the increased 
corporate tax rate of 15% may be implemented in 2017. The islamic finance regulations relating to tax treatment of various products are awaited. Thus based 
on on the current regulations governing taxation in Oman, deferred tax asset on taxable losses net of timing differences arising on property and equipment and 
intangibles has been recorded in these financial statements at the current applicable tax rate of 12%.       
 

26 LOSS PER SHARE       

Loss attributable to owners (RO)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding
Loss per share

Basic and diluted loss per share are same as the Bank has not issued any instruments which would have a diluting impact on loss per share when exercised.

27  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS         
          
For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent:         
 
          
Cash in hand          
Current account with the CBO           
Current accounts with foreign banks          
Due from banks           
Due to banks          

      3,568,508 
 7,543,788 
 6,678,921 
 5,091,716 

       
(4,724,906)

 1,000,000,000 

 (0.005)

       
 2,576,670 
 9,629,266 
 1,872,646 

 30,775,002 
 (3,657,501)

 
41,196,083 

 3,568,508 
 7,543,788 
 6,645,857 

 - 

(5,356,384)
1,000,000,000 

 
(0.005)

 1,583,711 
 4,334,610 
 1,095,310 

 30,160,000 
 (1,925,000)

 
35,248,631 

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO
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28  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS             
              
Related parties comprise major shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Bank, entities owned or controlled, jointly controlled or significantly 
influenced  by them, companies affiliated by virtue of shareholding in common with that of the Bank and Shari’a supervisory board.     
                  
The significant balances with related parties at 31 December were as follows:

Assets

Wakala bil istithmar  
Murabaha receivables  
Ijarah assets-ijarah muntahia bittamleek  
Other assets  
  
  

Liabilities  
Current account  
Customer wakala bil Istithmar  
Other liabilities  
  
  

Equity of unrestricted investment accountholders  
  
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

The transactions with the related parties included in the statement of income are as follows:

Income      
Income from financing and investing activities       
Other income        
      
      
Expenses      
 Return on equity of IAH before Bank’s share as a Mudarib       
 Profit on Wakala bil Istithmar payable       
 Board expenses        
 Shari’a board expense       
 Other expenses       
      
      

Compensation of key management personnel is as follows:      
Salaries and allowances      
End of service benefits

 6,139,247 
 350,801 
 483,454 
 39,688 

 7,013,190 

 1,126,810 
 25,000 

 - 

 1,151,810 

 778,422 

 1,386,615 

 256,318 
 10,813 

 267,131 

 922 
 655 

 64,369 
 55,367 

 979,648 

 1,100,961 

 

840,693 
 23,880 

 864,573 

 6,139,247 
 350,801 
 483,454 
 33,368 

 7,006,870 

 1,089,628 
 25,000 

 - 

 1,114,628 

 778,422 

 1,386,615 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 6,320 

 6,320 

 37,182 
 - 
 - 

 37,182 

 - 

 - 

 39,600 
 29,435 

 527,328 
 - 

 596,363 

 
1,368,443 

 25,000 
 13,833 

 
1,407,276 

 28,995 

 - 

 29,313 
 3,310 

 32,623 

 94 
 6,476 

 50,788 
 52,372 

 1,012,823 

 1,122,553 

 

844,372 
 21,755 

 866,127 

 39,600 
 29,435 

 527,328 
 - 

 596,363 

 1,154,842 
 25,000 
 13,833 

 1,193,675 

 28,995 

 - 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 213,601 
 - 
 - 

 213,601 

 - 

 - 

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2015
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

2016
RO

TotalOther Related PartiesDirectors
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29  RISK MANAGEMENT        
Risk management is an integral part of the Bank’s decision-making process. The risk management committee and executive committees, guide and assist with overall 
management of the Bank’s statement of financial position risks.
The Bank manages exposures by setting limits approved by the Board of Directors.
         
(i)  Introduction and overview
The Bank’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing them professionally. The core functions of the Bank’s risk management are to identify 
all key risks for the Bank, measure these risks, manage the risk positions and determine capital allocations.
The Bank regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and best market practice.
         
The Bank’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial performance. The Bank 
defines risk as the possibility of losses or profits foregone, which may be caused by internal or external factors.        
 
   The key features of the Bank’s comprehensive risk management framework are:
      • The Board of Directors (“the Board”) has the overall responsibility of managing risk and provides the overall risk management direction and oversight.
      • The Bank’s overall risk management process is managed by the risk management function, headed by the Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”). 
         This function is independent of the business divisions.
      • Credit, market, operational and liquidity risks are managed in a coordinated manner within the organisation.
      • Board committees meet regularly and are responsible for monitoring compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviewing the 
         adequacy of the risk management framework.
      • All risk management policies must be approved by the Board of Directors.
         
   Each department of the Bank is responsible for:
      • Identifying and measuring the risks that the Bank is exposed to and considering whether those risks are significant;
      • Developing and recommending for approval appropriate risk management policies and procedures regarding those activities and business units which are 
         susceptible to significant risk, including business continuity plans;
      • Providing direction regarding the Bank’s overall risk philosophy and risk tolerance, including considering whether certain new business proposals are 
         acceptable from a risk management perspective;
      • Monitoring compliance with risk management policies and procedures;
      • Adherence to risk guidelines, and
      • Reporting any policy or major practice changes, unusual situations, significant exceptions and new strategies to the Board of Directors for review, approval 
         and/or ratification.
         
Distributions of profit to shareholders and unrestricted customers’ accounts is subject to a comprehensive risk management system that is reviewed at the management 
level, the Shari’a Board level and ALCO level to maintain the appropriate distribution levels taking into account the Bank’s performance, competitors’ profit distributions 
and market conditions.

ii)  Liquidity risk            
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due under normal and stress circumstances.
To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors liquidity on a regular basis.    
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Bank’s assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2016 based on expected periods to cash conversion from 
the reporting date:             

2016

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central bank of Oman  
Due from banks  
Wakala bil istithmar 
Murabaha receivables 
Ijarah assets-ijarah muntahia bittamleek 
Diminishing musharaka 
Investments 
Property and equipment 
Intangibles 
Deferred tax asset 
Other assets 
 
Total assets

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

Due to banks 
Customers’ current accounts 
Customers’ wakala bil Istithmar 
Other liabilities 
 
Total liabilities
 
Equity of unrestricted investment accountholders 
Total owners’ equity 
 
 
Total liabilities, equity of investment accountholders
& owners’ equity 
  
Net gap 
  
Cumulative net gap

Total
RO

Total
RO

Over
5 years

RO

Over
5 years

RO

1 to 5
years

RO

1 to 5
years

RO

 6 Months
 to 1 year

RO 

 6 Months
 to 1 year

RO 

1 to 6 
Months

RO 

1 to 6 
Months

RO 

Up to 1
Month

RO 

Up to 1
Month

RO 

 12,483,664 
 32,647,648 
 55,288,924 
 60,592,103 

 184,410,642 
 12,503,859 
 9,218,264 
 3,537,509 
 2,227,813 
 2,532,694 
 6,202,884 

 381,646,004 

 3,657,501 
 21,730,032 

 204,761,746 
 5,715,601 

 235,864,880 
 

64,536,879 
 81,244,245 

 381,646,004 

 - 

 -

 277,728 
 - 

 4,625,000 
 7,392,647 

 67,491,014 
 - 
 - 

 3,537,509 
 2,227,813 

 - 
 - 

 85,551,711 

 - 
 5,240,855 
 5,623,051 

 - 

 10,863,906 

 15,740,938 
 81,244,245 

 107,849,089 

 (22,297,378)

 - 

 - 
 - 

 13,979,597 
 31,416,093 
 74,594,194 
 10,578,773 
 1,173,000 

 - 
 - 

 2,532,694 
 - 

 134,274,351 

 - 
 - 

 28,518,078 
 - 

 28,518,078 

 31,486,002 
 - 

 60,004,080 

 74,270,271 

 22,297,378 

 - 
 - 

 5,243,899 
 9,816,413 

 21,626,780 
 1,203,448 
 8,045,264 

 - 
 - 
 - 

 6,202,884 

 52,138,688 

 - 
 4,192,685 

 107,880,939 
 5,715,601 

 117,789,225 

 6,435,948 
 - 

 124,225,173 

 (72,086,485)

 (51,972,893)

 - 
 - 

 19,402,244 
 10,533,357 
 19,102,976 

 621,974 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 49,660,551 

 - 
 7,337,198 

 57,931,236 
 - 

 65,268,434 

 6,657,503 
 - 

 71,925,937 

 (22,265,386)

 20,113,592 

 12,205,936 
 32,647,648 
 12,038,184 
 1,433,593 
 1,595,678 

 99,664 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 60,020,703 

 3,657,501 
 4,959,294 
 4,808,442 

 - 

 13,425,237 

 4,216,488 
 - 

 17,641,725 

 42,378,978 

 42,378,978 
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Bank’s assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2015 based on expected periods to cash conversion from 
the reporting date:             

2015

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central bank of Oman  
Due from banks  
Wakala bil istithmar 
Murabaha receivables 
Ijarah assets-ijarah muntahia bittamleek 
Diminishing musharaka 
Investments 
Property and equipment 
Intangibles 
Deferred tax asset 
Other assets 
 
Total assets

LIABILITIES, EQUITY OF UNRESTRICTED INVESTMENT ACCOUNTHOLDERS AND OWNERS’ EQUITY

Due to banks 
Customers’ current accounts 
Customers’ wakala bil Istithmar 
Other liabilities 
 
Total liabilities
 
Equity of unrestricted investment accountholders 
Total owners’ equity 
 
 
Total liabilities, equity of investment accountholders
& owners’ equity 
  
Net gap 
  
Cumulative net gap

Total
RO

Total
RO

Over
5 years

RO

Over
5 years

RO

1 to 5
years

RO

1 to 5
years

RO

 6 Months
 to 1 year

RO 

 6 Months
 to 1 year

RO 

1 to 6 
Months

RO 

1 to 6 
Months

RO 

Up to 1
Month

RO 

Up to 1
Month

RO 

 6,062,940 
 31,255,310 
 25,312,392 
 42,989,409 

 130,090,007 
 1,050,407 
 5,482,693 
 3,933,843 
 2,230,441 
 1,942,158 
 2,378,602 

 252,728,202 

 1,925,000 
 25,685,581 

 114,829,057 
 3,485,085 

 145,924,723 
 

20,867,781 
 85,935,698 

 252,728,202 

 - 

 - 

 144,619 
 - 
 - 

 4,705,972 
 42,138,029 

 - 
 - 

 3,933,843 
 2,230,441 

 - 
 - 

 53,152,904 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 
 

18,189,992 
 85,935,698 

 104,125,690 

 (50,972,786)

 - 

 - 
 - 

 689,447 
 25,156,742 
 55,794,255 

 796,555 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 1,942,158 
 - 

 84,379,157 

 - 
 11,558,512 
 28,790,001 

 - 

 40,348,513 

 85,000 
 - 

 40,433,513 

 43,945,644 

 50,972,786 

 - 
 - 

 145,177 
 8,415,080 

 20,805,512 
 132,231 

 5,482,693 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 2,378,602 

 37,359,295 

 - 
 5,137,116 

 32,398,550 
 3,485,085 

 41,020,751 

 144,530 
 - 

 41,165,281 

 (3,805,986)

 7,027,142 

 - 
 - 

 17,156,212 
 3,974,672 

 10,020,197 
 104,969 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 31,256,050 

 - 
 3,852,837 
 1,566,100 

 - 

 5,418,937 

 120,800 
 - 

 5,539,737 

 25,716,313 

 10,833,128 

 5,918,321 
 31,255,310 
 7,321,556 

 736,943 
 1,332,014 

 16,652 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 46,580,796 

 1,925,000 
 5,137,116 

 52,074,406 
 - 

 59,136,522 

 2,327,459 
 - 

 61,463,981 

 (14,883,185)

 (14,883,185)
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iii) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from unexpected changes in financial prices, as a result of fluctuations in profit rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and commodity 
prices. Consistent with the Bank’s approach to ensure strict compliance with Shari’a, the Bank does not enter into speculative foreign exchange transactions. Market risk 
activities are governed by the market risk policy of the Bank. The implementation of the policy, procedures and regulatory limits in the Bank is the responsibility of the 
relevant business units with oversight by Assets and Liabilities Committee and the Risk and Compliance Committee. 

  (i) Profit rate risk                 
      Profit rate risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a financial loss as a result of mismatch in the profit rate on the Bank’s assets and investment account holders 
      (IAH). The profit distribution to IAH is based on profit sharing agreements.
      Therefore, the Bank is not subject to any significant profit rate risk.          
Effective profit rate on profit bearing assets, liabilities and equity of unrestricted investment account holders is set below:

Due from banks           
Wakala bil istithmar           
Murabaha receivables           
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek           
Diminishing musharaka           
Investments           

Due to banks’           
Customers’ wakala bil istithmar           

Equity of unrestricted investment accountholders

  (ii) Foreign exchange risk                         
       Foreign exchange risk arise from the movement of the rate of exchange over a period of time.
       Positions are monitored on a regular basis to ensure positions are maintained within established approved limits.      
The Bank has the following exposures in a foreign currency at the reporting date:

US Dollar   
Euro   
GCC currencies   
Great Britian Pound   
Others   
   
   
   

US Dollar   
Euro   
GCC currencies   
Great Britian Pound   
Others

 0.79 
 5.34 
 5.25 
 4.64 
 4.81 
 4.74 

 0.64 
 2.77 

 0.87 

 0.82 
 3.20 
 4.89 
 4.30 
 4.56 
 2.84 

 0.22 
 1.80 

 0.30 

2015
%

2016
%

Net
RO

Short
RO

Long
RO

 (11,155,194)
 78,741 

 844,164 
 19,055 

 487,587 
 (9,725,647)

 (4,771,785)
 910 

 64,482 
 26,770 
 2,291 

 (4,677,332)

 11,155,194 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 11,155,194 

 4,771,785 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 4,771,785 

 - 
 78,741 

 844,164 
 19,055 

 487,587 
 1,429,547 

 - 
 910 

 64,482 
 26,770 
 2,291 

 94,453 

Net
RO

Short
RO

Long
RO

2016

2015
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  (iii) Price risk                 
      Price risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from 
      profit rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all 
      similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The effect on equity as a result of a change in the fair value of instruments held as fair value through equity due to reasonably possible change in prices, with all other 
variables held constant, is as follows:

Investment type

Regional listed sukuks     
Listed equities

   (iv) Credit Risk                 
Credit risk is the risk of potential loss arising from failure of counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. The Bank manages its credit risk arising from its banking book 
by implementing robust policies and procedures with respect to identification, measurement, mitigation, monitoring and controlling the risks.     
               
Corporate financing risk                 
Corporate financing risk is managed by Risk Management Department through a system of independent review. Credit facilities to corporate are approved based on a 
detailed credit risk assessment which includes review of the end use of funds, primary and secondary sources of payment, prevailing and potential macro economic factors 
and industry trends.                  

Corporate financing proposals are assigned risk rating based on the results of an internal risk rating model. Altman’s Z score is calculated for each individual Corporate 
customers. The ratings and the Z score assigned to a Corporate customer aids in the decision making process.         
         
Corporate financing is approved by the Senior Credit Committee of the Management, Executive Committee of the Board and the Board of Directors based on authorities 
approved by the Board.                 
                 
Retail financing risk                
All Retail Financing is extended to Retail customers on the basis of approved Retail Product Programs. The Retail Product Programs are approved by the Board and Shari’a 
Supervisory Board. However, any significant modifications arising out of product review is to be recommended to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) by the business. The 
CEO, Shari’a Supervisory Board and the relevant business stakeholders shall approve changes/revisions to the product program.      
           
Retail Financing proposals meeting the parameters prescribed in the Retail Product Programs are approved by the Risk Management department. Exceptions to the Retail 
Financing are approved by the Senior Credit Committee of the Management.             
     
The financing activity of the Bank is governed by limits prescribed by the CBO and the ones prescribed by the policies of the Bank. Portfolio diversification is the basis of 
the Bank’s financing strategy. Diversification is achieved by setting customer, industry and geographical limits.        
         
The Bank uses a robust Management Information System to monitor its Corporate and Retail financing portfolio by various dimensions.     
            

10%
10%

10%
10%

   517,524 
 30,746 

    690,070 
 238,500 

Effect on equity
2015

RO

Effect on equity
2016

RO

 Change in price
2015

%

 Change in price
2016

%
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Credit risk mitigation strategy
The Bank uses a variety of tools to mitigate its credit risk, the primary one being that of securing the exposure by suitable collaterals. In practice a large part of existing 
exposures are fully or partially collateralised. The legal validity and enforceability of the documents used for collateral have been established by qualified personnel, 
including lawyers and Sharia’ scholars.                
 
The Bank’s credit portfolio is supported by various types of collateral such as deposits marked lien, mortgage over land and property, moveable assets including inventory, 
securities and guarantees. Collaterals are valued as a general rule as per the policy.
However, adhoc valuations will also be carried out depending on the nature of collateral and general economic condition. This will enable the Bank to assess the fair market 
value of the collateral and ensure that risks are appropriately covered.

Risk gross maximum exposure:               
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position.
The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of use of master netting and collateral agreements.

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman            
Due from banks           
Wakala bil Istithmar           
Murabaha receivables           
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek           
Diminishing musharaka           
Contingent liabilities and commitments

Credit quality by type of financing contracts
The table below shows the credit quality by type of Islamic financing contracts, based on the Bank’s Credit Rating System (CRS).
The balances presented are gross of impairment provision.

Type of financing contract

Wakala bil istithmar       
Murabaha receivables       
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek       
Diminishing musharaka       

 12,483,664 
 32,647,648 
 55,847,398 
 61,685,212 

 186,610,860 
 12,630,160 
 72,039,289 

 - 
 8,012 

 640,342 
 - 

 648,354 

 383,309 
 3,080,659 

 21,312,903 
 860,538 

 25,637,409 

 55,464,089 
 58,596,541 

 164,657,615 
 11,769,622 

 290,487,867 

 6,062,940 
 31,255,310 
 25,568,073 
 43,718,105 
131,511,914 

 1,061,017 
 60,209,309 

 55,847,398 
 61,685,212 

 186,610,860 
 12,630,160 

 316,773,630 

2015
RO

Total
RO

2016
RO

Non 
performing

RO

Past due but
performing

RO

Neither past due
nor non performing 

RO

Gross maximum exposure
to credit risk

Gross exposure 31 December 2016
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Type of financing contract

Wakala bil istithmar       
Murabaha receivables       
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek       
Diminishing musharaka

Aged analysis of past due but performing financing contracts

Type of financing contracts       

Wakala bil istithmar       
Murabaha receivables       
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek       
Diminishing musharaka

Type of financing contracts       

Wakala bil istithmar       
Murabaha receivables       
Ijarah muntahia bittamleek       
Diminishing musharaka

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 - 

 -   
 33,728 

 1,090,125 
 -   

 1,123,853 

 -   
 29,389 
 88,618 

 - 

 118,007 

 - 
 1,416,800 
 3,392,120 

 - 

 4,808,920 

 300,000 
 605,324 

 3,290,683 
 -   

 4,196,007 

 -   
 146,451 
 93,303 

 - 

 239,754 

 25,568,073 
 42,301,305 

 128,119,794 
 1,061,017 

 197,050,189 

 83,309 
 2,441,607 

 16,932,095 
 860,538 

 20,317,549 

 -   
 1,240,960 
 3,210,199 

 -   

 4,451,159 

 25,568,073 
 43,718,105 

 131,511,914 
 1,061,017 

 201,859,109 

 383,309 
 3,080,659 

 21,312,903 
 860,538 

 25,637,409 

 -   
 1,416,800 
 3,392,120 

 - 

 4,808,920 

Total
RO

Total
RO

Total
RO

Non 
performing

RO

61 to 90
days

RO

61 to 90
days

RO

Past due but
performing

RO

31 to 60
days

RO

31 to 60
days

RO

Neither past due
nor non performing 

RO

Less than
30 days

RO

Less than
30 days

RO

Gross exposure 31 December 2015

31 December 2016

31 December 2015
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Geographical distribution of financial assets
Table below indicates the geographical distribution of financial assets held by the Bank as at 31 December 2016 in Rial Omani.

Class of financial asset         

Balances with Central Bank of Oman         
Due from banks         
Wakala bil istithmar         
Murabaha receivables         
Ijara muntahia bitamleek         
Diminishing musharaka         
Investments         
         
Total

Class of financial asset         

Balances with Central Bank of Oman         
Due from banks         
Wakala bil istithmar         
Murabaha receivables         
Ijara muntahia bitamleek         
Diminishing musharaka         
Investments         
         
Total

 -   
 1,051,597 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 605,470 

 1,657,067 

 - 
 2,743,475 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 2,743,475 

 -   
 6,596,051 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 6,207,735 

 12,803,786 

 - 
 4,511,835 

 - 
 - 
 - 
 - 

 4,402,537 

 8,914,372 

 9,906,994 
 25,000,000 
 55,288,924 
 60,592,103 

 184,410,642 
 12,503,859 
 2,405,059 

 350,107,581 

 4,479,229 
 24,000,000 
 25,312,392 
 42,989,409 

 130,090,007 
 1,050,407 
 1,080,156 

 229,001,600 

 9,906,994 
 32,647,648 
 55,288,924 
 60,592,103 

 184,410,642 
 12,503,859 
 9,218,264 

 364,568,434 

 4,479,229 
 31,255,310 
 25,312,392 
 42,989,409 

 130,090,007 
 1,050,407 
 5,482,693 

 240,659,447 

Total

Total

Rest of the 
World

Rest of the 
World

GCC

GCC

Oman

Oman

31 December 2016

31 December 2015
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Geographical distribution of financial assets (continued)
The table below indicates the sector concentration           

Construction and real estate
Banks and financial institutions
Sovereigns
Trading and manufacturing
Personal
Other Services

TOTAL

Construction and real estate
Banks and financial institutions
Sovereigns
Trading and manufacturing
Personal
Other Services

TOTAL

v) Operational risk                 
                 
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to 
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks 
through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation 
procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit.          
       

 1,291,968 
 1,001,848 
 4,957,790 

 771,839 
 -   

 1,262,249 

 9,285,694 

 -   
 1,057,079 
 3,218,913 
 1,206,701 

 -   
 -   

 5,482,693 

 65,026,572 
 -   
 -   

 21,188,262 
 158,733,572 
 71,825,224 

 316,773,630 

 51,841,000 
 7,700,000 

 -   
 15,868,000 
 99,572,000 
 26,885,936 

 201,866,936 

 66,318,540 
 1,001,848 
 4,957,790 

 21,960,101 
 158,733,572 
 73,087,473 

 326,059,324 

 51,841,000 
 8,757,079 
 3,218,913 

 17,074,701 
 99,572,000 
 26,885,936 

 207,349,629 

Total

Total

Investments

Investments

Financing

Financing

Gross exposure 31 December 2016

Gross exposure 31 December 2015
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vi) Capital management
Central Bank of Oman (CBO) sets and monitors capital requirements of the Banks operating in Oman. In implementing Basel III’s capital requirement, the CBO requires the 
Bank to maintain a minimum of 12.625% ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets. The Bank’s regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:    
Tier I capital, which includes ordinary share capital, legal reserve and retained earning.          
Tier II capital which includes fair value reserves               
  
Asset liability committee devises capital utilisation strategy and monitors compliance with CBO’s regulations in this regard.      
The risk asset ratio, calculated in accordance with the capital adequacy guidelines of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and CBO Circulars BM 1009 ‘Guidelines 
on Basel II’ and BM 1114 ‘Regulatory Capital and Composition of Capital Disclosure requirements under Basel III’ effective from 31 December 2013, minimum capital 
adequacy ratio requirement for the year is 12.625% inclusive of capital conservation buffer of 0.625% (2015: 12.625% inclusive of capital conservation buffer of 
0.625%). The capital adequacy ratio working is as follows:              
   

Common equity tier 1 (CET 1)
Additional Tier 1 
Tier 1 
Tier 2
Total regulatory capital
Risk-weighted assets 
Credit risk
Market risk
Operational risk
Total risk-weighted assets 

Capital adequacy ratio
CET 1 capital (Tier 1) expressed as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets 
Tier 2 capital expressed as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets
Total Regulatory Capital expressed as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets. 

Minimum share capital requirement
The Bank has commenced commercial operations on 30 September 2013 and as expected has reported loss during the initial years. As a result the Bank’s owner’s equity 
is below RO 100 million, which is a CBO requirement.
The Bank is developing an appropriate strategy to comply with the minimum prescribed capital requirement.

76,421,410
-

76,421,410
3,799,423

80,220,833

301,710,023
11,150,000
14,421,238

327,281,261

23.35%
1.16%

24.51%

34.22%

0.98%

35.20%

81,760,961

-

81,760,961

2,333,668

84,094,629

220,691,779

4,775,000

13,436,424

238,903,203

2015
RO

2016
RO
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30 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS        
Set out below is an overview of financial instruments held by the Bank as at 31 December 2016:

Financial assets:   
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman    
Due from banks    
Wakala bil istithmar   
Murabaha receivables   
Ijarah assets-ijarah muntahia bittamleek   
Diminishing musharaka   
Investments   
Other assets      
Total   
   
Financial liabilities:   
Due to banks   
Customers’ current accounts   
Customers’ wakala bil istithmar   
Other liabilities      
Total   
   

Financial assets:   
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Oman    
Due from banks    
Wakala bil istithmar   
Murabaha receivables   
Ijarah assets-ijarah muntahia bittamleek   
Diminishing musharaka   
Investments   
Other assets      
Total   
   
Financial liabilities:   
Due to banks   
Customers’ current accounts   
Customers’ wakala bil istithmar   
Other liabilities      
Total   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 9,218,264 
 -   

 9,218,264 

-   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -  

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 5,482,693 
 -   

 5,482,693 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 12,483,664 
 32,647,648 
 55,288,924 
 60,592,103 

 184,410,642 
 12,503,859 

 -   
 3,131,092 

 361,057,932 

3,657,501 
 21,730,032 

 204,761,746 
 1,259,570 

 231,408,849

 6,062,940 
 31,255,310 
 25,312,392 
 42,989,409 

 130,090,007 
 1,050,407 

 -   
 1,540,180 

 238,300,645 

 1,925,000 
 25,685,582 

 114,829,056 
 1,338,713 

 143,778,351 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

-   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -  

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Fair value through
statement of income 

RO

Fair value through
statement of income 

RO

Fair value
through equity 

RO

Fair value
through equity 

RO

Amortised
cost
RO

Amortised
cost
RO

31 December 2016

31 December 2015
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Fair value of financial instruments   
The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities, other than those disclosed in the table below and in note 10, approximate their carrying values.  
        
The bank’s primary medium and long-term financial liabilites are the borrowed funds. The fair values of these financial liabilities are not materially different from 
their carrying values, since these liabilities are repriced at intervals of three or six months, depending on the terms and conditions of the instrument and the 
resultant applicable margins approximate the current spreads that would apply for borrowings with similar maturities.      
    
          
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  
        
          
Fair values of quoted securities/sukuks are derived from quoted market prices in active markets, if available. For unquoted securities/sukuks, fair value is estimated 
using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques may include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current fair value of another 
instrument that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.        
  
The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:     
     
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly; and   
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.    
      
          
The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy at 31 December:

                     2016
 
  
Fair value through equity 
 
 

 
 
                     2015
 
 
 
Fair value through equity

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3          
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurement

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 6,900,696 

 6,900,696 

 5,175,237 

 5,175,237 

 2,317,568 

 2,317,568 

 307,456 

 307,456 

 9,218,264 

 9,218,264 

 5,482,693 

 5,482,693 

Total
RO

Total
RO

Level3
RO

Level3
RO

Level 2
RO

Level 2
RO

Level 1
RO

Level 1
RO

2016

2015
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31 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Segment information is presented in respect of the Bank’s operating segments. For performance management purposes, the Bank is organised into three operating 
segments based on products and services as follows:
 
Retail banking includes customers’ deposits, unrestricted investment account consumer financing, credit card and general banking services.
 
Corporate banking includes deposits and financing for  corporate and institutional customers along with provision of trade finance services. 
 
Treasury includes placements with financial institutions and managing proprietary investment portfolio of the Bank.
 
Performance of the bank is evaluated based on the profit after tax.
 
The segment information is as follows:

2016

Net operating income
Provision for impairment
Segment results
Total assets

Total liabilities and equity of unrestricted accountholders

2015

Net operating income
Provision for impairment
Segment results
Total assets

Total liabilities and equity of unrestricted accountholders

The costs incurred by the central functions are managed on an overall basis and are currently being allocated to business units. 

 -   
 -   

 (15,941)
 26,618,553 

 5,732,983 

 -   
 -   

 824,529 
 10,264,420 

 3,485,085 

 618,427 
 (67,430)

 (463,570)
 41,865,911 

 3,657,501 

 400,470 
 -   

 (131,747)
 42,800,806 

 1,925,000 

 1,860,054 
 (648,256)

 554,217 
 143,838,015 

 205,881,540 

 2,629,937 
 (659,718)

 (1,755,297)
 94,107,980 

 125,485,847 

 6,492,581 
 (919,585)

 (4,799,612)
 169,323,525 

 85,129,735 

 2,964,595 
 (871,865)

 (4,293,869)
 105,554,996 

 35,896,572 

 8,971,062 
 (1,635,271)
 (4,724,906)

 381,646,004 

 300,401,759 

 5,995,002 
 (1,531,583)
 (5,356,384)

 252,728,202 

 166,792,504 

Total
RO

Total
RO

Others
RO

Others
RO

Treasury
RO

Treasury
RO

Corporate
RO

Corporate
RO

Retail
RO

Retail
RO
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32  ZAKAH         
The Bank does not collect or pay Zakah on behalf of its customers.          

          
33  SHARI’A SUPERVISORY BOARD         
The Shari’a supervisory Board of the Bank consists of three scholars who are specialised in Shari’a principles and they ensure the Bank’s compliance with general 
Islamic principles and work in accordance with the issued Fatwas and guiding rules. The Board’s review includes examining the evidence related to documents and 
procedures adopted by the Bank in order to ensure that its activities are according to the principles of Islamic Shari’a.     
 

             
34  SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY         
The Bank discharges its social responsibilities through donations to charitable causes and organisations.        
 
  
          
35  COMPARATIVE INFORMATION         
Certain corresponding figures have been reclassified in order to conform with the presentation for the current year. Such reclassification do not affect previously 
reported loss or owners’ equity.           
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Awards & Achievements
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‘Top CEO’ award from TRENDS magazine and 
INSEAD Business School

‘Best Islamic Bank in Oman’ from World 
Islamic Finance Awards 2016

‘Best Islamic Financial Institution in Oman’ 
from Global Finance Awards 2016

‘Visionary Customer Initiative of the Year 2016’ from Tenable 
Network Security and Spectrami Awards 2016

‘Most Innovative Bank Oman 2016’ from 
Global Business Outlook Awards 2016

‘Best Retail Bank in Oman 2016’ from Islamic 
Business & Finance Awards 2016

‘Housing Finance Firm of the Year’ 
from Oman Real Estate Awards 2016

AWARDS & ACHIEVEMENTS
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2016 Eventful Year

Alizz Islamic Bank holds Blood Donation camp

Iftar Sayim Ramadhan Annual 
Goodwill Campaign

Alizz Islamic Bank participates 
in Majlis Al Shura Islamic 

Banking Session

3rd Annual General Meeting Official Opening of 
Tharwa Center Sohar

Alizz Islamic Bank Sponsors
E&Y Student Excellence Awards

Alizz Sponsors GCC New Age Banking Summit



1332016 EVENTFUL YEAR

Alizz Islamic Bank conducts 
beats the Diabetes Campaign

Official Opening of Athaibah Branch Alizz Islamic Bank Participation at the 
Cancer Walkathon  

Indian delegates visiting Alizz Islamic Bank

46th National Day Celebrations Under 10s Football team 
sponsored by Alizz Islamic Bank

Alizz Islamic Bank Career Fair 
at the College of Banking & 

Financial Studies 
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2016 Eventful Year

Alizz Islamic Bank conducts Fire Drill

Alizz Islamic Bank Participates at the 
Islamic Finance News Forum

Sharia Awareness Program at 
Sultan Qaboos University

Alizz Islamic Bank receives 
student delegation from Paris 

Dauphine University

Sharia Awareness Program at the College 
of Banking & Financial Studies

Bushra Prize Savings Account
Grand Prize Draw

Alizz Islamic Bank Completes 3 Years
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Alizz Islamic Bank supports 2nd 
Edition of Oman Qaboos

Launch of Bushra Prize Savings Account Singing Ceremony with Telal al Qurm Majlis Alizz Campaign – Salalah

Launch of E-Learning Majlis Alizz Campaign – Nizwa

2016 EVENTFUL YEAR
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Branch Network
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Head Office

Main Branch

Nizwa BranchWattaya Branch

Sohar Branch

Al Khoudh Branch

 

Salalah Branch

Athaibah Branch

 

Alizz Tower P.O. Box 753 CBD Area,
PC 112 Sultanate of Oman

Branch Manager
Ghalib Al Zadjali
Direct: 24 775515

Branch Manager
Abdullah Al Ghawi
Direct : 26 948401

Branch Manager
Mohammed Al Hinai
Direct : 25 413401

Branch Manager
Hassan Kashoob
Direct : 23 382601

Branch Manager
Salim Al Sinawi
Direct : 22 060969

Branch Manager
Haiyan Al Amri
Direct: 22 314850

Branch Manager
Amr Al Kindi
Direct : 24 283801

BRANCH NETWORK
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Why go online?
http://goo.gl/GXlxBy

You can now benefit from more accessible information and helping 
the environment too. If you haven’t already tried it, visit our online 
Annual Report or just scan the QR code beside with your  
smartphone and go direct. You may need to download a QR  code  
reader for your phone.

alizzislamic.com


